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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 19" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the members of
Standard Chartered Capital Limited (formerly Standard Chartered Investments and
Loans (India) Limited) (‘Company”) will be held on Wednesday, September 28, 2022 at
11:30 A.M. at Sanaga Meeting Room, Floor No 6, Crescenzo Building, G Block, C 38/39,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400051 to transact the following
business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
Item No. 1: Adoption of financial statements
To receive, consider, approve and adopt:

a. the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2022 together with the reports of the Board of Directors and
Auditors thereon.

Item No. 2: Appointment of Director

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Kumarapuram Venkateswaran Subramanian (DIN
07842700}, who retires by rotation in terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act,
2013 and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Item No. 3: Re-appointment of Statutory Auditors

~ To re-appoint M/s KKC & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors
and to fix their remuneration.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, if any, read with the Companies (Audit &
Auditors) Rules, 2014, and RBIf2021-22/25
Ref.No.DoS.CO.ARG/SEC.01/08.91.001/2021-22 dated April 27, 2021 including any
statutory enactment or modification thereof, and based on the recommendation of the
Audit Committee and as recommended by the Board of Directors, M/s KKC & Associates
LLP, Chartered Accountants, (FRN/Membership No: 105146W/ W100621} be and are
hereby re-appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of three (3)
years from the conclusion of this 19" Annual General Meeting of the Company until the
conclusion of 22" Annual General Meeting to be held in the Financial year 2024-25, at a
remuneration that may be mutually decided in consultation with the Board.

Standard Chaortered Capital Limited

{Formerly "Stondard Chortered Investrnents and Loans (India) Limuted )
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Director(s) and Company Secretary of the
Company be and is hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and
things and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to
this resolution including issue of certified true copy of this resolution.”

By Order of the Board of Directors,
For Standard Chartered Capital Limited
(Formerly Standard Chartered Investments and Loans (India) Limited)

Company Secretary
A32437

Registered Office Address:
Standard Chartered Capital Limited

(Formerly Standard Chartered Investments and Loans (India) Limited)

Floor No. 6, Crescenzo Building, C-38/39, "G" Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra
(East) Mumbai - 400051

Corporate Identification Number (CIN): U65990MH2003PLC 142829
E-mail: Richa.Shah@sc.com

Date: September 6, 2022
Place: Mumbai

NOTES:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to
attend and vote instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member. For a proxy
to be valid, it must be deposited at the registered office of the company, not less than
48 hours before the commencement of meeting.

2. A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in
the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the company
carrying voting rights only exception being that a member holding more than ten
percent, of the total share capital of the company carrying voting rights may appoint
single person as proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for any other person or
shareholder.

3. All the documents referred to in the Notice are open for inspection at the Registered
Office of the Company on all working days except Saturdays, Sundays and public
holidays between 9.00 a.m. to 6.00 p.m. up to the date of the Annual General
Meeting. Further, members are requested to note that the Annual Report and AGM
Notice will be uploaded on the website of the Company viz,
www.standardcharteredinvestmentsloans.co.in

4. The Voting at the meeting shall be conducted by show of hands unless a poll in
accordance with section 109 of the Companies Act, 2013 is demanded by any
member.

5. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their Shareholding and
the Register of Contracts and Arrangements maintained under Sections 170 and 189
of the Companies Act, 2013 respectively are available for inspection at the reglster
office of the Company during business hours between 9.00 a.m. to 6.00 p.m. e

on holidays and will be made available for inspection at the venue of the meeti

Standard Chortered Capital Limited

{Formerly “Stendord Chartered Investments and Loans (India) Limited ) o
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. Members/Proxies should fill the Attendance Slip for attending the Meeting and bring
their Attendance Slips along with their copy of the Annual Report to the Meeting.

. The route map to the venue of the AGM is included at the end part of the Notice.

. Details of Director retiring by rotation and seeking re-appointment at the ensuing
AGM is provided in Annexure | to the Notice pursuant to the provisions of Secretarial
Standard on General Meetings (‘SS-2') issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.

9. Bodies' Corporate members are requested to send a certified copy of the board
resolution authorizing their representative/s to attend and vote at the meeting
pursuant to provisions of Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013.

10. The term ‘Members’ has been used to denote members of Standard Chartered
Capital Limited.

By Order of the Board of Directors,
For Standard Chartered Capital Limited
(Formerly Standard Chartered Investments and Loans {India) Limited)

Ol
n%h?éﬁf

Company Secretary
A32437

Registered Office Address:

Standard Chartered Capital Limited

Floor No. 6, Crescenzo Building, C-38/39, "G" Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra
{East) Mumbai — 400051

Corporate |dentification Number (CIN): U65990MH2003PLC 142829
E-mail: Richa.Shah@sc.com

Date: September 6, 2022
Place: Mumbai

Standard Chartered Capital Limited

(Formerly “Standord Chartered Investmernts ond Loans (india) Limited )
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Item No. 2
ANNEXURE | TO THE AGM NOTICE DATED 6™ SEPTEMBER 2022

Details of Directors retiring by rotation/ seeking re-appointment in the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

(In pursuance of Secretarial Standards on General Meetings [SS-2])

Name of the Director Mr. Kumarapuram Venkateswaran Subramanian
Director Identification | 07842700
Number
Category Non-Executive Director
Date of Birth 23" September, 1965
Age 57 years
Date of First Appointment on | 27" November, 2017
the Board
Shareholding in the | 1 Equity Share as a Nominee Shareholder of SCB UK
Company
Relationship with Directors | NA 5
and KMPs ;
|
Qualifications Master's degree in management from NMIMS, Mumbai
University and Bachelor's degree in Mechanical
Engineering from PSG College of Technology,
Coimbatore
Expertise in specific | Mr. Subramanian is currently Head of Strategy, Process
functional area. & Governance at Standard Chartered Bank, India.
Prior to this he was Managing Director & Head Global
Markets and Co Head of the Wholesale Bank at
Standard Chartered Bank, Indonesia from 2011-2017.
Subramanian has over 28 years of banking experience
having joined ANZ Grindlays Bank in 1989 as a
Management Trainee in the Capital Markets division. In
1992 he joined TAIB Bank, Bahrain to set up the India
Investment desk for the Bank and was also responsible
for their proprietary equity and debt business. In 1996 he
moved back to ANZ Grindlays Bank, India to run the
Debt Capital Markets Sales business. Post the merger
of SCB and ANZ Grindlays in 2000, he ran the
Institutional Sales business for South Asia (2000-2006)
and from 2006 to 2011 was Managing Director &
Regional Head Capital Markets for South Asia. He has
been responsible for leading some of the large Capital
Market transactions for SCB from India.
Remuneration last drawn NIL
No. of Meetings of the Board | 04 (Four)
attended during the year
o >

Standord Chaertered Capital Limited

(Furmerly “Standord Chartered Investments and Loans (India) Limited )
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Terms and Conditions of | NA
Appointment or re-
appointment along  with
remuneration
Directorship in other [a) St. Helen's Nominees India Pvt. Ltd as a Director
Companies as on
31 March, 2022 b) Standard Chartered (India) Modeling and Analytics

Centre Pvt Ltd as a Director

c) Standard Chartered Private Equity Advisory (India)
Pvt. Ltd as a Director

d) Standard Chartered Finance Private Limited as a
Director

e) Standard Chartered Securities (India) Limited as a
Director

fy NGL FINE - CHEM Limited as an Additional
Independent Non-Executive Director

g) CDSL Ventures Limited as a Director

Chairman/Member of the |a} Member of CSR Committee
Committee of the Board of [b) Member of Risk Committee
Directors as on [c) Member of Credit Committee

31 March, 2022 d) Member of Borrowing Committee
e) Member of NRC Committee

fy  Member of Audit Committee

Standord Chartered Copital Limited

(Forme:ly "Standord Chortered Investments und Loans (Indio) Lurated )

Registered OFfice Tall Free No (71-22)1800 239 0505

Crescenza &th Foor C-38/39"G" Block, Bondra Kurla Complex, Fox. {91-22) 6115 7825

Bandra (East). Mumbai 400 051 Indio Website www standardcharteredinvestmentsleans.coin
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AS AT 31.3.2022:

SR.NO | NAME OF THE DIRECTORS DIN POSITION
1 Ms. Zarin Daruwala 00034655 Director & Chairperson
2 Mr. Prashant Kumar 08584379 MD & CEO
3 Mr. Kumarapuram Venkateswaran | 07842700 Director

Subramanian
4 Mr. Siddhartha Sengupta 08467648 Independent Director
5 Mr. Neil Percy Francisco 08503971 Independent Director
STATUTORY AUDITORS:

M/s KKC & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 105146W/ W100621)

INTERNAL AUDITORS:

M/s. Banshi Jain & Associates, Chartered Accountants

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS:

M/s. Ragini Chokshi & Co. Company Secretaries

REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS:

6th Floor, Crescenzo, Plot No C-38 & 39,

'G Block', Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East),

Mumbai- 400051, India.

CORPORATE INDENTITY NUMBER:

U65990MH2003PLC142829

STOCK EXCHANGE:

Bombay Stock Exchange
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STANDARD CHARTERED CAPITAL LIMITED
(FORMERLY STANDARD CHARTERED INVESTMENTS AND LOANS (INDIA) LIMITED)
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members,

The Directors of your Company have pleasure in presenting the Nineteenth Annual Report
including the Company's Audited Financial Statement for the financial year ended March 31,
2022.

BACKGROUND

Standard Chartered Capital Limited (formerly Standard Chartered Investments and Loans
{India) Limited) (“SC Capital”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Standard Chartered Bank-UK
incarporated in the year 2003 is a non-deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC)
registered with Reserve Bank of India (RBI). SC Capital with a net worth of INR 106,591 Lacs
and balance sheet size of INR 470,610 Lacs {as at March 31, 2022) is one of the few NBFC's in
India with a credit rating of AAA (stable long term) and A1+ for Short term CP by ICRA &
CRISIL and offers lending products like Corporate Loans, Loans Against Securities (LAS) and
Loans Against Property (LAP).

ECONOMIC & MARKET OUTLOOK

India’s GDP growth likely recovered to 8.9% in 2021-22 amid favorable base effects (2020-21: -
6.6%). Banking sector credit growth improved to 8.6% in March 2022 vs 5.6% same period last
year, primarily driven by the retail and services sub-segments. Banking system liquidity surplus
has stayed elevated at c. INR 7.5 trn in 2021-22, with the RBI using variable reverse rate repos
for liquidity management along with FX swaps and CRR hikes.

During the year under review the country was able to put past the severity of COVID - 19,
primality due to the policy response of the World Health Organisation, Public Health and Social
Measures (PHSM) steps taken by the Central/ State Government, introduction of vaccines and
resiliency shown by the citizens of the country. Few new variants of COVID -19 in different
geographies were observed. The economy was unlocked gradually and is on the cusp of
recovery for the COVID restrictions are to be phased out in a gradual manner.

In FY23, we project GDP growth to slow to 7.7% with headwinds from elevated commodity
prices. The prolonged Russia-Ukraine war also contributing to global supply disruptions, another
channel of negative impact on India’s growth outlook. Meanwhile, ongoing re-opening of the
services sector amid improved vaccination rates and base effects are likely to support GDP
growth.

The spike in underlying inflation pressures has led the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) to
implement surprise 40bps repo rate hike and 50bps CRR hike in May 2022, We expect 35bps
rate hike in June followed by 25bps hike in consecutive meetings in H2-2022 taking the terminal
rate to 5.5%, with upside risks should inflation pressures persist.

On balance, trends in global commodity prices are likely to significantly affect India’s macro-
economic outlook in FY23. The external sector dynamics are expected to come under sharp
pressure, with current account (C/A) deficit likely to widen to 2.5% of GDP (FY22:-1.5%) and
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Balance of Payments expected to switch to a deficit of USD 10bn from USD 19bn surplus in
Fy22. The risks from oil prices persist as our average price assumption is USD 85/bbl, with high
price sensitivity of C/A dynamics — every USD 10/bbl rise in oil price affects C/A deficit by c.USD
14bn. The adequate external sector buffers like elevated FX reserves (c.10 months import
cover) and low external debt levels is expected to provide some cushion.

Apart from improved macro stability in recent years, political stability also supports India’s
economic prospects. Recent state elections (including in Uttar Pradesh, India's largest state)
underlined the continued popularity of the ruling party. While there are two more state elections
due in FY 2022 and nine more in FY 2023, the focus is now likely to shift to national elections in
2024.

SC CAPITAL STRATEGY

SC Capital started its lending operation by offering corporate loan products to Standard
Chartered Group's Commercial, CCIB clients. The Company's differentiated and complimenting
support within the Group to its Commercial, Corporate and Private banking clients are already
well established and are being leveraged.

In 2018, as part of the strategy refresh for the entity, SC Capital forayed into offering lending
products to the Consumer, Private and Business Banking clients. Currently, the Company is in
the process of digitising its lead management and onboarding systems to complement and
deepen the entity's reach across the Standard Chartered Franchise.

The Company considers digitization of services and technology enabled processes as a
necessary step for enhanced customer service and experience and is currently working on
multiple technology initiatives. In the last 12 months, the Retail and Business Banking clients
have increased by 2.5x and Private Banking and CCIB Clients by 1.2x.

Currently, SC Capital has a loan asset base of 439,895 INR Lacs as of March 31, 2022, from
clients across Commercial, Corporate & Institutional banking (CCIB) and Private & Retail
banking segments. The Company is a profit-making entity with a net worth of INR 108,591 Lacs,
revenues of INR 30,746 Lacs and operating profit of INR 12,189 Lacs (Audited financials of FY
2021-22).

GOVERNANCE & CONTROLS

SC Capital has an extremely well-defined and embedded governance structure, which fully
supports and endorses the prudent Corporate Governance principles laid down by the
regulators and other stakeholders. It complies with all the applicable laws and regulations of the
country. SC Capital is regulated by the Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) guidelines
prescribed by Reserve Bank of India (RBI).

Corporate governance of the entity complies with the Companies Act 2013 which includes an
Independent Board with all Board level committees to ensure full and fair adoption of policies
and disclosures relating to the affairs of the company.

Standard Chartered Copital Limited

(Formerly "Standard Chartered Investments ond Loans (india) Limited")

Registered Office: Crescenzo, 6th Floor. C-38/39,°G™ Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 0S1. India
CIN:USS990MH2003PLC142829 | Toll Free Mo. (91-22) 1800 209 0505 | Fax: (91-22) 6115 7825

Website: www.standardcharteredinvestmentsloons.co.in | Email: SCCapital customercare@se com
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The summary of the Company’s financial performance based on Ind AS for the Financial Year
221-22 as compared to the previous Financial Year 2020-21 is given below:

(INR Lacs)
Particulars 2021 - 2022 2020 - 2021
Total Income - 30,746 25,515
Total Expenditure (excl. Impairment on financial 19,644 15,551
instruments)
Impairment on financial instruments (1,087) 1,355
Profit before exceptional items and tax 12,189 8,609
Exceptional Items - -
Profit before Tax 12,189 8,609
Provision for Tax 3,112 2,213
Profit for the period 9,077 6,396
Other Comprehensive Income (29) 22
Total Comprehensive Income for the period 9,048 6,418
Earning per equity share of Rs. 10/- face value 2.00 I 1.41
{Basic & diluted) (in Rs) f

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
Considering the challenges and the adverse market conditions that prevailed in the

macroeconomic environment, it is gratifying that your company delivered a steady financial and
operating performance for FY 2021-22.

« The company’s balance sheet continues to be highly liquid; diversified and conservatively
positioned.

¢ Total advances including investment increased by 43.8% to INR 439,895 Lacs in FY 22, as
against INR 305,849 Lacs in FY21. The assets were well diversified and across segments.

* Operating Profit of the Company is higher by 41.6% as compared to the previous years to
reach INR 12,189 Lacs.

* As a consequence, Company’s Profits after tax stood at INR 9,077 Lacs for FY 22.

NAMES OF COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE ITS SUBSIDIARY
COMPANIES, JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

During the financial year, there were no companies which have become or ceased to be its
Associate, Subsidiary Company or Joint Venture.

RBI GUIDELINES

The Company has complied with all the applicable regulations of the Reserve Bank of India and
met all the prudential norms prescribed by the RBI throughout the year.

Standard Chartered Capital Limited

{Formerly "Standard Chortered Investments and Loans (Indic) Limited”)
Registered Office: Crescenzo, &th Floor, C-38/39,'G" Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051. India
CIN:USS990MMH2003PLC142829 | Toll Free No.: (91-22) 1800 209 0505 | Fax: (91-22) 61157825

Website: www standardcharteredinvestmentsloans.coin | Email: SCCapitolcustomercare@se.com
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CREDIT RATING

During the year under review, CRISIL reaffirmed its rating of ‘CRISIL A1+'on the Company's
short-term debt instrument and ‘CRISIL AAA/Stable’ on the Company’s long-term debt
instrument including bank facilities.

During the year under review, ICRA also reaffirmed rating of ICRA Ai+'on the Company's
short-term debt instrument and ICRA AAA/Stable’ on the Company's long-term debt instrument.

CHANGE IN SHARE CAPITAL
There is no change in share capital during the financial year.

DIVIDEND

Your Company's Balance Sheet is driven by client centric strategy and the profits generated will
be retained and deployed to monetize the future opporiunities. Therefore, the Directors do not
recommend any dividend for the financial year 2021 - 22.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Your Directors draw attention of the members to Statement of Changes in Equity in the
Financial Statement which sets out amount to be transferred to reserves.

DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Section 73
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014
during the year under review.

ANNUAL RETURN
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, a copy of the Annual Return for the

financial year ended March 31 2022 has been made available on the website of the Company
having link as http://www.standardcharteredinvesimentsloans.co.in

BOARD CONSTITUTION AND MEETINGS OF THE BOARD (AS AT MARCH 31 2022):

Sr. | Board of Directors Designation
No.
1. | Ms. Zarin Bomi Daruwala (DIN 00034655) Non-Executive Director & Chairperson
2. | Mr. Prashant Kumar (DIN 08584379) Managing Director & Chief Executive
Officer
3. [ Mr. Kumarapuram Venkateswaran | Non-Executive Director
Subramanian (D!N 07842700)
4. | Mr. Pradeep Chandra lyer (DIN 07352497) # | Non-Executive Director :
5. | Mr. Neil Percy Francisco (DIN 08503971) Independent Non-Executive Director
6. | Mr. Siddhartha Sengupta (DIN 08467648) lndependent Non-Executive Director
5% """f
Q— f?
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(Farmerly “Stondoird Chartered Investrnents and Loans (India) Limited™) '0

Registered Office: Crascenzo, 6th Floor, C-38/39,'G" Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra cn 400 051. India
CIN:US5990MH2003PLC142829 | Toll Free No.: (91-22) 1800 209 0505 | Fax: (91-22) 6115 7825
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#Mr. Pradeep Chandra lyer resigned as a Director with effect from June 14 2021.

Five (5) Board meetings were held during the year. The details are given below:

Date

Board strength

No. of Directors present

June 14, 2021

August 17, 2021

September 22, 2021

November 12, 2021

;o om

February 11, 2022

||

AUDIT COMMITTEE CONSTITUTION AND MEETING OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE (AS
AT 31 MARCH 2022):

sr.
No.

Audit Committee

Designation

1.

Mr. Neil Percy Francisco (DIN 08503971)

Independent Non-Executive Director

2.

Mr. Siddhartha Sengupta (DIN 08467648)

Independent Non-Executive Director

3.

Mr. Kumarapuram Venkateswaran

Subramanian (DIN 07842700)

Non-Executive Director & Chairperson

Five (5) Audit Committee meetings were held during the year. The details are given

below:
Date Committee strength No. of Members present
June 14, 2021 3 3
September 22, 2021 3 3
November 12, 2021 3 3
February 11, 2022 3 3
March 15, 2022 3 3

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION (NRC) COMMITTEE CONSTITUTION AND MEETING
OF THE NRC COMMITTEE (AS AT 31 MARCH 2022):

Sr. | Nomination & Remuneration (NRC) Committee | Designation

No.

1. | Mr. Kumarapuram Venkateswaran Subramanian | Non-Executive Director

(DIN 07842700}

2. | Mr. Siddhartha Sengupta (DIN 08467648) Independent  Non-Executive
Director

3. | Mr. Neil Percy Francisco {DIN 08503971) Independent  Non-Executive
Director

Three (3) Nomination & Remuneration Committee meetings were held during the year.
The details are given below:

Standard Chartered Capital Limited
(Formerly “Stondard Charterad Investments and Loans (India) Limited")
Registered Office: Crescenzo, 6th Floor, C-38/397G" Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandro |

Date Committee strength No. of Members present
June 14, 2021 3 == 3
September 22, 2021 3 2PN 3

(East), Mumbai 400 051 India

CIN:UA5920MH2003PLC142829 | Toll Free No.: (#1-22) 1800 209 0505 | Fax: (91-22) 61157825
Website: www standardcharteredinvestmentsloans.co.in 1 Email: SCCapital customercare@sc.com
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE CONSTITUTION AND
MEETING OF THE CSR COMMITTEE (AS AT 31 MARCH 2022):

Sr.
No.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Committee

Designation

1.

Mr. Kumarapuram Venkateswaran
Subramanian (DIN 07842700)

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Neil Percy Francisco (DIN 08503971)

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Siddhartha Sengupta (DIN 08467648) #

Independent Non-Executive Director

2.
3.
4

Mr. Prashant Kumar (DIN 08584379)

Officer

Managing Director & Chief Executive

#Appointed in the CSR Committee with effect from June 14, 2021

Two (2) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee Meetings were held during the
year. The details are given below:

Date Committee strength No. of Members present
September 22, 2021 4 4
February 11, 2022 4 4

BORROWING COMMITTEE (ERSTWHILE NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES (NCD)
COMMITTEE) CONSTITUTION AND MEETING OF THE NCD COMMITTEE (AS AT 31

MARCH 2022):
Sr. | Borrowing Committee (Erstwhile Non- | Designation
No. | Convertible Debentures (NCD)
Committee)
1. | Mr. Kumarapuram Venkateswaran | Non-Executive Director
Subramanian (DIN 07842700)
2. | Mr. Pradeep Chandra lyer (DIN 07352497) | Non-Executive Director
#
3. | Mr. Prashant Kumar (DIN 08584379) Managing Director & Chief Executive
Officer

#Resigned from the Committee with effect from June 14 2021

No Borrowing Committee (Erstwhile Non-Convertible Debenture (NCD) Committee)
Meeting was required to be held during the year. The details are given below:

ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS / COMMITTEE MEMBERS: (2021-2022)

Name of Directors Board Audit Nomination & CSR Borro
Meeting | Committee | Remuneration | Committee | wing
* Committee Com
mittee
Attended | Attended Attended Attended Atten
ded

'iﬂ’l) ow;ic—ﬁ

Standard Chartered Capital Limited
(Formerly “Standard Chartered Investments and Loans (India) Limited™)

CIN:U85990MH2Z003PLCTA2829 | Toll Free No. (91-22) 1800 209 0505 | Fax: (91-22) 6115 7825
Website: www.standardcharteredinvestmentsloans.coin | Email: SCCapital customercare@sc.com
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Ms. Zarin Bomi Daruwala 5 NA NA NA NA

Mr. Pradeep Chandra 1 NA NA NA NA

lyer

Mr. Kumarapuram 4 5 3 2 NA

Venkateswaran

Subramanian

Mr. Neil Percy Francisco 5 5 3 2 NA

Mr. Siddhartha Sengupta 5 5 3 2 NA

Mr. Prashant Kumar 5 NA NA 2 NA

DIRECTORS

Mr. Pradeep Chandra lyer (DIN 07352497) resigned from the Board during the financial year
2021-2022. The Board places on record sincere appreciation of the valuable services rendered
by him during his tenure as Director of the Company.

Pursuant to Section 152 of the Act, Mr. Kumarapuram Venkateswaran Subramanian (DIN
07842700) being longest in the office retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself
respectively for reappointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Mr. Neil Percy Francisco and Mr. Siddhartha Sengupta, Independent Non — Executive Directors
have submitted their declaration of Independence, as required pursuant to Section 149 (7) of
the Act, stating that they meet the criteria of Independence as provided in sub-section (8) of the
Act and are not disqualified from continuing as Independent Directlors,

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

There were no changes in the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company during the financial
year under review.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

INR Lacs
a. | Conservation of Energy |
1. | Steps taken for conservation of energy NiL !
2. | Steps taken for utilizing alternate sources of energy
3. | Capital investment on energy conservation equipments

b. | Technology absorption
1. | Efforts made towards technology absorption NIL
2. | Benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction,
product development or import substitution

3. | Expenditure on Research & Development, if any

a. Details of Technology imported, if any

b. Year of Import

¢. Whether imported technology fully absorbed

d. If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken
place and the reasons thereof

P
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| 4, | Expenditure incurred on the Research and Development

c. | Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
1. | Foreign Exchange Earnings by the Company
2. | Foreign Exchange Expenditure by the Company

The company has no activity relating to consumption of energy or technology absorption. No Foreign
currency expenditure was incurred during the year under review. The company does not have any foreign
exchange earnings.

STATEMENT ON DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF A RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has a strong governance culture and framework for risk management at an enterprise
level. The Company’s risk management principles align with those established at a Group level and are
customized to meet the local regulatory requirements. There are different types of risk that the Company
is exposed to such as Credit risk, Market risk, Liquidity risk, Compliance risk, Reputational risk,
information & Cyber security risk and Operational risk. Our risk management approach is based on a
clear understanding of various risks and regular assessments, measurement, and monitoring.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

In accordance with the requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company
has a CSR policy framed in consultation with relevant stakeholders and approved by the

Company's CSR Board Committee which outlines the broad areas in which it would like to
engage as part of CSR.

For FY 2021-22, the proposal was aligned to install oxygen plants at 3 locations i.e., 1 in
Maharashtra and 2 in Bihar in association with Doctors For You (DFY), Mumbai.

In line with the Companies (CSR Policy) Rules, 2014 details on CSR are as follows:

» The Company has a CSR Committee of the Board comprising four directors, namely Mr.
Prashant Kumar, MD & CEO, Mr. Kumarapuram Venkateswaran Subramanian - Non-
Executive Director, Mr. Siddhartha Sengupta, Independent Non-Executive Director and
Mr. Neil Percy Francisco, Independent Non-Executive Director.

¢« Company's current document on CSR primarily covers areas around Health, sanitation,
education and empowering girl child.

= Average net profit of the Company for the last three financial years — 2018 — 2019: INR
6,265 Lacs, 2019 — 2020: INR 10,084 Lacs, 2020 — 2021: INR 8,609 Lacs = Average net
profit is INR 7945 Lacs.

e 2% of the Average Net profit - INR 167 Lacs.
o Details of CSR spent during the financial year:
Total amount to be spent for the financial year: INR 167 Lacs.

Total amount spent during the year (2021-2022): INR 167 Lacs
Amount unspent, if any: Nil

Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year:
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CSR Committee Responsibility Statement:

The CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of the CSR activities
of the Company are in compliance with the CSR objectives and CSR policy of the
Company.

The CSR document is annexed as Annexure |.

BOARD EVALUATION AND PERFORMANCE

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has carried out an
annual evaluation of its own performance and that of its Committees as well as
performance of the Directors individually.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board have laid down the manner in
which formal annual evaluation of the performance of the Board, Committees and individual
directors has to be made. It includes circulation of evaluation forms separately for
evaluation of the Board and its Committees, Independent Directors/ Non-Executive
Directors/ Executive Director and Chairman of the Board.

Feedback was sought by way of a structured questionnaire covering various aspects of the
Board's functioning such as adequacy of the composition of the Board and its Committees,
Board culture, execution and performance of specific duties, obligations and governance and
the evaluation was carried out based on responses received from the Directors.

A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors. The
performance evaluation of the Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole was carried
out by the Independent Directors. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation
process.

FIT AND PROPER CRITERIA AND CODE OF CONDUCT

All the Directors meet the fit and proper criteria stipulated by Reserve Bank of India. All the
Directors and Senior Management of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Code of
Conduct of the Company.

MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Independent Directors of the Company were required to hold atleast one meeting before
the Board Meetings without the presence of the Chairman & Managing Director or other Non-
Independent Directors or Chief Financial Officer or any other Management Personnel. These
Meetings are required to be conducted in an informal and flexible manner to enable the
Independent Directors to discuss matters pertaining to, inter alia, review of performance of Non-
Independent Directors and the Board as a whole (taking into account the views of the Executive
and Non-Executive Directors), assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information
between the Company Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively
and reasonably perform’ their duties.

The meeting of the Independent Directors for the FY 2021-22 was held on February 11 2022,

P
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Your Directors state that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2022, the
applicable accounting standards read with requirements set out under Schedule Il to the
Act, have been followed and there are no material departures from the same;

b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31 2022 and of the profit of the
Company for the year ended on that date;

c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concern’ basis;

e) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

f) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and
that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SUB-SECTION (12) OF SECTION 143 OTHER
THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT

No such case of fraud was reported by the auditors of the company as required under the given
act and rules.

Further to this - there were no fraud cases which were required to be reported to Central
Government.

STATEMENT OF DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence
as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Act.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT, REMUNERATION AND CRITERIA FOR
APPOINTMENT

The Company’'s Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other
employees is annexed as Annexure Il to the Directors’ Report. Further, the Company has
devised a Policy for performance evaluation of Independent Directors, Board, Committees and
other individual Directors.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Company as at March 31 2022
comprises of Mr. Kumarapuram Venkateswaran Subramanian (DIN 07842700), Mr. Siddhartha
Sengupta (DIN 08467648) and Mr. Neil Percy Francisco (DIN 08503971). f;f »
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The Company's remuneration policy is directed towards rewarding performance based on
review of achievements periodically. The remuneration policy is in consonance with the existing
industry practice.

AUDITORS

Statutory Auditors

The Company at its Annual General Meeting (“AGM") held on September 22, 2020 appointed
M/s S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 301003E/E300005)
as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 (five) years i.e. upto the Annual
General Meeting to be held in the calendar year 2025. M/s S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP has tendered
their resignation as Statutory Auditors of the Company with effect from November 12, 2021
considering RBI's Circular Ref. No. DoS.CO.ARG/SEC.01/08.91.001/2021-22 dated 27th April
2021 owing 1o which they are ineligible to continue as statutory auditors of more than one RBI
regulated entity within the same Group.

M/s. KKC & Associates LLP (Earlier M/s. Khimji Kunverji & Co. LLP), Chartered Accountants
bearing (Firm Registration No. 105146W / W100621) were appointed as Statutory Auditors of
the Company with effect from January 25, 2022, in the Company’s Extraordinary General
Meeting, to hold office upto the conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting for the
financial year ended March 31, 2022.

Secretarial Auditors

In accordance with the provisions of section Sub-section (1) of Section 204 and related
provisions and rules of Companies Act, 2013 and based on the recommendation by the Audit
Committee, M/s. Ragini Chokshi & Co., Company Secretaries were appointed as the Secretarial
Auditors of the Company to conduct the Secretarial Audit for the financial year ending on March
31 2022.

The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2022, is annexed herewith
marked as Annexure Il to this Report.

AUDIT QUALIFICATION

The Company has not received any qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer
under the Statutory Audit Report FY 2021-22. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed as
Annexure lll to the Directors’ Report.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company adheres to the relevant group policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention of frauds and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial disclosures.

Standard Chartered Copital Limited

(Formerly “Standard Chortered Investments and Loans (India) Limited")
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The Company has an Internal Financial Control Framework, commensurate with the size, scale
and complexity of its operations.

The Internal Auditors evaluated the efficiency and adequacy of internal financial control
framework in the Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and
policies of the Company. The assessments on internal financial control were presented to the
Audit Committee of the Board.

Based on the framework of internal financial controls established and maintained by the
Company, work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial auditors, the reviews
performed by Management and the relevant Board Committees, the Board with the concurrence
of the Audit Committee, is of the opinion that the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements were adequate and effective as on March 31 2022.

COST RECORDS AND COST AUDITORS

The provisions of Cost Audit and Records as prescribed under Section 148 of the Act, are not
applicable to the Company.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Code of Conduct of the Standard Chartered Group is also adopted by the Company which
all employees are expected to observe in their business endeavours. The Code reflects the
Company’s commitment to principles of integrity, transparency and fairmess. The Company has
adopted a Speak Up Policy, as part of vigil mechanism to provide appropriate avenues to the
Directors and employees to bring to the attention of the management any issue which is
perceived to be in violation of or in conflict with the fundamental business principles of the
Company.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS,
COURTS AND TRIBUNALS

No significant and material order has been passed by the regulators, courts, tribunals impacting
the going concern status and Company's operations in future.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 43(A)(Il) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The Company has not issued any shares with differential voting rights and hence, no
information as per provisions of Section 43(a)(ii) of the Act read with Rule (4)(4) of the
Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 54(1)(D) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review, hence no

information as per provisions of Section 54(1)(d) of the Act, read with Rule 8(13) of the
Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished.
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DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 62(1)(B) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The Company has not issued any Equity Shares under Employees Stock Option Scheme during
the year under review and hence, no information as per provisions of Section 62(i)(b) of the Act,
read with Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 67(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

During the year under review, there were no instances of non-exercising of voting rights in
respect of shares purchased directly by employees under a scheme pursuant to Section 67(3)
of the Act read with Rule 16(4) of Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is
furnished.

POLICY & DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Company has in place an appropriate policy which is in line with the requirements of the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013.

An Internal Complaints Committee has been set up to redress complaints, if any, received
regarding sexual harassment of women. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary,
trainees) are covered under this policy. We further state that during the financial year under
review, there were no complaints received/cases filed under the Sexual Harassment of Women
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS GIVEN, INVESTMENTS MADE, GUARANTEES GIVEN AND
SECURITIES PROVIDED

Particulars of investments made, guarantees given and securities provided along with the
purpose for which the guarantee or security is proposed to be utilized by the recipient are
provided in the financial statement.

Pursuant to Section 186 (11)(1)(a), the provisions of Section 186 in relation to loans made shall
not be applicable to company engaged in the business of financing of the Companies. 1%
proviso to the said section states that exemption is available in respect of lending activities.

CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All Related Party Transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an arm’s
length basis and were in the ordinary course of business. There were no related party
transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Manageria! Personnel and
Bodies Corporate that had a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.
Accordingly, the particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in
Section 188(1), as prescribed in Form AOC - 2 of the rules prescribed under Chapter IX relating
to Accounts of Companies under the Companies Act, 2013, is appended as Annexure IV.
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DISCLOSURE OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION WITH PERSON OR ENTITY
BELONGING TO PROMOTER OR PROMOTER GROUP

The Company entering Related Party Transaction(s) with persons and entities belonging to the
Promoter or Promoter group holding 10% of more shareholding of the Company are described
in detail in the Financial Statements of the Company.

MATERIAL CHANGES

No material changes and commitments have occurred after the close of the year till the date of
this Report, which affect the financial position of the Company.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS
During the financial year under review, there was no change in the nature of the business.
NAME CHANGE

With effect from October 27, 2021, the entity's name is changed from Standard Chartered
Investments & Loans (India) Limited to “Standard Chartered Capital Limited”.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Details of Employees pursuant to the provisions of sub rule (2) and sub rule (3) of Rule 5 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed
herewith as Annexure V.

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURING THE YEAR
ALONGWITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR.

There are no applications made or any proceedings pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the financial year.

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME
OF ONE -TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM
THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF

There were no such transactions during FY 2021-22.

STATEMENT ON COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

Pursuant to Clause 9 of the Secretarial Standards-1, your Directors to the best of their
knowledge and belief, confirm that they have complied with the applicable Secretarial
Standards.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Directors of your Company express their sincere gratitude to the Reserve Bank of India,

Ministry of Finance, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Registrar of Companies, Securities and
Exchange Board of India, Bombay Stock Excha»gg&ﬁ_ goyetnment and regulatory
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authorities, ienders, financial institutions, and the Company's bankers for the ongoing support
extended by them. The Directors also place on record their sincere appreciation for the
continued support extended by the Company’s stakeholders and trust reposed by them in your
Company. The Directors sincerely appreciate the commitment displayed by the employees of
the Company across all levels, resulting in successful performance during the year.

For and on behalf of the Board_pf Directors,

L) g e «U""‘/

A
Zarin Daruwala Prasham Kumar
Director MD & CEO

(DIN 00034655) (DIN 08584379)

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 27, 2022

Stondard Chartered Copital Limited

(Farmerly “Standard Chartered Investments and Loans (India) Limited™)

Registered Office: Crescenzo, 6th Floor, C-38/39,"G" Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East}, Mumbai 400 051 India
CIN:US5990MHZ003PLCI42829 | Toll Free No.: (91-22) 1800 209 0505 | Fox: (91-22) 6115 7825

Website: www standardcharteredinvestmentsloons.coin | Email: SCCapital.customercare@sc.com



INTERNAL-

Standard Chartered Capital Limited
(Formerly Standard Chartered Investments and Loans {India) Limited)

Corporate Social Responsibility
OBJECTIVE:

Standard Chartered is a leading international banking group, with around 84,000 employees and over
a 160-year history in some of the world's most dynamic markets. We bank the people and companies
driving investment, trade and the creation of wealth across Asia, Africa and the Middle East. Qur
heritage and values are expressed in our brand promise, Here for good.

In keeping with Standard Chartered’s Here for good brand identity, Standard Chartered Capital
Limited (‘company’) encourages employees to help their local communities develop by contributing
their knowledge, skills and talents.

The main objective of this document is to lay down guidelines for the company to promote the social
and economic well-being of communities and to support sustainable development in our markets,

It covers current / proposed CSR activities to be undertaken by the company and assess its alignment
with Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to time. It covers the roadmap
for future CSR activities of the company.

Our community investment strategy focuses on health, water and sanitation, education, employability
and entrepreneurship. We have a specific focus on people from local income households, especially
girls and young women, and visually impaired young people.

CSR PROGRAMMATIC AREAS

Standard Chartered Group (‘Group’) launched Seeing is Believing in 2003 to celebrate its 150th
anniversary. Groups target then was to restore the sight of 28,000 people; this represented a sight
restoration for every member of the staff. To date, over a million sights have been restored and we
are working with some of the world’s leading eye care agencies to save the sights of millions more.
Between 2003 and 2018, SiB has reached more than 167 million people, transforming lives, boosting
local economies and strengthening communities.

In India, group opened 225 vision centres across 22 states and have conducted 2.36 million cataract
surgeries and dispensed close to 1,97,000 spectacles overall benefitting close to 14 million people
since inception of Seeing is Believing by Standard Chartered programme. Group plans to declare
3000 villages blindness free and open 200 vision centres of which 58 will be futuristic over next 2
years. These vision centres are expected to benefit 6.8 million people.

Blindness can have a devastating economic impact on individuals, families and communities. SiB
raises funds to eliminate avoidable blindness, resulting in increased opportunities for education and
employment.

Seeing is Believing involves a comprehensive eye-care framework, which has been developed
through years of extensive research and draws on our credible implementing partners’ international
expertise and experience. It allows individuals across the community to gain access to affordable eye-
care services, such as vision screening, refraction, provision of spectacles and onward referrals to
tertiary care hospitals for more complicated conditions.

FUTUREMAKERS BY STANDARD CHARTERED

Investing in communities is one of the priorities of our Bank-wide sustainability strategy along with
contributing to sustainable economic growth and being a responsible company.

We have trained and employed thousands of people from the communities as Optometrists, Vision
Technicians and Health Workers across our projects in India. Standard Chartered's SiB programme
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is one of the pioneers in launching the Vision Centre model in India which can be replicated and
scaled-up.

Through 10 career academies, we are supporting youth to enter the work force, with training on BFSI
skills.

Through our employee, client and supplier networks, we promote awareness and employability of
people who are visually impaired.

WATER AND SANITATION - WASHE

WASHE (Water Sanitation Hygiene Education), is a powerful programme that aims to provide easy
access to safe water and improved toilet facilities as well as hygiene education for girls in municipal
schools.

Sanitation and hygiene are interconnected to girls’ health, need for privacy, dignity, safety and self-
respect. NGO trainers and health practitioners educate and empower adolescent girls through water
testing sessions, water harvesting, importance of menstrual hygiene, how to access the sanitary
napkin dispensing unit installed in the school, and hygienic disposal of napkins. Early education on
the importance of safe and clean water and forming personal hygiene habits can avert health loss or
death due to infection, pneumonia and water borne diseases such as diarrhea, cholera and
dysentery.

The programme gives girls access to walter, loilets, financial literacy and awareness on sanitation and
hygiene. Through WASHE, Standard Chartered has sparked local community action and greater
government involvement in the implementation of the programme.

WASHE is now expanding to provide technical analysis and solutions to drought ridden districts for
better water management and look to provide clean drinking water in villages which are devoid of the
same.

Our objective is to create a water-secure future by supporting fundamental scientific work and taking
an integrated approach to water resource management in drought-prone villages and providing clean
drinking water to those lacking access through solar water ATMs. We have provided clean drinking
waler through 64 solar water ATMs across 7 states. Over the next three years, we will support 75
villages, half of which will be in aspirational districts, spread over the states of Maharashtra,
Rajasthan, Madhya Pradesh, Uttar Pradesh and Punjab and impact the lives of overall 3,00,000
people.

EDUCATION

Education builds skills and productive communities and improves livelihoods. Our education initiatives
focus on building the financial capability of young people, with an emphasis on adolescent girls and
SMEs to help them make the most of the opportunities offered by economic growth.

Standard Chartered Bank is committed to a disciplined delivery of financial education curriculum to
girls. Through weekly sessions, they continue to provide coaching, mentoring, skill development,
computer and communication skills to transform students’ attitudes and behaviours towards life and
their careers.

EMPLOYEE VOLUNTEERING

We support the local communities by volunteering our time and seek to maximise our impact by

encouraging skill-based volunteering. All our employees are entitled to take up to three days paid
leave per year for volunteering.

EMERGENCY RESPONSE

Unforeseen disasters can significantly affect the economic, social and physical health of individuals
and communities. We support emergency relief and reconstruction efforts in our market.

WDl
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Globally, our strategic relief partners are The International Red Cross/Red Crescent Societies. These
organisations have long and reputable histories in supporting communities affected by disaster. Both
partners have global networks and are extremely effective at moving money to the right locations to
meet the highest priority needs as quickly as possible.

The company may partner with NGOs to make a difference among local communities.
COMPOSITION OF CSR COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the
company has constituted the CSR committee. The members of the committee are appointed by the
Board and consist of minimum 3 directors (comprising at least one Independent Director).

UNDERTAKING CSR ACTIVITIES

The company will undertake its approved CSR activities direclly or through such other
entity/organization as approved by the Board. Activities that are undertaken by the company in
pursuance of its normal course of business will not be considered as CSR activities. Any amount
directly or indirectly contributed towards any political party shall not be considered as CSR spend.
The Group as a matter of policy does not permit any donation by / to political party (ies.)

Surplus, if any, arising out of CSR projects or programs or activities will not be considered as
business profit of the Company.

MONITORING & REPORTING

CSR Committee will monitor the CSR activities of the Company. The Committee shall be responsible
for:

Identifying CSR Projects
Approving amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities
Adopt a transparent monitoring mechanism for implementation of CSR projects or
programs or activities undertaken by the Company
» reporting activities undertaken by the Company on annual basis

The Commitiee shall monitor the progress of the initiatives and make appropriate disclosures
(internal/external) on a periodic basis. As per the CSR rules, the contents of this CSR policy shall be
included in the Directors’ Report and the same shall be displayed on the company's website, if any.
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STANDARD CHARTERED CAPITAL LIMITED (“SC CAPITAL")
(FORMERLY STANDARD CHARTERED INVESTMENTS AND LOANS (INDIA) LIMITED)

Appointment and Remuneration Policy

Policy Title SC Capital Appointment and Remuneration Policy

Version Number 1.1

Applicability Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management as defined

in the Companies Act, 2013 and as amended from time to time and to other
employees of the Company as may be applicable.

Geography India

Status Current
Effective Date 1% April 2014
Review date 27 May 2022

-
|
UL Section 178 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies

{Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 requires SC Capital to
formulate a policy on the appointment and remuneration of the Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management.

Policy Statement 1. Criteria for determining the appointment of Senior Management
personnel:

In SC Capital, Senior Management consists of the heads of the business
and the functions. For appointment of Senior Management as well as
other levels of staff, appropriate Job Description (JD) are in place for
each of the roles which covers the level of education, skill and
| experience required for appointment. The appointments at each of the
| positions is made after due evaluation of the candidate for the role by the
respective Line Manager, Matrix Manager and the Human Resources.

2. Criteria for determining the appointment of Director

In SC Capital, the composition of the Board of directors is diversified and
apart from the Managing Director & CEO, who has substantial powers
for managing the affairs of the Company, includes representations from
Business, Governance and Risk from Standard Chartered Bank, India
being a Group Company.

3. Criteria for determining the appointment of an Independent
Director

With the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors)
Amendment Rules 2017 dated 5 July 2017 the following classes of
unlisted public company shall not be covered under sub-rule {1),
namely:-

(a) a joint venture;
(b) a wholly owned subsidiary; and

(c) a dormant company as defined under section 455 of the Act,

Do T
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Hence SC Capital is exempt to have INEDs on its Board by virtue of
being a wholly owned subsidiary.

However, if SC Capital lists any security (Equity shares or Debentures
on Stock Exchange) then the company shall have at least one-third of
the total number of directors as independent directors. Any fraction
contained in such one-third number shall be rounded off as one.

The candidature for appointment of Independent director would be
evaluated on basis of merit. While the appointment of each of the
directors would be placed before the Board after recommendations by
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the following would be
adhered to:

3.1 The Independent director shall possess appropriate skills, experience
and knowledge in one or more fields of finance, law, management, sales,
marketing, administration, research, corporate governance, technical
operations or other disciplines related to Company’s business.

3.2 The independent director in relation to SC Capital, shall mean a director
other than the managing director or whole-time director or nominee
director—

(a) who, in the opinion of the Board, is a person of integrity and possesses
relevant expertise and experience;

(b) {i) who is or was not a promoter of the company or its holding, subsidiary
or associate company;

(i} who is not related to promoters or directors in the company, its
holding, subsidiary or associate company;

(c) who has or had no 12 [pecuniary relationship, other than remuneration as
such director or having transaction not exceeding ten per cent. of his
total income or such amount as may be prescribed,] with the company,
its holding, subsidiary or associate company, or their promoters, or
directors, during the two immediately preceding financial years or during
the current financial year;)

{d)none of whose relatives—

(i) is holding any security of or interest in the company, its holding, subsidiary
or associate company during the two immediately preceding financial years
or during the current financial year:

Provided that the relative may hold security or interest in the company of face
value not exceeding fifty lakh rupees or two per cent. of the paid-up capital
of the company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company or such higher
surmn as may be prescribed;

(ii) is indebted to the company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company
or their promoters, or directors, in excess of such amount as may be
prescribed during the two immediately preceding financia! years or during the
current financial year;

(iii) has given a guarantee or provided any security in connection with the
indebtedness of any third person to the company, its holding, subsidiary or
associate company or their promoters, or directors of such holding company,
for such amount as may be prescribed during the two immediately preceding
financial years or during the current financial year; or

(iv) has any other pecuniary transaction or relationship with the company, or
its subsidiary, or its holding or associate company amounting to two per cent.
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or more of its gross turnover or total income singly or in combination with the
transactions referred to in sub-clause (i}, (ii) or {jii);]

() who, neither himself nor any of his relatives—
(i) holds or has held the position of a key managerial personnel or is or has
been employee of the company or its holding, subsidiary or associate
company in any of the three financial years immediately preceding the
financial year in which he is proposed to be appointed;

Y[Provided that in case of a relative who is an employee, the restriction under
this clause shall not apply for his employment during preceding three
financial years.]

(ii) is or has been an employee or proprietor or a partner, in any of the three
financial years immediately preceding the financial year in which he is
proposed to be appointed, of—
(A) a firm of auditors or company secretaries in practice or cost auditors of
the company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company; or
(B) any legal or a consulting firm that has or had any transaction with the
company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company amounting to ten per
cent. ar more of the gross turnover of such firm;

(iit) holds together with his relatives two per cent. or more of the total voting
power of the company; or

(iv) is a Chief Executive or director, by whatever name called, of any nonprofit
organisation that receives twenty-five per cent. or more of its receipts from
the company, any of its promoters, directors or ils holding, subsidiary or
associate company or that holds two per cent. or more of the total voting
power of the company;

(f} who possesses such other qualifications as may be prescribed, currently
as follows:

Qualifications of Independent Director

(1) An independent director shall possess appropriate skills, experience and
knowledge in one or more fields of finance, law, management, sales,
marketing, administration, research, corporate governance, technical
operations or other disciplines related to the company’s business. As per
Section 150 and Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directors Rules, 2014) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act
as amended from time to time, the Independent Director's name is required
to be included in the Independent Director's databank.

[(2) None of the relatives of an independent director, for the purposes of
sub-clauses (ii) and (jii) of clause (d) of sub-section (6) of section 149-

(i} is indebted to the company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company
or their promoters, or directors; or

(i} has given a guarantee or provided any security in connection with the
indebtedness of any third person to the company, its holding, subsidiary or
associate company or their promoters, or directors of such holding company,

for an amount of fifty lakhs rupees, at any time during the two immediately
preceding financial years or during the current financial year.]

4. Terms & Conditions for appointment of an Independent Director

4.1 The independent director shall at the first meeting of the Board in which
he participates as a director and thereafter at the first meeting of the
Board in every financial year or whenever there is any change in the
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circumstances which may affect his status as an independent director,
give a declaration that he meets the criteria of independence.

4.2 The Company and the Independent Directors shall abide by the
provisions specified in Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 which
lays down the code of conduct for independent directors.

4.3 An independent director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive
years on the Board of a company or such other term as may be
prescribed by the Board, but shall be eligible for re-appointment on
passing of a special resolution by the company and disclosure of
such appointment in the Board's report.

4.4 No independent director shall hold office for more than two consecutive
terms, but such independent director shall be eligible for appointment
after the expiration of three years of ceasing to become an independent
director:

Provided that an independent director shall not, during the said period of
three years, be appointed in or be associated with the company in any
other capacity, either directly or indirectly.

4.5 Any intermittent vacancy of an independent director shall be filled up by
the Board of SC Capital at the earliest but not later than immediate next
Board meeting or three months from the date of such vacancy,
whichever is later.

5. Criteria for deciding remuneration payable to directors, key
managerial personnel and other employees

The Standard Chartered Group's performance, reward and benefits
arrangements support and drive the Company’s business strategy and
reinforce our values in the context of a clearly articulated risk appetite and
One Bank framework, SC Capital rewards sustained performance over time
and decisions on pay are strongly based on differentiation both for sustained
performance and for behaviours.

The Group has a very clear focus on governance at a Board level also and
across the Group as a whole. The Board oversees performance and reward
issues on a top-down basis. The Remuneration Commiitee (*RemCo”) of the
Standard Chartered Group, comprises of independent directors of Standard
Chartered PLC, and undertakes a review of the Group’'s remuneration
practices against both the Prudential Regulation Authority and the Financial
Conduct Authority and the Financial Stability Board {(“FSB") principles and
has confirmed that it believes that SC Capital is fully aligned.

¢ Strong plan governance: The Standard Chartered Group RemCo and
other governance badies, play a leading role in making reward decisions
by providing independent oversight and strong governance with
appropriate input from control functions. Business specific reward plan
committees serve to formalise the involvement of Risk, Compliance and
Human Resources functions in compensation decision-making across
the Group.

+ Performance and reward decisions for the control functions
(including those of Risk, Compliance, HR and Legal) are determined
independent of the business; and control functions do not participate in
any business specific performance plans.

* The Standard Chartered Group already uses risk-adjusted profit as
the funding driver for the Group’s variable compensation spends, and
this measure is used to develop pools in the respective
businesses. Specifically, variable compensation is funded through a
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Risk Capital Adjusted Profit (‘RCAP") performance metric. RCAP is, by
its very nature, a conservative measure as it uses the higher of actual
and expected losses as well as the higher of Regulatory Capital and
Economic Capital in calculating Equity Credit and Capital Charges.

* |tisimportant to note that, although pools are funded as a percentage of
a risk adjusted performance, individual perdformance awards are not
determined formulaically. For example, all employees in Global Markets
are in the same incentive pool in order to ensure that appropriate team
behaviours are encouraged.

+» The Group has had a Bank-wide performance award (bonus) deferral
framework since 2008 which is applied for all employees irrespective of
business and location, All employees with a discretionary performance
award above a threshold, received a proportion of their award in
restricted shares to emphasise the importance of longer-term Group
performance.

s A portion of the total variable compensation of senior management is
delivered in the form of performance shares which only vest after three
years subject to the future satisfaction of performance measures like
Earnings Per Share (“EPS") and a risk aligned performance test in the
form of a return on risk weighted assets (“RoRWA"),

e The Group originally adopted a claw-back policy in November 2009 to
ensure alignment with the FSA's guidelines and this is reviewed
annually. ‘The Group claw-back policy reserves the right to claw-back
any deferred award (cash, restricted shares or performance shares) in
exceptional circumstances such as a material restatement of Group
financials or a significant failure in risk management or for example if the
employee has exhibited inappropriate values or behaviours.

The Group continues to review its remuneration practices in response to both
emerging best practice and market developments globally.

In respect of the remuneration payable to the Managing Director & CEO

of SC Capital, apart from Group Remuneration Policy, provisions of the
section 197 of the Companies act read with Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 shall also be complied
with.

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Independent director
shall not be entitled to stock options and may receive remuneration by way
of sitting fees within the limits as permitted by the Rules pursuant to the
Companies Act, 2013 for attending the meetings of the Board and the
Committees.

6. How does SC Capital ensure the following?

a. The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient
to attract, retain and motivate the directors of the quality required to run
the company successfully.

b. Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets
appropriate performance benchmarks; and

¢. Remuneration to directors, key rmanagerial personnel and senior
management involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay
reflecting short- and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the
working of the Company and its goals.

The commitment of SC Capital to its employees is to develop them,
recognise their contribution and reward their_success. _SC Capital's

Lol
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performance and reward philosophy and principles are those derived from
that followed by the Standard Chartered Group and guide the design and
operation of our programmes which support our business strategy and
reinforce our values. Through the reward practices, employees should be
motivated to focus on business and personal objectives, deliver and sustain
outstanding performance and act in-line with the Bank’s values. We have a
very competitive set of reward components and use a Total Reward
approach to bring these components together

To deliver this philosophy and principles SC Capital uses a Total Reward
approach. This takes into account the totality of the relationship between the
Group and its individual employees. It recognises that, while the financial
dimension is vital, the relationship has other elements that also contribute to
an outstanding employment experience. Total Reward encompasses both
tangible elements of reward, such as pay and benefits, as well as intangible
elements of reward such as learning and development and the work
environment.

All employees’ base salaries are reviewed annually. The Group policy for
employees, including Executive Directors, is that base salaries are set to take
account of market salaries as well as the performance of the
individual. Increases are, therefore, made on a person-by-person or job-by-
job basis. Where collective bargaining agreements exist, these are taken
into account. Excellent performance by both Group and individuals is
rewarded with higher annual performance awards (cash and deferred
elements) and, for senior managers, the delivery of performance share
awards.

The typical level of target variable compensation (i.e., cash and share
awards) increases the more senior the executive is. Furthermore, the
balance of shares to cash increases with seniority

In addition, employees are:

= eligible to participate in the Group's all-employee Share save
scheme; and

* receive core benefits based on local regulations and competitive
practice, which normally include retirement benefits, medical
insurance, life assurance and annual leave

Employees are required to agree both performance and values objectives at
the beginning of each year with their manager, detailing streiching
performance objectives with clear measures and targets. As part of this
process, employees are required to document how they will demonstrate the
Standard Chartered Group's values in their everyday working lives.

The Standard Chartered Group is also continuing its efforts to differentiate
further reward for performance:

* Consistently follow a total reward strategy that supports a high-
performance culture and disproportionally rewards high performers
who add the greatest value to the business; and

» Extract greater value from the Group's investment in rewards and
other benefits by developing a total compensation approach and
effectively communicating its benefits to employees, in-line with
best-in-class practice,

Reporting
Requirements

1) This policy and any subsequent amendment(s) thereto, shall be placed
on the website of the company

2) The salient features of the policy and changes therein along with the
web address of the policy shall be djselesad in the Board's report.
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3) Remuneration paid to Directors and Key Managerial Personnel shall be
reported in the Annual Return as on close of a financial year.

Other Related
Documents

1. Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013

Definitions under
the Companies Act,
2013

2. Section 2 (1B): “Chief Executive Officer” means an officer of a
company, who has been designated as such by it.

3. Section 2 (19): “Chief Financial Officer” means a person appointed
as the Chief Financial Officer of a company.

4. Section 2 {24). “company secretary” or “secretary” means a
company secretary as defined in clause (c) of sub-section (1) of
section 2 of the Company Secretaries Act, 1980 who is appointed
by a company to perform the functions of a company secretary
under this Act.

5. Section 2 (34): “director” means a director appointed to the Board
of a company.

6. Section 2 (51} “key managerial personnel”, in relation to a
company, means— (i) the Chief Executive Officer or the managing
director or the manager,(ii) the company secretary; (iii} the whole-
time director; (iv) the Chief Financial Officer; and (v) such other
officer, not more than one level below the directors who is in
whole-time employment, designated as key managerial personnel
by the Board; and (vi) such other officer as may be prescribed]

7. Section 2 (53): “manager” means an individual who, subject to the
superintendence, control and direction of the Board of Directors,
has the management of the whole, or substantially the whole, of
the affairs of a company, and includes a director or any other
person occupying the position of a manager, by whatever name
called, whether under a contract of service or not.

8. Section 2 (54). “managing director” means a director who, by
virtue of the articles of a company or an agreement with the
company or a resolution passed in its general meeting, or by its
Board of Directors, is entrusted with substantial powers of
management of the affairs of the company and includes a director
occupying the position of managing director, by whatever name
called.

9. Section 2 (78): “remuneration” means any money or its equivalent
given or passed to any person for services rendered by him and
includes perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act, 1961.

10. Section 2 (94): “whole-time director” includes a director in the
whole-time employment of the company.

10. Senior Management — As per the explanation given under section 178 of
the Companies Act 2013, Senior Management means personnel of the
company who are members of its core management team excluding Board
of Directors comprising all members of management one level below the
executive directors, including the functional heads.

Policy Owner
(name & titie)

Board of SC Capital.

Head — Human Resources, SC Capital and Company Secretary, SC Capital
would be responsible for carrying out changes in the Palicy document as may
be recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee from
time to time.

Approving
Authority

SC Capital Board
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FORM NO MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel Rules, 2014]

FOR THE PERIOD 01-04-2021 TO 31-03-2022

To,

Members,

STANDARD CHARTERED CAPITAL LIMITED
Floor no. 6, CRESCENZO Building, C-38/39, "G" Block,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East) Mumbai400051

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by STANDARD
CHARTERED CAPITAL LIMITED (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company
has, during the audit period covering 1%t April, 2021 to 31%t March, 2022 (“The
Reporting Period’’) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also
that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to
the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made herein after:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the audit period 1t April, 2021 to 31t March,
2022 according to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

ii. The Securities Contracts {(Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made




thereunder; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Period under review)

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws Framed thereunder;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made

thereunder to extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment

and External Commercial borrowings

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act'):-

d.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

- The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares

and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)

Regulations, 2015;

- The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

- The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)

Regulations, 2014; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Period under
review)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008;

- The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share

Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client- (Not applicable as the Company is not registered as Registrar to
an Issue and Share Transfer Agent during the period under review)

- The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)

Regulations, 2009- (Not applicable as the Company has not delisted its
equity shares from any stock exchange during the period under review)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 1998 Not applicable as the Company has not bought back any
of its securities during the period under review.)




We have relied on the representation made by the Company and its Officers for
systems and mechanism formed by the Company for compliances under other
applicable Acts, Laws and Regulations to the Company.

We are of the opinion that the management has complied with the following laws
specifically applicable to the Company:

1. RBI Act, 1934 & Directions, Guidelines and Circulars issued by RBI as
applicable to Systematically Important & Non-Deposit Accepting NBFC.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by Company with Bombay Stock
Exchange of India.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.

Company has framed Code of Practices and Procedures for fair disclosure of
unpublished price sensitive information.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes
in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act and Articles of
Association of the Company.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting,.

During the reporting period, following changes took place in Board of Directors and
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company:

* Resignation of Mr. Pradeep Chandra Iyer (DIN: 07352497) from the post of
Director with effect from 14th June, 2021;




¢ Mr. Siddhartha Sengupta (DIN: 08467648) was re-appointed as Non-Executive
Independent Director of the company for a second term of period of 3 years with
effect from 22/09/2021 upto the conclusion of the AGM of the Company to be
held in respect of the financial year 2024.

* Mr. Neil Percy Francisco (DIN: 08503971) was re-appointed as Non-Executive
Independent Director of the company for a second term of period of 3 years with
effect from 22/09/2021 upto the conclusion of the AGM of the Company to be
held in respect of the financial year 2024.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured
and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the company has following specific
events or actions in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations,
guidelines, standards, etc:

1. Payment of Interest on 29th May, 2021 and 26th July, 2021 for the Non-
Convertible Debentures;

A%

The Company has changed its name from Standard Chartered Investments and
Loans (India) Limited to Standard Chartered Capital Limited wef 27th October,
2021 and has adopted new set of Articles of Association as per the Companies
Act, 2013;

Place: Mumbai For Ragini Chokshi & Co.
: 27.05.2022
Date: 27.05.20 /Q K Aot

RaginiChokshi
(Partner)
C.P.No: 1436
FCS No: 2390
UDON: F002390D000407586
PR Certificate no.: 659/2020
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ANNEXURE[V TO THE DIRECTOR'S REPORT
STANDARD CHARTERED CAPITAL LIMITED
(Formerly known as Standard Chartered Investments and Loans (India) Limited)
FORM NO. AOC - 2 (for FY 2021-2022)
[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule
8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the Company
with the related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 including certain arms-length transactions under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis:

Sl | Name of | Nature of | Duratio | Salient Justifica | Date(s) | Amount | Date on
. | the contracts | n of features | tionfor | of paid as | which
N | related / contrac | of entering | approva | advanc | special
o. | party arrangem |ts/ contract | into | by the | es, if resolutio
and ents / arrange | s/ such Board any n was
nature of | transacti | ments/ | arrange | contract (f (9) passed
relations | ons transact | ments/ |s/ in
hip (b) ions transacti | arrange General
(a) (c) ons, ments / meeting
includin | transacti u/s
g value, | ons 188(1)
if any (e) (h)
{d)
None

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

T e Ve ~

iy ](}C"’/"':_/— paMe” {“@/‘.—%
Zarin Daruwala Prashant Kumar (£ ol
Director MD & CEO o/
(DIN 00034655) (DIN 08584379) Naod P

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 27, 2022
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Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis:’

FORM NO. AOC - 2 continued (for FY 2021-2022)

standard
chartered

Standard Chartered Capitol Limited
(Formerly “Standard Chartered Investments and Loans (India) Limited”)

{pfer—"—

p&
Registered Office: Crescenza, 6th Floor, C-38/39,G" Block, Bandra Kurla Complex. Bandra (East), Mumbai 40 CIEI ndlc:

CIN.US5990MH2003PLC142829 | Toll Free No - (91-22) 1800 209 0505 | Fax. (91-22) 61157825
Website: www.standardcharteredinvestmentsloans.coin | Email SCCapital customercaresisc.com

Si. | Name of Nature of | Duratio | Salient Justifica | Date(s) | Amount | Date on

No | the related | contracts | n of features of | tion for | of paid as | which

. partyand |/ contrac | contracts/ | entering | approv | advanc | special
nature of | arrangem {(ts/ arrangeme | into al by es, if resoluti
relationshi | ents/ arrange | nts/ such the any on was
p transacti | ments/ | transactio | contract | Board | (g) passed
(a) ons transac | ns, s/ (H in

(b) tions including | arrange General
(c) value, if ments / meeting
any transact u/s
(d) ions 188(1)
(e) (h)

1. Standard Premises on | April 1, | Agreement for | Optimum June 14, | Nil Not
Chartered rent 2021 o | office space at | utilisation of | 2021. required
Securities March 31, | Malaviya Smiiti | space Audit
(India) Limited 2022 Bhawan, DDU | available Committea
(SCSI) Marg, New | with the | approved

Delhi. Group as both in
Subsidiary  of . Company at | ordinary
same  parent Break up | arm's length | course and
co. appended pricing at arm's

below: length,

hence
Board

Rental  period: approval

from April 01, was  not

2021 to March required.

31, 2022.

Rent per sq. f.

212 and Rent

per month Rs.

71, 447

Property

Service

Charges As.

35,385/ (at the

rate of Rs. 105

per sq.ft per

month )

2. Standard Shifting of | NA Safe of assets | Optimum June 14, | Nil Not

Chartered Bank | chairs  from (staff chairs) utilisation of | 2021. required
SCB Delhi {o space Audit
Subsidiary of | SCILL available Committee
same parent | Chandigarh with ihe | approved
co. and Jaipur INR 47, 250/- | Group as both in
Company at | ordinary
am's length | course and
pricing at am's
length,
hence
Board
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standard
charltered

As per Section | | approval
2 (76) of was not
Companies Act, | required.
2013
Standard | Name 3 years | Name Optimum June 14, | Nil Not
Charlered | screening and | Due July Screening - | utilisation of | 2021. required
Global | monitoring 06, 2021 SCILL and GBS | space Audit
Business ! | FCSU SLA available Committee =
Services PvtLtd | i with the | approved
i Group as both in
Subsidiary  of | Company at | ordinary
same  parent ! 0.15 FTE Billing | arm's length | course and
co. | based on | pricing at  am's
| Transler Pricing length,
As per Section (annual pricing hence
2 (76} o letter of 1GS) Board
Companies Act, approval
2013 was not
| required.
Standard Creaticn and | 3 years GIC review & | Optimum June 14, | Nil Not
Chantered submission of submission for | utilisation of | 2021. | required
Global GIC and | Due August | CB & CIB space Audit
Business changes 01, 2021 available Committee
Services PvtLid Recharge of | with the | approved
INR 17,75,000/ | Group as both in
Subsidiary  of FTE/p.a Company at | ordinary
same  parent arm's length | course and
co. pricing at am's
length,
As per Section hence
2 (76) of Board
Companies Act, approval
2013 was not
required.
Standard Providing SCILL will | Secondment Optimum September | Nil Not
Chartered manpower o | second Arrangement utilisation of | 22, 2021. required
Bank, India | SCB India | employeas space Audit
{SCBW) CPBB  Risk | for a period | INR 4.35 Mn available Committee
team of 6 months | (6 Month | with the | approved
Branch of lo  SCBI | Period) Group as both In
Parent which can Company at | ordinary
be arm's length | course and
extended pricing at arm's
further length,
subject to hence
mutual Board
agreement approval
to extend was  not
between required.
both
parties
i
Standard Recharge of | One-time CRA engine | Optimum September | Nil i Not
Chartered Cost by CRA | contract Integration Cost | ufilisation of | 22, 2021. required
Bank, India team for CRA space Audit
integration available Committee
Branch of same | with Indus Up to INR 9.4 | with the | approved
parent co. Mn {exclusive Group as both in
of taxes) Company at | ordinary
amv's length | course and
pricing at arm's
length,
hence
Board
approval
was  not
required.
Standard Recharge of | On-going Clarity Project | Optimum September | Nil Not
Chartered Cost by Group Software utilisation of | 22, 2021, required
Bank, India for SCiLL's Charges space Audit
Project available Committee
updated in Up to INR with the | approved
Standard Chartered Capital Limited ! P )
(Formerly “Standard Ch:rtered Investments and Loans {India) Limited") :I_Fﬁ"i: WVO/’

Registered Office: Crescenzo, 6th Fioor, C-38,/39,"G" Black, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bondra (East), Mumbai 400
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standard

= chartered
Branch of same | Clarity 0760351 Mn | Group as both in
parent co. Software {exclusive Company at | ordinary ]
of taxes) arm's length | course and !
pricing at arm’s i
| length, |
| hence
i Board
approval
was  not
| required.

8. Standard BCRS Cost for | One-time Recharge of | Optimum November | Nil Not
Charered integration contract | Cost by BCRS | dfilisation of | 12, 2021. required
Bank, India | with Indus for team for BCRS | space Audit

| Group system integrati | available Committee
Reporiing and on with Indus | with the | approved
RWA | system Group as both in
Subsidiary  of | calculation of | Company at | ordinary
same parentco, | Loans ' UptoINR arm's length | course and
| 0.771945 Crs /- | pricing al  amm's
length,
| hence
. Board
approval
© was not
| |_tequired.

9 Standard To accept | Each Toraise Inter- | Optimum | November | Nil Not
Charterad Inter group | tranche Corporate - utilisation of | 12, 2021, required
Finance Private | corporate tenors Deposits (ICDs) | space Audit
Limited deposits varying available Committee

from 3 | Up to INR 100 | with the | approved
Subsidiary  of months to | Crs (in multiple | Group as both in
same  Parent 18 months | tranches) Company at | ordinary
co. arm's length | course and
pricing at am's
length,
hence
Board
approval
was  not |
required.

10 Standard Te accept | Each Toraise Inter- | Optimum November | Nil Not
Chartered Inter  group | tranche Corporate utilisation of | 12, 2021. required
(India} corporate tenors Deposits space Audit
Modeling and | deposits varying (ICDs) available Committee |
Analylics from 3 with the | approved
Centre Private months 1o | Up to INR 100 | Group as both in
Limited 18months | Crs (in multiple | Company at | ordinary

tranches) arm’s length | course and
pricing at amm's
Subsidiary of length,
same  Parent hence
co. Board
approval
was not
required.

1 Standard Towards 1 year Unsecured Optimum November | Nil Not
Chartered working short-term ufilisation of | 12, 2021. required
Securities capital facility space Audit
(India} Limited requirements available Committee

including Up to INR with the | approved
Group company ; meeting 130 Crores Group as both in
paying Company at | ordinary
obligations to arm’s length | course and
exchanges pricing at am’s
(BSE & NSE), length,
placing hence
margins  with Board
the exchanges approval
(BSE & NSE), was not
MTF funding. required.
|

Standard Chartered Capital Limited
(Formerly “Standard Chartered Investments aond Loans {India) Limited™")

Registered Office: Crescenzo, 6th Floor, C-38/39°G" Block, Bandra Kurfa Complex, Bandra {(East), Mumbqﬂ 4{]0 051. Indic
CIN.UE5990MH2003PLC142829 | Toll Free Mo.: (91-22) 1800 209 0505 | Fax (91-22) 6115 7825
Website: www standardcharteredinvestmentsioans.co.in | Email SCCapital customercareisc.com
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A standard
charlered

Standard Reimburseme | One-time Obsolescence Optimum February Nil Not
Chartered GBS | nt of expenses | contract Assessment utilisation of | 11, 2022. required
Malaysia paid to SCB (ASA) for Miles | space Audit
ISD team Vantage available Committee
through clarity application with the | approved
for getting Group as both in
Subsidiary  of | Miles INR  1,75,050 | Company at | ordinary
sama parent co. | obsolescence (exclusive of | amm's length | couwrse and
infra taxes) pricing at am's
| quotation. length,
| hence
Board
! approval
| was  not
L reguired.
| Standard Yet to be paid | One-ime | Obsolescence Optimum February Nil Not
! Chartered GBS | to SCB DB | contract Assessment utilisation of | 11, 2022. required
| Malaysia team through (ASA) for Milss | space Audit
clarity Vantage available Committee
application with the | approved
| Group as both in
| Subsidiary of INR 5,23,500 | Company at | ordinary
same parent co. | {exclusive of | arm's tength | course and
taxes) pricing at arm's
length,
hence
Board
approval
was not :
required. |
Standard Yet to be paid | One-time Obsolescence Optimum February | Nil Not
Chartered GBS | to SCB IPT & | contract Assessment utilisation of | 11, 2022. required
Malaysia TC team (ASA} tor Miles | space Audit
through clarity Vantage available Commitiee |
Subsidiary  of application with the | approved
sama parent co. Group as both in |
INR 45,000 | Company at | ordinary
{exclusive of | arm's length | course and
faxes) pricing at amm's
length,
hence
Board
approval
was  not
required.
Standard Yet to be paid | One-time Obsolescence Optimum i February Nil Not
Chartered GBS | to SCB | contract Assessment utilisation of | 11, 2022 required
Malaysia Platform team (ASA) for Miles | space | Audit
through Vantage available Committee
fimesheet application with the | approved
Group as both in
Subsidiary  of Company at | ordinary
same parent co. arm's length | course and
INR 90,000 | pricing at  arm's
{exclusive  of length,
taxes) hence
Board
approval
was not
rgquired.
Standard Yet to be paid | One-time Obsolescence Optimum February Nil Not
Chartered GBS | to §CB | contract Assessment utilisation of | 11, 2022. required
Malaysia Webapp team (ASA) for Miles | space Audit
through clarity Vantage available Committee
Subsidiary of application with the | approved
same parent co. Group as both in
Company at | ordinary
arm’s length | course and
INR 135000 pricing at am's
(exclusive  of length,
taxes hence
Board
approval
was not
m!zgd; i

Standard

hartered Capital Limited

(Formeriy “Stundurd Chartered Investments and Locms (India) Limited™)

CIN UéSQ?OMHZOOBPLCl&ZBZ‘? | Toll Ftee No (91 22) 1800 209 0505 | Fax: (91-22) 6115 7825
Website: www.standardcharteredinvestmentsloans coin | Email SCCapital.customercare::

C.Ccom




INTERNAL

standard
chartered

GNS RT Team

Standard | 1year - Recharge of | Optimum February Nil Not-
Chartered i Cost for Cost by GNS | utilisation of | 11, 2022, required
Bank, India Integration team for GNS | space Audit
with Indus for RT system | available Committee
Subsidiary ol | client Name integration with | with the | approved
same parentco. | Screening as Indus systern Group as both in |
per Group Company at | ordinary
standards Up 1o INR arm’s length | course and |
5,624,744/- pricing at am's
length,
hence
Board
approval
was  not
required.

14 Standard Providing Extension Extension  of | Optimum February Nil Not
Chartered manpower fto | of the | Secondment utilisation of | 11, 2022. required
Bank, India | SCB India | secondmen & Arrangement | space Audit

| (SCBI) | CPBB  Risk |t ! between SCCL | available Committes
| team agreement | and SCBI with the | approved
Branch of | upto  May Group as both in
Parent 31, 2022. INR 3.54 Mn Company at | ordinary
(5 Month | arm's length | course and
Period) pricing | at  arm's
length,
hence
| Board
approval
was not
required.

15 Standard To utilize Debt | One-time Appointment as | Optimum March 15, | Nil | Not
Chartered Arrangement contract Lead Manager | utilisation of | 2022 | | required
Bank, India services for an NCD | space Audit |

Issuance of INR | available Commitiee |
150 Crs with the | approved
Group as both in
Branch of same Company at | ordinary
parent arm’'s langth | course and
company INR  15,00,000 | pricing at arm's
(exclusive  of fengih,
taxes) hence
| Board
approval
| was  not
i | required.

' All Related party transactions as presented and approved /discussed by Audit / Board are
given above.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

‘ELPJ' Po»;:’_‘iy & L(E\?QW

Zarin Daruwala
Director
(DIN 00034655)

Prashant Kumar
MD & CEO
(DIN 08584379)

Place: Mumbai . ‘
Date: May 27, 2022
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KKC & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
(Formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)

Independent Auditor’s Report

To

The Members of

Standard Chartered Capital Limited

{(formerly known as Standard Chartered Investments and Loans (India) Limited)

Report on the audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Standard Chartered Capital Limited
(formerly known as Standard Chartered Investments and Loans (India) Limited) (“the Company”},
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the statement of profit and loss (including
other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (“the Financial Statements”).

2. Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and its profit
and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3.  Weconducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act, and the rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion on the Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the Financial Statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below
to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Sunshine Tower, Level 19, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road, Mumbai 400013, India
T: +91 22 6143 7333 E; info@kkelp.in W: www. kke.in

Suite 52, Bombay Mutual Building, Sir Phirozshah Mehta Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400001, India
LLPIN- AAP-2267




KKC & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
{(Formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)

Sr. No Key Audit Matter How the Key Audit Matter was addressed in
our audit
1 Provisioning based on Expected Credit Loss model (“ECL”) under Indian Accounting

Standard (“Ind AS”) 109 and testing of Impairment of assets, more particularly the Loan

Book of the Company

Refer to the accounting policies in ‘Note 2.7 to the Ind AS Financial Statements: Impairment of

Financial Assets including Expected Credit Loss’ and ‘Note 29 to the Ind AS Financial

Statements: Risk Management’.

Subjective estimates: Our key audit procedures included:

Under Ind AS 109, “Financial Instruments”, | > Reviewing board approved policies for

allowance for loan losses are determined using Impairment of financial Instruments and

expected credit loss (‘ECL’) estimation model. assessing compliance with the policiesin

The estimation of ECL on financial instruments terms of Ind AS 109;

involves significant judgement and estimates.

The key areas where we identified greater | > Understanding the ECL estimation

levels of management judgement and process and testing the design and

therefore increased levels of audit focus in the operating effectiveness of key controis

Company’s estimation of ECLs are: around data extraction and validation;

e Datainputs-Theapplicationof ECLmodel | > Testing the operating effectiveness of
requires several data inputs. This the controls for stage-wise bifurcation of
increases the risk of completeness and product-wise portfolios along with
accuracy of the data that has been used to timely ascertainment of stress and early
create assumptions in the model. warning signals;

* Model estimations - Inherently | > Reviewing the rationales used by the
judgmental models are used to estimate Company for determining the PD and
ECL which involves determining LGD rates;

Probabilities of Default (“PD"), Loss Given

Default (“LGD"), and Exposures at Default | » Checking the completeness and
(“EAD"). The PD and the LGD are the key accuracy of the source data used and
drivers of estimation complexity in the along with appropriateness of
ECL and as a result are considered the collateral values basis the latest
most significant judgmental aspect of the valuation reports and lien
Company’s modelling approach. confirmations;

¢ Economic scenarios - Ind AS 109 requires | » Undertook enquiries with the
the Company te measure ECLs on an management to assess the impact of
unbiased forward-looking basis reflecting COVID-19 pandemic on the business
a range of future economic conditions. activities of the Company and it’s loans
Significant management judgement is portfolio;
applied in determining the economic
scenarios used and the probability | > Testing of review controls over

Sunshine Tower, Level.19, Senapati‘ Bapat Marg, ElPhinstone Road, Mumbai 400013, India 55 ocC )
T: +9122 61437333 E: info@kkcllp.in W: www kke.in Ao B\
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KKC & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
(Formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)

weights applied to them.

The underlying assumptions used in the
estimates of impairment loss allowance are
subject to uncertainties which are often
outside the control of the Company. Given the
size of loan portfolio relative to the balance
sheet and the impact of impairment
allowance on the financial statements, we
have considered this as a key audit matter,

Disclosures:

The disclosures (including disclosures
prescribed by RBI) regarding the Company's
application of Ind AS 109 are key to explaining
the key judgements and material inputs to the
Ind AS 109 ECL results.

measurement of provisions and
disclosures in the Ind AS Financial
Statements.

Substantive verification;

» Sample testing over key inputs, data

and assumptions impacting ECL
calculations to assess the
completeness, accuracy and relevance
of data and reasonableness of
economic forecasts, weights, and
model assumptions applied.

Model calculations testing through re-
computation.

Testing the arithmetical accuracy of
the computation of ECL provision
performed by the Company In
spreadsheets

Assessing whether the disclosures on
key judgements, assumptions and
quantitative data with respect to
impairment of loans in the Ind AS
Financial Statements are appropriate
and sufficient.

Other Information

Sunshine Tower, Level 19, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Read, Mumbai 400013, India

T:+91 22 6143 7333 E:info@kkellp.in W: www.kke.in

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report but does not include the
Financial Statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The Other Information is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the Financial Statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

Suite 52, Bombay Mutual Building, Sir Phirozshah Mehta Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400001, India
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Chartered Accountants

(Formerly Khi

8.

10.

miji Kunverji & Co LLP)
agement's responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act,
with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs, profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud orerror.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

11.

12,

Sunshine Tower, Level 19, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road, Mumbai 400013, India
T: +91 22 6143 7333 E: info@kkellp.in W: www.kke.in

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as awhole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

12.1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

12.2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal

Suite 52, Bombay Mutual Building, Sir Phirozshah Mehta Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400001, India
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(Formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)

financial controls with reference to Financial Statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

12.3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

12.4. Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

12.5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

13. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

14. Wealso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

15. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the current year and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Other Matter

16. The comparative financial statement of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2021 included in the
Financial Statements, were audited by erstwhile statutory auditors whose reports dated 14 June 2021
expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Our opinion is not modified in respect
of this matter.
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Chartered Accountants
{(Formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

17. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A"
astatement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

18. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

18.1.

18.2.

18.3.

18.4,

18.5.

18.6.

18.7,

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2} of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B”.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions
of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid
down under Section 197 of the Act.

19. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

19.1.

19.2,

Sunshine Tower, Level 19, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road, Mumbai 400013, India
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The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2022 oniits financial
position in its Financial Statements - Refer Note 46.1 to the Financial Statements;

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or Ind AS, for material
foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts - Refer Note
46.2 to the Financial Statements;
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19.3,

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company

19.4. The management has represented that no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested

19,5,

19.6.

(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to orin any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly orindirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. Based on reasonable
audit procedures adopted by us, nothing has come to our notice that such representation
contains any material misstatement.

The management has represented that no funds have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. Based on reasonable audit procedures adopted
by us, nothing has come to our notice that such representation contains any material
misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

For KKC & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)

Firm Registration Number: 105146W/W100621

4 é/'-
i

Vinit K Jain

Partner

ICAI Membership No: 145911

UDIN:22145%11AJSUNQ5560

Place: Mumbai
Date; 27 May 2022
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements of Standard Chartered
Capital Limited (formerly known as Standard Chartered Investments and Loans (India) Limited) for
the year ended 31 March 2022

(Referred to in paragraph 17 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

As required by the Companies {Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act and as per the information and
explanation provided to us, we give a statement on the matters Specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent applicable.

L
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(a)

(b)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment (“PPE").

The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its PPE by which all PPE are
verified annually. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In our opinion, and according to
the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of the immovable property are held in the name
of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued its
PPE (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

Since the Company is in the business of providing loans and does not have any physical
inventories. Accordingly, the provision stated in paragraph 3(ii}(a) of the Order is not applicable
toit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
audit procedures performed by us, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of rupees five crore, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions which are secured
on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly returns or statements filed by the
Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account
of the Company.
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iii..

(a)

(b)

Since the Company’s principal business is to give loans, the provisions of clause 3{jii)(a) of the
Order are not applicable toiit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the investments
made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans
and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the
Company’s interest.

(c)&(d) The Company, being a Non-Banking Financial Company (‘NBFC’), registered under provisions

Sunshine Tower, Level 19, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road, Mumbai 400013, India
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(e)

(f)

of RBI Act, 1934 and rules made thereunder, in pursuance of its compliance with provisions of
the said Act/Rules, particularly, the Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning
Norms, monitors repayments of principal and payment of interest by its borrowers as
stipulated. Note 1.C.2 to the Standalone Financial Statements explains the Company’s
accounting policy relating to impairment of financial assets which include loan assets. In
accordance with the policy, loan assets

with the gross balance as at 31 March 2022, aggregating Rs.1,451 lacs were categorised as credit
impaired (‘Stage 3’) and Rs. 32,856 lacs were categorised as those where the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition (‘Stage 2’) and Rs. 407,040 lacs were categorised
as those where the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition {‘Stage 1'),
refer disclosure made with respect to credit quality in note 6.1 to the Financial Statements. In
cases where repayment of principal and payment of interest is not received as stipulated, the
cognizance thereof is taken by the Company in course of its periodic regulatory reporting.
Reasonable steps taken by the Company for recovery thereof. Having regards, to the nature of
business and information involved, it is impracticable to provide the list of loan assets where
delinquencies in the repayment of principal and interest have been identified.

Since the Company’s principal business is to give loans, the provisions of paragraph 3(iii){e) of
the Order are not applicable to it.

Based on our audit procedures and the information and explanation made available to us, the
Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not either directly or indirectly, granted any loan to any of its directors or to any other personin
whom the director is interested, in accordance with the provisions of section 185 of the Act and
the Company has not made investments through more than two layers of investment
companies in accordance with the provisions of section 186 of the Act. Accordingly, provisions
stated in paragraph 3(iv} of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits from the public to which the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the
provisions of Section 73 to Section 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules
framed there under apply. No order has been passed by the Company Law Board or National
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vi.

vii.

(a)

(b)

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub section
(1) of section 148 of the Act for any of the services rendered by the Company. Accordingly, the
provision stated in paragraph 3 (vi} of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, amounts
deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including
Goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues
have generally been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities in all
the cases during the year except for the following :

(INR Lacs)
Name of the Statute Nature of | Amount | Period to | Due Date Date of
the Dues which the Payment

amount

relates
The Gujarat State Tax on | Profession | 0.016 November | 15* of | -
Professions, Trades, | Tax 2021 to | subsequent
Callings and Employment March month
Act, 1976 2022

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, Goods and Services Tax,
duty of

customs, cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2022 for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, we confirm that
the following dues of Goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any
other statutory dues, have not been deposited to/with the appropriate authority on account of
any dispute.

(INRLacs)
Name of the | Natureof | Amount | Period to Forum where Remarks, if
Statute the Dues which the dispute is any
amount pending
relates
Income-tax | Income Tax | 0.18 AY 2007-08 Income Tax | -
Act, 1961 Appellate
Tribunal
Sunshine Tower, Level 19, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road, Mumbai 400013, India Xors)
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viii.

(a)

Name of the | Nature of | Amount | Period to Forum where Remarks, if
Statute the Dues which the disputeis any
amount pending
relates

Income-tax | Income Tax | 8.80 AY 2008-09 Commissioner of

Act, 1961 Income Tax
Appeal

Income-tax | IncomeTax | 2.76 AY 2011-12 Commissioner of | -

Act, 1961 Income Tax
Appeal

Income-tax | Income Tax | 325.14 AY 2012-13 Commissioner of | -

Act, 1961 Income Tax
Appeal

Income-tax | Income Tax | 104.01 AY 2013-14 Commissioner of | -

Act, 1961 Income Tax
Appeal

Income-tax Income Tax | 73.21 AY 2014-15 Commissioner of | -

Act, 1961 Income Tax
Appeal

Income-tax | Income Tax | 62.69 AY 2015-16 Commissioner of

Act, 1961 Income Tax
Appeal

Income-tax | Income Tax | 29.92 AY 2018-19 Commissioner of | -

Act, 1961 Income Tax
Appeal

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions which are
not accounted in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in Tax Assessment of the Company. Also, there are no previously unrecorded
income which has been now recorded in the books of account. Hence, the provision stated in

paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings to
financial institutions, banks, government and dues to debenture holders or in the payment of

interest thereon to any lender.

Sunshine Tower, Level 19, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road, Mumbai 400013, India
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(b)

(c)

(d)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority or any other lender.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for the purposes for which
they were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by
us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that
no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e)&(f) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures. Accordingly, the

Xi.

Xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

Sunshine Tower, Level 19, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road, Mumbai 400013, India
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(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(a)

(a)

(a)

(b)

provisions of the clauses (ix){e)&(f) of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did
not raise money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, The Company
has not made any preferential allotment / private placement of shares / fully / partly / optionally
convertible debentures during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there has been
no fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company that has been noticed or reported during
the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no report under
sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections
177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in
the financial statements as required by the applicable Ind AS.

In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date, for the period
under audit in accordance with the guidance provided in SA 610 “Using the work of internal
Auditors”.
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XV.

{a)

Xvi.

(b)

(c)

(d)

xvii,

xviii.

Xix.

(a)

XX.

(b)
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According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors. Accordingly, paragraph 3({xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company. and hence provisions of section 192 of the Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

The Company is required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934 and the Company has obtained the required registration.

The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without obtaining a valid CoR from the Reserve Bank of india as per the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (“CIC”) as defined under the Regulations by
the Reserve Bank of India.

As per information provided in course of our audit, the group to which the Company belongs,
does not have CIC.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

During the year, M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, the statutory auditors of the Company have
resigned with effect from 12 November 2021 consequent to amended rules/regulations
applicable to the Company (viz. vide RBI circular dated 27 April 2021). As informed, there have
been no issues, objections or concerns raised by said outgoing auditors.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, it is not required to transfer any unspent amount pertaining to the year
under report to a Fund specified in Schedule VI to the Act in compliance with second proviso to
section 135(5) of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, there is no amount which is remaining unspent under section 135(5)
of the Act pursuant to any ongoing CSR project.
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xxi. Reporting under clause xxi of the Order is not applicable as the same is required to be reported
only in case of consolidated financial statement.

For KKC & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)

Firm Registration Number: 105146W/W100621

)gf
Vinit K Jain
Partner

ICAIl Membership No: 145911
UDIN: 22145911AJSUNQS560

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27 May 2022
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Arinexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Financial Statements of Standard Chartered
Capital Limited (formerly known as Standard Chartered Investments and Loans (India) Limited) for
thheyear ended 31 March 2022

(Referred to in paragraph 18.6 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
re port of even date)

Rezport on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid Financial Statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

Opinion

1,

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements of Standard
Chartered Capital Limited (formerly known as Standard Chartered Investments and Loans {India)
Limited) (“the Company”) as at 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with
reference to the Financial Statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively
as at 31 March 2022, based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“the Guidance Note”).

Management’s responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

3

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's responsibility

4,

Sunshine Tower, Level 19, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road, Mumbai 400013, India
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Ourresponsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference
to the Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing (“SA”), prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial
Statements. Those SAs and the Guidance Note require that we comply with the ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements were established and maintained and
whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Ouraudit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to the Financial Statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements
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ncluded obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial
Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstaterment
of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to the Financial
Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements

7.

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to the Financial
Statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements

8.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with referance to the Financial
Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial
Statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For KKC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 105146W/W100621

o

e

Vinit K Jain CHARTERED

Partner
ICAI Membership No: 145911
UDIN: 22145911AJSUNQ5560

ACCOUNTANTS

Place: Mumbai

Date: 27 May 2022
Sunshine Tower, Level 19, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road, Mumbai 400013, India
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To

The Members of

Standard Chartered Capital Limited

{formerly known as Standard Chartered Investments and Loans (India) Limited)

Introduction

1. We have audited the books of accounts and other relevant records of Standard Chartered Capital
Limited (formerly known as Standard Chartered Investments and Loans (India) Limited) (‘the
Company’) for the year ended 31 March 2022. We have been requested by the Company to report on
matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor’s report (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2016, DNBS. PPD.03/66.15.001/2016-17 (“RBI Auditors Report Directions”) dated 29
September 2016, for submission to the Reserve Bank of India (the “RBI").

Management Responsibility for the Compliance

2. The preparation and maintenance of all accounting and other relevant supporting records is the
responsibility of the Company’s Management under the Companies Act, 2013, the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 (the “RBI Act”) and the Compliance with the RBI Auditors Report Directions,
requirement of the applicable RBI Circular/Master Directions (RBI Directions) and for providing all the
relevant information to the RBI.

3. This includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls relevant to ensure compliances with the RB! Directions.

Auditors’ Responsibility

4. Our responsibility is to report on matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the RBI Auditors Report
Directions for the year ended 31 March 2022 based on our assurance procedures.

5. We have conducted our procedure in accordance with the ‘Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates
for Special Purposes (Revised 2016)’ and Engagement Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl) in so far as applicable for the purpose of this Report which includes the test
checks and materiality. This Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of
the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI and plan and perform the assurance procedures on matters
covered by paragraph 3 and 4 of the RBI Auditors Report Directions.

6. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of Standard on Quality Control {SQC) 1,
Quality Control for Firms that perform Audit and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other
Assurance and Related Service Engagements.

7. Our assurance procedures were performed to obtain audit evidence about matters covered by
paragraph 3 and 4 of the RBI Auditors Report Directions. The procedures selected depend on auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the assertions on
matters covered by paragraph 3 and 4 of the RBI Auditors Report Directions, whether due to fraud or

Sunshine Tower, Level 19, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road, Mumbai 400013, India
T:+91 22 6143 7333 E: info@kkcllp.in W: www.kke.in
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KKC & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
{Formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)

error. In making the risk assessments, the auditor considers the internal control relevant to entity’s
monitoring of the compliance process in respect of matters covered by paragraph 3 and 4 of the RB!
Auditors Report Directions in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of entity’s internal
controls. Our work was planned to verify how each item specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the RBI
Directions, within our assurance scope, was complied with by the management of the company.

We believe that we have obtained audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion

8. Forthe purpose of this report, we have planned and performed the following procedures:

Opinion

i)
i)

iii)
iv)

v)

Obtained an understanding of procedures of the Company in course of its compliance with RBI
Directions.

Obtained copy of certificate of registration {*COR’).

The data/details reported by the Company in terms of the RBI Directions were verified from the
books of account, audited financial statements and other relevant records.

Obtained copy of resolution passed at the meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company
regarding non-acceptance / holding of public deposits.

Verifying the criteria as per RBI Directions for classification of NBFCs as NBFC - Micro Finance
Institution.

9. On the basis of our assurance procedures carried out as aforesaid, we report as under:

Sunshine Tower, Level 19, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road, Mumbai 400013, India
T: +91 22 6143 7333 E:info@kkellp.in W: www.kkc.in

i)

ii)

iii)
iv)
v)

vi)

vii)

The Company is engaged in the business of Non- Banking Financial Institution as defined in
section 45IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and has obtained CoR bearing No. N-13.01756
dated 13 December 2021 from the RBI.

The Company is entitled to hold CoR based on its assets/income pattern as on 31 March 2022
which has been computed in manner laid down in RBI Circular No. DNBS (PD) C.C. NO. 81/
03.05.002/ 2006-07 dated 19 October 2006.

The Company has complied with the net owned funds requirement as laid down in the RBI
Directions.

The Board of Directors of the Company have passed a resolution for non-acceptance/holding of
public deposits.

The Company has not accepted any public deposit during the year ended 31 March 2022,

The Company has complied with the prudential norms relating to income recognition,
accounting standards, asset classification and provisioning for bad and doubtful debts as
applicable to it during the financial year ended 31 March 2022, in terms of RBI Directions.

The Capital Adequacy Ratio (CRAR) of the Company as on 31 March 2022 has been correctly
computed and is in compliance with the requirements of maintaining minimum CRAR of 15% as
prescribed by the RBI.

viii) Based on the criteria set forth by RBI in paragraph 3 (xx) of the Master Directions for classification

of NBFCs as NBFC - Micro Finance Institution (‘NBFC-MFI’), the Company does not meet the
criteria to be classified as NBFC-MFI as defined in the aforesaid Master Directions, with reference
to the business carried on by it during the year ended 31 March 2022.

Suite 52, Bombay Mutual Building, Sir Phirozshah Mehta Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400001, India

LLPIN- AAP-2267




KKC &= Associates LLP

Charter ed Accountants
(Formerly r<himji Kunverji & Co LLP)

107 This Report has been issued at the request of the Company solely for the purpose of submission by
Company to the RBI pursuant to Master Directions issued by the RBI and should not be used for any
other purpose or by any person other than the addressees of this report. We do not accept or assume
any liability or duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this certificate is
shown or into whose hands it may come except where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Fo rkKKC & Associates LLP

Ch artered Accountants

(forrmerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)

Fir mRegistration Number: 105146W/W100621

VinitK Jain Q\Accouvragrs
Partner

Me mbership Number: 145911
UDIN: 22145911A)STPW9S571
Place: Mumbai

Date: 27 May 2022

Of CHarTERED
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PUBLIC

Standard Chartered Capital Limited
{lormerty known as Standard Chartered Investments and Loans (India} Limited)
{A whelly owned subsidiary of Standard Charterad Bank, United Kingdom)
CIN: Us5980MH200IPL.C142829

Statement of Assets and Liabllities

{INR Lacalk

Particulars Note No. As at March 31, 2022 | As at March 31, 2021
Assets

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 4 20,025 7,763
Receivaties: Trade Aeceivables <] [ 3
Loans 6 438812 298,140
Invesimenis 7 - 5,252
Other Financial assets 8 228 7
INon-financial Assets

Current Tax Assels [} 9,349 13,510
Deforrad Tax Assets (Net} 10 794 ara
Property, Plant and Equipmant 1" 623 346
Intangible assets under development 261 623
Capital Work in Progress 26 -
Other Intangible Assets 12 151 192
Othar non-linancial assets 13 335 265
Total assets 470,611 327,238 |

Liabilities and Equity

Liabilities

Financial Liabilities

Payables 14

Trade Payables

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - .
(ii} total cutstanding dues of creditors othar than micro entarprses and small enlerprisey - =
Debl Securities 15 267,608 175,308
Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 16 86,975 42,786
Inter Corporate Deposits 17 5419 3,097
Subordinated Liabilities - -
Other linancial liabilities 18 1,452 1.860
Non-financial liabilities

Currant tax liabilities g 2.009 6214
Provisions 19 314 273
Qther non-financial liabilities 20 242 159
Tolal liabilities 364,019 229,687
Equity

Equity share capital 21 45439 45439
Ciher equity 61,153 52.102
Total equity 106,582 97,541
Total liabilities and equity 470,611 327,238

The accompanying noles 1 to 92 are an integral part of the financial statemnents
Ag per our report attached.

For KKC & Aasociates LLP

Chartared Accountants

(Formerty Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)

LICA! Firn Registration No: 105345W/W 100621

Vidit Jain
Pariner
Membaership No: 145911

(Formeny known as Slandard Chart

1D onoe™

Zarin Daruwala
Director
DIN No: 00034655

May 27, 2022

Mumbai COQACFOQ Company Secretary
ACA. 117771 ACS. 22437
May 27, 2022
Mumbal

For and on behalf of the Board of Directora of
Standard Chartered Capital Limited
Investments and Loans {India)
Limited)|

St

Prashant Kumar
MD & CEQ
DIN No: 08584379




FLBLIC

Standard Chartered Capitsl Limited
{fermety known as Standard Charierad Investments and Loans {India) Limited)
(A wholly owned subsidiary of Stancard Chartered Bank, United Kingdom)
CIN: Us5930MH2603PLC142829

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

{INR Lacs)
Particulars Note No. Yeor Ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Aevenue from cperations
Interest Income 22 30,603 25310
Fee and Commission 124 107
Total Revenue from operations 0,727 25417
Other Income 23 19 98
Total Income 30,746 25515
Expenses
Finance Costs 24 15,051 12,225
Impaitment losses on financial instruments 25 {1,087) 1,355
Employae banefits 26 2459 1,894
Depreciation and amorlisalion expensa 27 343 258
{Other expensas 28 1,79 1,174
Total Expenses 18,557 16,506
Profit before tax 12,188 8,609
Tax Expense: 35
(1} Cument Tax 2.923 2,358
(2} Defemed Tax 189 {145)

3112 2,212
Profit after tex for the year 9,077 6,395
Other Comprahensive Income
(i} tterns that will not b reclassified to profit or loss 38 31
- Remeasurements of the dafined banelit plans (38
(ii} Income tax relating to items that will not be . .
reclassitied to prolit or loss @
Other Comprehensive Income {28} 22
Total Comprehensive Income lor the year 9049 6,418
Earnings per equity share
Basic {INR} 200 1.4
Diluted {INR) 200 1.41

The accompanying notes 1 o 92 are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report attached.

For KKC & Associatea LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountanis Standard Chartered Capital Limited
s " {Formerly known as Standard rterad Investmenis and Loans|

(Formery Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP) {india) Limited)

|'CAI Firm Registration No: 105146WAN 100621

¥ e 7 L

Vinit Jain Zarin Daruwala Prashant Kumar
Partner Director MD & CEO
|Membership No: 145911 - DIN No: 00034655 DIN No: 08584379
May 27, 2022 ?riya n:i:’-’ RicherSRan |
Mumbai CO0 & CFO Company Secretary
ACA 1171 ACS 32437
May 27, 2022

Mumbai

T




PUBLIC

Slandard Chartered Capital Limited
{formerly known as Standard Chartered Invesiments and Loans (ndis) Limited)
(A wholly owned.subsidiary of Standard Chartsred Bank, United Kingdom)
CIN: UGS990MH2003PLC142829
Cash Flow Statement
{INA Lacs)|

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2022 Year ended March 31, 2021
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 12,189 8,609
Adjusiments for:
Write off / Write back (Net) 218 190
Finance Cost an Lease 13, 8
Earty Termination of Leases i9) 9]
Interest on Fixed Deposits (252) {360)
Intarest accrued on Investments L (280)
impairment on financial instrumants (Net) {1,087) 1,355
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 343 258]

11,415 9.7
Working capital changes:
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables i5) 66
(increase)/decrease in Loans {139,590) {93.760)
Increase/ {Decrease) in other financial & non financial liabilities (622) €83
Increase/(Decrease) in other financial assets {55} §73
Increase/(Decrease) in other non- financial assets (287) {321)
Nel cash llows Irom operations (129,144) {82,568)
Income taxes( paid)/ refund {2,965) {1,565)
Net cash flows from/f{used in) operating activities {132,109} {84,153)
Cash flows from investing aclivities
interest received on Fixed deposits 253 3601
Proceeds on maturity of investment held at amortised cost 5,280 11,517
Investments in Detl Securities - {5.000)
Putchase o Property. plant and equipment (700 {(17)
Purchase of Intangible assets 120 (257)
Net cash flows fromi{used in) invesiing activilies 5,592 6,603
Cash Mlows from financing aclivities
Issué of Inter Corporate Deposits 7.210 3.700
Repayment i Inter Corporate Deposits (4.875) {5,626)
Proceeds trom Issue ol Non Convertible Debentures - 20,849
Proceeds trom Issue of Commercial Papers 402 300 322,423|
Repayment of Commercial Papers (310.000) {286,500)
Issue of Borrowings (Working Capital Loans) 124,200 37,700
Repayment cf Borrowings (Working Capital Loans) {80,012) {25,860)
Lease rental paid {42) (24)
Net cash flows frem/{used in) financing activities 138,779 66,662
Net incresse in cash and cash aquivalents 12,262 {to,80a)|
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 7.763 18.651
Cash in hand at the end of the end of the yaar . -
Cash equivalents al the end of the year 20,025 7,763|

The accompanying notes 1 to 92 are an integral part of the financial statements

(Farmerly Khimjl Kunverji & Co LLP)
ICA! Finm Registration No. 105146W/W 100621

-
(J

>

{Formerly known as Standard Cha

Ag per our report attached.
For KXC & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Standard Chartered Capital Limited

d vestments and Loans (India} Limited)

Vinit Jain
Pariner
Membership No: 145811

May 27, 2022 Priya Ranjit
|Mumbai COD&CFO
ACA: 117771
May 27, 2022
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Prashant Kumar
MD & CEQ
DIN No: 08584379
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Diractor
DIN No: 00034655
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PUBLIC

Standard Chertered Capital Limited
(formerly known as Standard Chartered Investments and Loans (India) Limited)
(A wholly owned subsidiary of Standard Chartered Bank, United Kingdom)
CIN: U&5930MH2003PLC142029 h
Statemant of Changes in Equity
A Equity Share Caphtal
- *
Changes in
Batance st begioning| Equny Share| Diience o
of the cuttent reporting| Cepital dus to u"“w'.m
pariod|  prior periad| reponing
wrrore
Pravious iy (A Lacs)
Reatated)
Changes in batance i the| Changesin| Baslance st}
Belance stthe beginning|  Equity Share beginning of squity shar the et of|
of the Previous repening| Capital dus to El:pn‘i:um pital duting| the p
petiod|  prior petiod teporting] the p reporting|
wtrors period your period]
5400 a5 4]
B. Other Equity
(1} Current reponing
lod As sl Rarch 1, 3622 (INR Lacsp]
Tienarves and Surplus
sha Eq Dats Eq um-i:;mw Money,
e ulty| 1 uity| .8 on|
Spplication) componant of Capitsll  Securities] R i I ;:fu‘:.r Aovatuation| TENStnG the ”-:.::: Totl
money} compound v Esmb through Other| through Other| Cash Flow, Surphus finsncis) share
[ ) " = Compi statements of s
RAsuerve) o Income Incoms Hedges Torsign warfanis)
opwration
[Baianca a1 the beginning
of the current reporting - . - = 12402 W . - . = $2.102
iperiod
Cranges i sccounitng polcy| R . .
or peior perind eners " :
Restated Dalance at the
begnning of the cument . - . - 13482 Ja.8x0 . L8R
tepartg perod
Total Comprehensve incoma . . 3 . .
tor the cument ywar : 28 )
iesands - - . -
Fransed to rtaned
E . - “ - 1815 (.08 o - - =
[Ary other change (ta be R R , R N R A
actd). Pictt eorr Lrd
::::: -Iﬂ:.:nd ofthe ; . . . 18207 s . . 5 . 61183
i1 Terms of N 45-1C of tha RB1ACt 1949, Company o rsquired to craats & resens Turd S0d Transier INeTen & $UM NOE B34 An Twenty fercent of Aa net Profi every year
(2) Previoua Reporting Parlod
As af March 31, 2021 {INR Lacs)]
Aeserves and Surpwe
Exchange e
eyl
Share Equity] Detbrt] Equity] differences on
spplicatian) companent of Caphtail Securitias) R S Ratak ; E'rll.h:”:r RAevaluation franalating the ".“‘."": Total|
ey s through Other]  rough Other| P° Tinancial .
— Fremium{ (Statutory] Earnings & > Cash Fiow| Surplug| ot ol shara/
lilu'm-nl Instruments Rerervel] r- Incoma| - Incoma| Hedges foraign LILLL
[Batance st s baginning
ol the Previaus reporting - 12182 33482 - - J L 45 B4
petiod
Changes in AscOuRNg polcy| .
or pricr period seron N
{Aestated batance a1 the
begnnng of the cumen - - 12182 33492 - - g 45884
repcring penod
Total Comprehensive lncome
far tha current yaat s ) -
Onvcands . &
Ttanster to retaned i 2001
sarnnga* " 220 o N
Any oihet change [ be
Kpochad): Prote " i LE . - 8268
[2atance ol the end of the
Pravious reponing Ef“ " - i = 11482 w820 . - o - . - 62,302
*im lerns of Secion 454C of the REI ACT TR, COMPANY I 1eqUIFGD 1O EIE816 & rederve Tund and iranciar theren & UM NOE WS 1187 TWENTY DOFCENT O L8 Nat (IOIE Sy yRaT
The accompanying note:s 1 10 92 are an integral part of the financial stalemants.
As par aur repon altachad.
For KKC & Assoclates LLP For wnd on behatt of the Board of Directors of
Charlered Accountants H hartered Capial Limited
(Formarty Khimji Kunverjl & Co LLP) (Formanty known as Standard Chanetsd bve! and Loans {india) Lmited)
ICAl Famn Registration No: 105126W/MW 100621
A e e U Fyory
t Pt d
Vinlt Jain Zarin Daruwala hant Kumar .
Partner Director MDA CEQ
Membarship No- 145911 DN Nao: 00033655 DN No: 08584379
Qp‘ Ric
[ May 27, 2022 tya R cha Shah
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Mumbal




pasedun ppald - seQenadaYy opesy paindsig (I8}

EH)
RPa1D U1 BSEAU JuedubIS BABY LIIUM — S9IBAIZIAY epri) paIndsI (A)

{DHQNOP PIIAMSUDD SBIQEAEDAY apBI] paindsi] ?:_

pooB paiepisuoa saiqeaacay apery pajndsig a___

(MHGNOP Parapisuna - SHIBAIBIAY opRIL PaINdSIpUf; __.___

£

pooli paiapisuod - saqeaad spel) paindsipun 1)

lmor

SJ¥RA £ UBY) BIOK

siwal £-Z

siweh z-|

1ead |- SYIOW §

Syluowl g vey) 367

wowied jo aiep enp woyy spojad Buimo)jo) 104 Bujpumsing

signojueg

(8987 UNY

1202 ‘1€ yosep 1@ se Bujebe sejquaiecay epus)

panEdu KpaI3 - S8|QEABIBY BPE| PAINGSID) (1A}

EET
Upaso W SSBSIUN fuMubis SakY UIYM ~ SBIGEAE03Y BpRIY PaINdSI] (A)

INHAROP PIHMSUCY SSqRAadaY Bpe:) paindsig (a)]

Poof pa1apisu0d SBiqeAadaY apes) paindsic ()

INianep paapisuol - S3GENA3IY epel) paindsipun (1)

pood paispisuc) - saigeaadal apesL paindsipun §)

150L

21804 £ URY) 210

sived £

21004 Z-4

1804 |- Syluow g

BULIOW 9 URY) 8887

wewrfed jo ejep anp uioy spopad Bupmorjo} 10} Buipusising

simnagey

{8087 UNI)

Z20Z '€ yoswey 16 sv Bujafio sajqeaiaaay opes)

(1N - 188, SNOIABI) JBqUBW ’

€ 1001331p B "sauued € §1 10129 Aue YoM ul A ADedsar SHIUBCWED BIBALC JO SUHI WO 8NP Q18 SHABADID) BPRN ON 2
[N : 183, SnOInEId) BN 5} S8{qEAN2031 Bpe) uo pasiubosal asuemojie Juawedw) |

e 6 feioy
[ o S8550) JIpI paaadn] 15587
E & pood pasapisu0d panasur)

| wo|quArRny
1202 'L UUBW 1B SY  [ZTOZ L€ YT 18 BY Eu_:u_.._-u_
{s2e7 WNI} SoyuAledeY opRal "5
[eor's 520'02 1m0y
g 000" 4 {syuow £ uey) ssaisiisodag paxyg (q))
E9L°L S20'9 SIUNDITY BN )
| SAUBE WM SaIBEY
1Z0Z" I yNe 19 8y {ZZOZ “LE YIIeW 18 sy SIRND[UGH
{82e7 UNI) SIUR{EAINDS YSED PUB YSED p

62821 D 1JEGOZHNOGESON ‘NID
(penunuog) sjusws)je)s |BIdULLYS 3y} O) SBION

{payw (e1pu) sugoT pue sjuawisaAY| palaURYD PIBPURIS SB UuMouy AjJauuo))

ponwr jendes paseueyd piepuRls

Jmand



PUBLIC
Standard Chartered Capital Limited

(formerly known as Standard Chartered Investments and Loans (India) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
CIN: U65990MH2003PLC142829

6. Loans (At Amortised cost) {INR Lacs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2022}  As at March 31, 2021
Advances
Term Loans 366,878 264,414
Loans repayable on demand 73,021 36,435
Add: Interest accrued 1,993 1,307
Less: Unamontized fees {545) (399)
Gross 441,347 3M,757
Less: Impairment loss allowance (2,535) (3,617)
Net 438,812 298,140|
(i) Secured by tangible assets* 378,598 256,853
(i) Unsecured 62,749 44,904
Gross 441,347 301,757
Less: Impairment loss allowance (2,535) (3,617)
Total 438,812 298,140]
Loans in India
_(i-) Public Sectors - -
(iiOthers 441,347 3M,757
Gross 441,347 301,757
Less: Impairment loss allowance (2,535) (3,617)
Net 438,812 298,140|
Total 438,812 298,140|
* Secured against Mortgage of Immovable Properties, Pledge of Securities.
Details of loans or advances granted to promoters, directors, KMPs & Related Parties
(INR Lacs)
As at March 31, 2022
Type of Borrower Amount of loan or| Percentage to the total
advance in the nature] Loans and Advances
of loan outstanding| in the nature of loans
Promoter 5 -
Direclors S g
KMPs - -
Related parties 11,000 2.49%
(INR Lacs)
As at March 31, 2021
Type of Borrower Amount of loan or| Percentage to the totaT|
advance in the nature| Loans and Advances
of loan outstanding| in the nature of loans
Promoter - -
Directors - -
KMPs - -
Related parties e g
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PUBLIC

Standard Chartered Capital Limited
(formerly known as Standard Chartered Investments and Loans

(India) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
CIN: U65990MH2003PLC142829

7. Investments (At Amortised Cost) (INR Lacs)
Particulars As at March| As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021
Investments
Debt securities # - 5,280
Total - Gross (A) - 5,280
(i) Overseas Investments -
(i) Investments in India - 5,280
Total (B) - 5,280
Less: Impairment loss allowance - (28)
Total — Net - 5,252

# Investment in Quoted Debt securities

Previous year:

500 - Non Convenrtible Debentures of face value of INR 1000,000
each of Niyogi Enterprise Private Limited.

These investments are classitied in appropriate stages in line with
the Company's policy as applicable for loans, and impairment
allowance thereon is recognised accordingly.




PLIBLIC

Standard Chartered Capital Limited

(formerly known as Standard Chartered Investments and Loans (India) Limited)
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

CIN: U65990MH2003PLC 142829

8. Other Financial Assets (INR Lacs)
As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2022 2021
Sundry Debtors # 214 159
Recharges receivable* 12 12
Total 226 171

" Includes receivables in the nature of INR 7 lacs on account of Group technology spends
{Previous year: INR 7 Lacs) & INR 5 Lacs on account of Market Data Services Recharges

{Previous year: INR 5 Lacs) from SCB Singapore

# Sundry Debtors includes INR 0.85 lacs receivable from SCSI for Rent

9. Current tax assets and liabilities {INR Lacs)
. As at March 31,| As at March 31,
H’amculars 2022 2021
Current tax assets
Advance lax (Net) 9,349 13,510
Current tax liabilities
Income tax provision {Net) 2,009 6,214
Net 7.340 7,296
10. Deferred tax balances {INR Lacs)
Particulars As at March 31,| As at March 31,
2022 2021
Deferred tax assels (Net) 794 973
(INR Lacs)
Openin Recognised in Al LR
For the year ended Mar 31, 2022 P 9 9 comprehensive Closing balance
balance profit or loss i
ncome
Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets in relation to:
Property, plant and equipment 46 B - 54
Expected Credit Loss 903 (246) - 657
Provisions® 174 12 10 196
Unamortised Fees 100 7 - 137
Intarest on Income Tax Refund {250) - - (250)
Total 973 (189) 10 794
(INR Lacs)
. . Recognised in other|
Opening] Recognised in .
For the year ended Mar 31, 2021 Bilince profit or loss comprel;enswe Closing balance
ncome,
Deferred tax (liabilities)assets in relation to:
Property, plant and equipment 50 4) - 46
Expected Credit Loss 582 321 - 903
Provisions 299 (116) (9) 174
Unamorised Fees 156 {56) - 100
|Interest on Income Tax Refund (250) - - (250)
{Total 837 145 (9) 973
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PUBLIC

Standard Chartered Capital Limited

(formerly known as Standard Chartered Investments and Loans (India) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

CIN: U65930MH2003PLC142829

15. Debt Securities {At Amortised Cost) (INR Lacs)
Particular As at March 31, As at March 31,
2022 2021
Commercial paper (CP) 236,000 140,000
Unamortised discount of (CP) (5,036) (1,336)
Commercial paper (CP) 230,964 138,664
Non-Convertible Debentures (Secured) 34,500 34,500
Accrued Interest Payable 2,144 2,144
Non-Convertible Debentures (Secured) (NCD) 36,644, 36,644
Total 267,608| 175,308
Debt securities in India (Refer Note 44) 267,608 175,308
Debt securities outside India 5 i
Total 267,608 175,308
16. Borrowings (At Amortised cost) {INR Lacs})
Particular As at March 31, As at March 31,
2022 2021
Term loans
from Banks - secured (Refer Note 44) 32,047 14,905
from Banks - Unsecured 54,700 27,700
Accrued Interest Payable 228 181
Total 86,975 42,786
Borrowings in India 86,975 42,786
Borrowings outside India - -
Total 86,975 42,786
17. Deposits (At Amortised cost) (INR Lacs)
As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particular 2022 2021
Inter-Corporate Deposits (Refer Note 44) 5,335 3,000
Accrued Interest Payable 84 97
Total 5,419 3,097




PUBLIC

Standard Chartered Capital Limited

(formerly known as Standard Chartered Investments and Loans (India) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

CIN: U65990MH2003PLC14282%

18. Other Financial Liabilities (Amortisation Cost) {INR Lacs)
Particular As at March 31,] As at March 31,
2022 2021
Sundry Creditors* 1,075 1,751
Lease Liabilities 377 109
Total 1,452 1,860

*Includes payable of INR 33 Lacs on account of Market Data Services payable to
SCB Singapore (Previous year: INR 28 Lacs) and INR 153 Lacs on account of

Share Options liability to SCB UK (Previous year: INR 152 Lacs)

19. Provisions (Amortisation Cost) {INR Lacs)
Particular As at March 31,| As at March 31,
2022 2021
(a) Provision for employee benefits
Provision for Gratuity 198 182
Other provisions 116 a1
(b} Others
Expected Credit Loss on loan
cammitments - 0
Total 314 273
20. Other Non Financial Liabilities {INR Lacs)
Particular As at March 31,| As at March 31,
2022 2021
Statutory dues 242 159|




PLBLIC

Standard Chartered Capital-Limited

(formerly known as Standard Chartered Investments and Loans (India) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
CIN; UG5890MH2003PLC 142829

21.1 Equity share capital {INR Lacs)
As at March 31,| As at March 31,

Particulars 2022 2021

Authorised:

420,000,000 (Previous year: 460,000,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 46.000 46,000

lssued, subscribed and paid-up:

454,385,000 [Previous yaar : 454,385,000} Equlty shares of Rs, 10 each 45.439 45.470

tully paid up

A. Reconcilistion of number of shares:

Number of shares al the beginning of tha year 454,385,000 454,385,000

Number of shares at the and of the year 454,385,000 454,385,000

8. Reconciliation for the amount of share capital

Al the begnning of the year 45,433 45.4733|

Al the_end of the year 45,435 45,439

C. Terms / rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled lo one vote per
share.There are no restrictions on payment of dividend to equily shareholders. The Company declares and pays dividend to its sharehglders in
Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors Is subject 1o the approval of the shareholders In the ensulng Annual General
Meeting. During the year ended March 31, 2022 the amount of per share dividend recognised as distributions to equity shareholdars was Nil

(Previous Year: Nil).

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be enlilled 1o receive remaining assets of the Company after

distribution of ab preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

D. Shares held by helding / ultimate holding company and / or their subsidiaries / associates
The entire share capital is held by Standard Chartared Bank, United Kingdom and ils rominees.

21.2 Other Equity {INR Lacs)
Aeserves and Surplus
Particulars Statutory Retained Total
RAeserve Earnings
Balance as at March 31, 2021 13,482 38,620 52,102
lProfit for the year after income lax - 9.077 9,077
Transter to/irom retained earnings 1,815 {1,815) -
Total Comprehensive ncome for tha current year - (2Bi| (26)]
|Balance as at March 31, 2022 15,297, 45,856 61,153

Nature and Purpose of Other Equity

A. Reserve fund is created as per the terms of saction 45-1C(1) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

Reserve tund s created as per the terms of section 45-1C(1) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as a slatutory reserve,

B. Retained Earnings.

Retained earnings represants the surplus in Profit and Loss Account and appropriations. The Company recognises change on account of remeasurement of

the net detined benefit liability {asset} as part of retained earnings with separate disclosure, which comprises of actuarial gains and losses.

21.3 Shareholding of Promotar

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year % Change
IPrumulec Name

No. of Shares|

|Standard Chartered Bank = United Kingdom

454.385.000 |

% of tolal shares|
100 |

% Changa during the yal_rI
il

N




PUBLIC

Standard Chartered Capital Limited

(formerly known as Standard Chartered Investments and Loans (India) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
CIN: Us5990MH2003PLC142829

22. Interest income (on Assets held at amortised Cost) {INR Lacs)
. As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2022 2021
Interest on Loans 30,350 24,267
Interest income from investments 253| 1,043
Total 30,603 25,310
23. Other income (INR Lacs)
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2022 2021
Interest on tax refunds - 76
Misc Income 9 10
Bad Debt recovered 10 12
Total 19 98
24. Finance cost (on Financial Liabilities measured at Amortised Cost) {INR Lacs)
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2022 2021
On debt securities 10,714 9,755
On borrowings other than debt securities 3,576 1,865
On deposits (ICD) 164 325
On Lease liability 13 8
Fees on Undrawn Sanctions 150 150
Others 434 122
Total 15,061 12,225
25. Impairment losses on financial instruments (on Assets held at Amortised Cost) {INR Lacs)
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2022 2021
On Loans including commitments {net) (1,082) 1,376
On investments {5) 21|
Total {1,087) 1,355
No loans have been written off for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021
26. Employee benefits (INR Lacs)
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2022 2021
Salaries and wages including bonus 2,284 1,767
Contribution to provident and other funds 130 106
Share Based Payments to employees 1
Staff welfare expenses 29
Others staff costs 15

Total

2,459




PUBLIC

Standard Chartered Capital Limited

(formerly known as Standard Chartered Investments and Loans (India) Limited)
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

CIN: U65990MH2003PLC 142829

27. Depreciation and amortisation expense {INR Lacs)
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2022 2021

Depreciation on PPE 49 49
Amortisation of Leased assets 45 20
Amontisation of intangible assets 249 189
Total depreciation and amortisation expense 343 258
28. Other expenses (INR Lacs)
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2022 2021

Rent 125 62
Business support costs 112 94
Support service charges 231 205
Corporate social responsibility costs 166 159
Repairs and maintenance 368 144
Communication costs 17 5
Travel and Accommodation 33 20|
Prinling and stationery a3 8|
Goods and Service Tax written off / (back) {net) 218 190
Directors fees, allowances and expenses 36 26
Audilor's fees and expenses (Refer table 25.1) 49 28
Legal and Professional charges 129] 76
Other expenditures 274 157
Total 1,791 1,174
28.1 Payments to auditors (INR Lacs)
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2022 2021

a) For audit 48 18
|b} For other services 1 10
c¢) For reimbursement of expenses - -
Total 49 28




Standard Chartered Capital Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the Year ended 31 March 2022

2.1

22

Corporate Information

Standard Chartered Capital Limited (‘the Company’) was incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 on 22
Oclober 2003 (formerly known as Standard Chartered investments and Loans (India) Limited). Pursuant to change
in name the Company was issued a registration certificate (N-13.01756) dated 13 December 2021 by the Reserve
Bank of India (‘RBI') to act as a Category B Non — Banking Financial Company (‘NBFC’) not accepting public
deposits. The entire share capital of the Company is held by Standard Chartered Bank, United Kingdom and its
nominees. The activities of the Company involve lending and investments.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially
adopled or a revision to the accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. The
audited financial statements were subject to review and recommendation of Audit Committee and approval of
Board of Directors. On 27 May 2022, Board of Directors of the Company approved and recommended the audited
financial statements for consideration and adoption by the shareholders in its Annual General Meeting.

Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation of financial statements

Thefinancial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and notified under section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) along with other relevant provisions of the Act, the Master Direction —
Non-Banking Financial Company and notification for Implementation of Indian Accounting Standard vide circular
RBI2019-20/170 DOR(NBFC).CC.PD.No. 109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated 13 March 2020 {'RBI Notification for
Implementation of Ind AS') issued by RBI and as updated from time to time.

The Company prepares and present its Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of
Changes in Equity in the format prescribed by Division IHl of Schedule |l to the Act as amended from time to time.
The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 'Statement
of Cash Flows' as amended from time to time.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historicat cost convention on the accrual basis except for
certain financial instruments and plan assets of defined benefit plan, which are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period as explained in the accounting policies below. All the amounts disclosed in the financial
statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest INR Lacs in compliance with Schedule Ill of the Act
unless otherwise stated.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, as on
the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting
estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

The Company generally reports financial assets and financial liabilities on a gross basis in the Balance Sheet. They
are offset and reported net only when Ind AS specifically permits the same or it has an unconditional legally
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts without being contingent on a future event. Similarly, the
Company offsets incomes and expenses and reports the same on a net basjs-whg




Standard Chartered Capital Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

2.3

2.4

Recognition of interest income

Effective interest rate

Under Ind AS 109 ‘Financial Instruments’ interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method
tor all financial instruments measured at amortised cost. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instruments or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset.

The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset) is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

Financial Instruments

24.1 Recognition and Initial measurement of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans, debt securities, inter - corporate deposits and borrowings
are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. The Company recognises debt securities, inter - corporate deposits and borrowings
when funds reach the Company.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value/transaction price. Subsequent
measurement of the financial assets and financial liabilities is dependent on their classification,

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair values through profit and loss (FVTPL)) are added o or
deducted from their respective fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company
takes into account those characteristics of the asset or liability which a market participants would take into account
when pricing the asset or liability. Fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the
fair value measurement in its entirety.

Refer note 2.5.5 below for more details on fair value hierarchy.

24.2 Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets and liabilities

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of Ind AS 109 are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value on the basis of the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Specifically:

a) Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding (SPPI), are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

b) Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is both to collect the contractual
cash flows and to sell the debt instruments, and that have contractual cash flows that are SPPI, are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI;
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022
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¢} Allother debt instruments (e.g. debt instruments managed on a fair value basis, or held for sale)} and equity
investments are subsequently measured at FVTPL.

T he Company may make the following irrevocable election / designation at initial recognition of a financial asset on
an asset by-asset basis: the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equily investment in Other Comprehensive Income.

An assessment of business models for managing financial assets is fundamental to the classification of a financial
asset. The Company determines the business models at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are
managed together to achieve a particular business objective.

The Company measures Bank balance, Loans, Trade receivables, Investments and other financial instruments at
amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met.

a) The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assels in order to
collect contractual cash flows.

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

The Company's business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level of
aggregated portfolios.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows have SPPI characteristics, the Company considers the contractual
terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could
change the liming or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition.

Equity Instrument: An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company is recognised at the proceeds
received, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Financial liabilities are classified as either amortised cost or held at fair value through profit or loss. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets and liabilities at initial recognition of the instrument or, where
applicable, at the time of reclassification.

Financial assets and liabilities

2.5.1 Financial assets held at amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive income

Debt instruments held at amortised cost have contractual terms that give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI characteristics). Principal is the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition
but this may change over the life of the instrument as amounts are repaid. Interest consists of consideration for the
time value of money, for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period
and for other basic lending risks and costs, as well as a profit margin.

25.2 Equity instruments designated as held at FVOCI

Non-trading equity instruments acquired for strategic purposes rather than capital gain may be irrevocably
designated at initial recognition as held at FVOCI on an instrument by instrument basis. Dividends received are
recognised in profit or loss. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of these instruments, including
foreign exchange gains and losses, are recognised directly in equity and are never reclassified to Statement of
Profit and Loss even on derecognition.
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253 Financial assets and liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets which are neither held at amortised cost nor held at fair value through other comprehensive income
are held at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets and liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss
are either mandatorily classified fair value through profit or loss or irrevocably designated at fair value through profit
or loss at initial recognition.

25.4 Financial liabilities including Debt securities held at amonrtised cost

Financial liabilities that are not financial guarantees or loan commitments and that are not classified as financial
liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss are classified as financial liabilities held at amortised cost.

Reclassification: Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the
exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line or in the
period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets. Financial liabilities are not
reclassified

2.5.5 Determination of Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The fair values of quoted financial assets and liabilities in active markets are based on current prices. A market is
regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide
pricing information on an ongoing basis. If the market for a financial instrument, and for unlisted securities, is not
active, the Company establishes fair value by using valuation techniques and judgements ranging from determining
comparable companies to discount rates e.g. Discounted Cash Flow (DCF).

The company classifies assets and liabilities carried at fair value or for which fair values are disclosed into three
levels according to the observability of the significant inputs used to determine the fair values.

Fair value Hierarchy

Level i: Fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Fair value measurements are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted
prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using models where
all significant inputs are observable,

Level 3: Fair value measurements are those where at least one input which could have a significant effect on the
instrument's valuation is not based on observable market data.

There has been no transfer between level 1, level 2 and level 3 for any of the years reported in these financial
statements.

2.5.6 Undrawn loan commitments

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, over the duration of the commitment, the Company is
required to provide a loan with pre-specified terms to the customer. Undrawn loan commitments are in the scope
of expected credit ioss requirements.

2.6 De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities
A financia! asset is derecognised when the rights to receive cashflows from the financial assets have expired or

e Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset and has transferred substantially all the
and rewards of the asset.

{,\\arre@
mpany also derecognises a financial asset such as a loan to a customer, when the terms and con mpns @

5 h
& Peen renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the difference recognlseﬁ s
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a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded. The newly
recognised loans are classified as Stage 1 for ECL measurement purposes, unless the new loan is deemed to be
Purchased or originated credit impaired financial asset (POCI).

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying
amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration received {including
any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in OCI is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

The Financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.
Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substanfially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new fiability. In this case, a new financial liability based
on modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial
liability and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The calculation of credit impairment provisions involves expert credit judgement applied by the credit risk
management team based on credit rating agencies benchmarks, counterparty information from various sources
including relationship managers and external market information.

2.7.1 Expected credit losses

Expected credit losses ("ECL") are determined for all financial assets that are classified at amortised cost and
undrawn commitments.

An expected credit loss represents the present value of expected cash shortfalls over the residual term of a financial
asset and undrawn commitment,

2.7.2 Measurement

For Stage 1 portfolio,

For Corporate loans, the estimate of expected cash shortfalls is determined by multiplying the probability of
default (PD) with the loss given default (LGD) with the expected exposure at the time of default (EAD). The
Company has adopted approach of estimating PDs based on CRISIL Default and Rating Transition study. As per
the Company’s Local Lending Policy, all corporate exposures are required to be rated CG (credit grading) based
on approved scorecard. The policy also captures mapping of internal CG ratings scale with external ratings of
rating agencies approved by SEBI / RBI. For PD computation, latest internal CG rating of the Borrower is
considered. Based on the mapping of borrower's CG rating with external rating scale and basis staging of the loan
asset, PD is considered from the CRISIL study. Any upgrade or downgrade of internal credit grading of the
borrower based on the review of facility during the tenor of the loan will be considered for estimating PD and
corresponding ECL calculation.

For LAP portfalio, PD is assessed based on the data of defaults of corresponding product portfolio reported by
reputed Bureau agencies like CIBIL, CRIF etc. These agencies cover granular details of portfolio of various lenders
based on loan amount, tenor, category of lender etc. PD estimation for stage 1 portiolio relating to 12-months ECL
will be considered based on 90 + delinquency rates of that portfolio. Policy framework governing a particular
product would be considered while estimating default rates from bureau data sources.
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The Loans against Shares (LAS) portfolio is extended on the basis of a collateral cushion (i.e., the difference
between the exposure of the facility and the market value of the collateral). The value of the collateral is updated
and monitored daily, and any decrease in the collateral cushion below a specified threshold leads to a grace
period (in which the customer is asked to top up the security), followed by the liquidation of sufficient collateral
to restore the cushion. There are different thresholds for different security types in line with RBI policy for
Equity/Equity MF/ Debt Funds. The credit line of each exposure is reviewed annually. Due to the high level of
collateral, the exposures are at a very low risk, with no historical loss experience. These have been appropriately
faclored for the purpose of ECL. ECL for a corporate exposure primarily backed by marketable securities will be
assessed based on LAS approach as mentioned above.

For stage 2 portfolio, PD will be estimated based on survival analysis over residual average maturity of such
porifolio.

Forstage 3 portfolio, PD eslimation will be considered at 100 %. LGD is usually shown as the percentage of EAD
that the bank might lose in case the borrower defaults. It depends, among others, on the type and amount of
collateral as well as the type of borrower and the expected proceeds (e.g. sales proceeds from sales of
collaterals/securities) of the assets. The credit risk assessment is based on a standardized LGD assessment
framework that resulls in a certain LGD rate. These LGD rates take into account the expected EAD in comparison
to the amount expected to be recovered or realized from any collateral held and also takes into account forward
locking information. The estimates of LGDs for both secured and unsecured exposures are referenced from RBI
guidelines.

2.7.3 Recognition

Stage 1- 12 months expected credit Ioss.

Expected credit losses are recognised at the time of initial recognition of a financial instrument and represent the
lifetime cash shortfalls arising from possible default events up 1o 12 months into the future from the balance sheet
date. Expected credit losses continue to be determined on this basis until there is either a significant increase in
the credit risk of an instrument or the instrument becomes credit-impaired. If an instrument is no longer considered
to exhibit a significant increase in credit risk, expected credit losses will revert 1o being determined on a 12-month
hasis.

Stage 2- Significant increase in credit risk (SICR)
SICR is assessed by comparing the risk of default at the reporting date to the risk of default at origination. Whether
a change in the risk of default is significant or not is assessed using quantitative and qualitative criteria.

a) Quantitative criteria: Across all portfolios, accounts that are 30 or more days past due (DPD) on contractual
payments of principal and/or interest are considered to have experienced a significant increase in credit
risk.

b) Qualitative criteria: Qualitative factors that indicate that there has been a significant increase in credit risk
include processes linked to current risk management, such as placing loans on non-purely precautionary
early alen.

For Corporate clients: All assets of clients that have been placed on early alert (for non-purely precautionary
reasons) are deemed to have experienced a significant increase in credit risk. An account is placed on
non-purely precautionary early alert if it exhibits risk or potential weaknesses of a material nature requiring
closer monitoring, supervision or attention by management. Weaknesses in such a borrower's account, if
left uncorrected, could result in deterioration of repayment prospects and the likelihood of being
downgraded.
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Indicators could include a rapid erosion of position within the industry, concerns over management’s ability
to manage operations, weak/deteriorating operating results, liquidity strain and overdue balances among
other factors. All client assets that have been assigned a CG12 rating, equivalent to ‘higher risk', are
deemed to have experienced a significant increase in credit risk.

For Retail and Private Banking clients, significant increase in credit risk is assessed by referencing the
nature and the level of collateral against which credit is extended.

Stage 3 - Credit-impaired (or defaulted) exposures
Financial assets that are credit-impaired (or in default) represent those that are 90 days past due in respect of
principal and/or interest.

Collateral valuation

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where possible. The collateral
consists of cash, securities, letters of credit/guarantees, real estate, receivables, inventories, other non-financial
assets and others. Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded on the Company's Balance Sheet. However, the
fair value of collateral affects the calculation of ECL.

The Company calculates ECL either on a collective or an individual basis.
Stage 3 assets are individually assessed for impairment.

For Stage 1 & Stage 2 assets, the Company calculates ECL on a collective assessment on the principles laid down
in the Note 2.7.2 above.

Write-offs

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written-off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. However, for financial assets that
are written off any recoveries made are recognised in statement of profit or loss subject to the outcome of
enforcement activities under the Company's recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice wherever
appropriate,

2.10 Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency at the spot exchange rate ruling
as at the date of the transaction.

Assels and Liabilities of the Company are presented in INR which is also the functional currency of the Company.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated into the functional currency at
the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date. All differences arising on revaluation are taken to other
income/expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the spot
exchange rates as at the date of recognition.
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2,11 Leasing

Asalessee, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date.
T heright-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
forany lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the site on which it is located, less
any lease incentives received.

Cenain lease arrangements include the option to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term.
The right-of-use assets and lease liabilities include these options when it is reasonably certain that the option will
be exercised.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to
the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful
lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. In addition,
the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for cerain re-
measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate.

When the company revises its estimate to the term of any lease, it adjusts the carrying amount of the lease liability
to reflect the payments to make over the revised term, which are discounted using a revised discounted rate. The
carrying value of lease liabilities is similarly revised when the variable element of future lease payments dependent
on arate or index is revised, except the discount rate remains unchanged. In both cases an equivalent adjustment
is made to the carrying value of the right-of-use asset, with the revised carrying amount being amortised over the
remaining (revised) lease term. If the carrying amount of the right-to-use asset is adjusted to zero, any further
reduction is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprises of fixed payments, including in-
substance fixed payments, amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee and the exercise
price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably cerlain to exercise, lease payments in an optional
renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option.

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Lease liability
and the right of use asset have been separately presented in the balance sheet and lease payments have been
classified as financing activities.

The rental charges paid for lease agreements that don't qualify as a lease under Ind AS 116 i.e., low value or short
term leases are recognised as a rent expenses in the statement of profit and loss over the lease term. The related
cash flows are classified as operating activities.

2.12 Recognition of income and expense

Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is measured at fair
value of the consideration received or receivable.

Fees and commissions charged for services provided or received by the Company are recognised on an accrual
basis when the service has been provided or significant act performed and are amortised over the tenure of
underlying assets/liabilities depending on case may be.

3 Finance Costs
L
N
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2.15

2.16

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash balances with banks and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Property, plant and equipment {(PPE)

PPE are carried at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and impairments, if any. Acquisition cost
includes all expenses incidental to the acquisition of the PPE and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for its intended use.

Depreciation is provided on straight-line method over estimated useful life of the asset, as per the management's
internal assessment, subject to minimum useful life prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. PPE is de-
recognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on
de-recognition of asset is calculated as the difference between net sales proceeds and the net carrying amount as
on the date of sale is recognised in other income/expense in the statement of profit or loss in the year it is
derecognised. The depreciation rates are as follows:

PPE Useful life of asset
Computer Hardware 3 years

Office equipment 5 years

Fumiture 5 years

Premises 50 years

Leasehold Impravements Over the tenure of Leasehold property
Intangible Assets

Intangible assets (computer software) are capitalised based on the cost incurred to acquire or develop and put to
use. These costs are amortised over the expected useful lives, subject to a maximum of three years.

2.17 Impairment of non-financial assets

2.18

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired due
to events or changes in circumstances indicating that their carrying amounts may not be realised. If any indication
exists the Company estimates the assets recoverable amount. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss
and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Employee Benefits

2.18.1 Provident Fund

-The Company contributes provident fund amount to Regional Provident Fund Commissioner's Office (EPFO) for
all its eligible employees. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

2.18.2 Gratuity (Unfunded)
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The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on the actuarial valuation
using the Projected Unit Credit Method which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of
employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The disgount rates used for
determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based on the market yields on
government securities as at the Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in
Other Comprehensive Income under the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.18.3 Compensated Absences

The Company recognises cost of compensated absences equal to certain number of days of employee’s annual
leave quota that is allowed to be carried forward to the next period. Only in the event of employee leaving the
organisation the earned annual leave will be prorated to the last date of employment and will be encashed.

2.19 Provisions and Contingencies

The Company recognises a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of past events that probably
requires an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may,
but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
in respect of which the likefihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Provisions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no
longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in accordance with the
income tax law) and deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax effect of timing differences between accounting
income and taxable income for the year)

2.19.1 Current Tax

Current tax expense is recognised on an annual basis under the taxes payable method, based on the estimated
tax liability computed after taking credit for allowances and exemption in accordance with the Income Tax Act,
1961.

The recently promulgated Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance 2019 has inserted section 115BAA in the income
Tax Act 1961 providing existing domestic companies with an option to pay tax at concessional rate of 22% plus
applicable surcharge & cess. The reduced tax rates come with the consequential surrender of specified deductions
& incentives. The option needs to be exercised within the prescribed time for filing the return of income under
section 139(1) of the Income tax Act 1961 for assessment year (AY) 20-21 or subsequent AYs. Once exercised,
such an option cannot be withdrawn for the same or subsequent AYs. These financial statements are prepared on
the basis that the Company has availed the option to pay income tax at the lower rate.
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2.19.2 Deferred Tax

Delerred tax is provided on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted as at the balance sheet date, and that are expected to apply when the related
deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assels are recognised

where it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Current and deferred tax relating to items which are charged or credited directly to equity, is credited or charged

directly to equity and is subsequently recognised in the income statement together with the current or deferred gain
or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Company is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit and loss is recognised outside profit and loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in entity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OCl or in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax

assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same tax
authority

2.19.3 Goods & Services Tax (GST)

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax paid, except when the tax incurred on a
purchase of asset or services is not recoverable from the tax authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised
as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as a part of the expense item, as applicable.

2.20 Dividend on equity shares

The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders when the distribution is authorised,
and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. Final dividends on shares are recorded as a
liability on the date of approval by the Shareholders and interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of
declaration by the Company's Board of Directors.

221 Segmental reporting

The Company's segmental reporting is in accordance with Ind AS 108 Operating Segments and is reported
consistent with the internal performance framework and as it is presented to the Company’s CEO and Managing
director i.e. the chief operating decision maker. Accordingly, there is one business segment pertaining to lending
and ancillary activities and also the business operations are concentrated in India.

2.22 Earnings per share '

The basic EPS is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the reporting year.

Bien 3

2



Standard Chartered Capital Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

3.

3.1

3.2

Critical accounting judgements and estimates

Impairment of financial assets

The provision for expected credit loss involves estimating the probability of default and loss given default based on
Company’s assessment and experience. The calculation of credit impairment provisions involves expert credit
judgement applied by the credit risk management team based on credit rating agencies benchmarks, counterparty
information from various sources including relationship managers and external market information. Refer note 2.7.

Leases

The Company has exercised its judgement in determination of whether the contract is service contract or lease
contract, which in turn determines the accounting of the contract.

The Company exercises judgement and estimates the lease term based considering all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive for it to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise
the option to terminate the lease.

For each lease, to determine lease liability, the Company estimates the Incremental Borrowing Rate (IBR) to be
used for discounting the lease payments based on long term loan borrowing rates adjusted, as needed, for the
term of the contract.
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29. Risk management

a. Risk management structure

The Company follows an integrated risk management approach with regards to risk identification, strategy and risk
appetite which is approved by its Board of Directors. The Board is supported by the Executive Risk Committee and
the Credit committee for monitoring the overall risk process within the Company.

The Executive Risk Committee (ERC) and Credit Committee (CC} has the overall responsibility for the development
of the risk strategy and implementing principles, frameworks, policies and limits. The Credit Committee is further
responsible for managing portfolio risk decisions and monitoring risk levels.

The Company's Asset Liability Committee (ALCO}) is responsible for managing its assets and liabilities and the overall
financial structure. It is also primarily responsible for the funding and liquidity risks of the Company.

b. Risk Mitigation and Culture

A healthy risk culture indicates the Company’s ability to identify and assess current and future risks, openly discuss
and take prompt actions. The Company expects all employees engaged in, or supporting, revenue generating
activities to demonstrate the highest level of integrity by being transparent and proactive in disclosing and managing
all types of risks. The people in controf functions should adopt a constructive and collaborative approach in providing
oversight and challenge and take decisions in a clear and timely manner. The Company expects everyone to be
accountable for their decisions and feel safe using their judgment to make these considered decisions.

c. Risk measurement

The Company applies a three Lines of Defence (LOD) model for the day-to-day risk management activities and control
framework. Further, the company identifies and measures its different risks through identification of key Principal Risks
Types (PRTs) that are inherent to its business strategy and model. The different PRTs are managed through distinct
Risk Type Frameworks (RTFs) that document the overall risk management approach for the respective PRTs. The
PRTs are monitored on an ongoing basis by the ERC.

Three Lines of Defence (LOD):

Principal Risk Type

Monitoring and Management

Credit - Potential for loss due to the failure of a
counterparty to meet its agreed obligations to pay
the Group (Refer Note 6.1).

The Company manages and controls credit risk by setting
limits on the amount of risk it is willing to accept for
individual counterparties and for geographical and industry
concentrations and monitors exposures in relation to such
limits.

Traded - Potential for loss resulting from activities
undertaken by the Group in financial markets.

The Company control its trading portfolio and activities to
ensure that traded risk losses (financial or reputational) do
not cause malterial damage to the Company

Capital and Liquidity -

Capital: Potential for insufficient level,
compaosition or distribution of capital to support our
normal activities.

Liquidity: Risk that we may not have sulfficient
stable or diverse sources of funding to meet our
obligations as they fall due {Refer tables below for
Maturity profile of assets and liabilities).

The Company would maintain a strong capital position
including the maintenance of management buffers
sufficient to support its strategic aims and hold an adequate
buffer of high-quality liquid assets to survive extrerne but
plausible liquidity stress scenarios for at least 60 days
without recourse to extraordinary central bank support.

Operational and Technology - Potential for loss
resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes, technology events, human error, or
from the impact of external events (including legal

The Company aims to control operational risks to ensure
that operational losses (financial or reputational), including
any related to conduct of business matters, technology
events do not cause material damage to the Standard
Chartered Brand Image.

~He tional and Sustainability - Potential for
r to the franchise {such as loss of trust,
£3rn 4B or market capitalisation), because of

The Company aims to protect the Standard Chartered
Brand Image from material damage to its reputation by
ensuring that any business activity is satisfactoril
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stakeholders taking a negative view of the Group
through actual or perceived actions or inactions,
including a failure to uphold responsible conduct
or lapses in our commitment to do no significant
environmental and social harm through our client,
third party relationships, or our own operations.

assessed and managed by the appropriate level of
management and governance oversight.

Compliance - Potential for penalties or loss to the
Company or for an adverse impact to our clients,
stakeholders or to the integrity of the markets we
operaie in through a failure on our part to comply
with laws, or regulations.

The Company has no appetite for breaches in laws and
regulations, whilst recognising that regulatory non-
compliance cannot be entirely avoided the Company strives
to reduce this to an absolute minimum.

Information and Cyber Security - Risk to the
Group’s assets, operations and individuals due to
the potential for unauthorised access, use,
disclosure, disruption, modification, or destruction
of information assets and/or information systems.

The Company seeks to avoid risk and uncertainty for its
critical information assets and systems and has a low
appetite for material incidents affecting these or the wider
operations and reputation of the Company.

Financial Crime - Potential for legal or regulatory
penalties, material financial loss or reputational
damage resulting from the failure to comply with
applicable laws and regulations relating to
International Sanctions, Anti-Money Laundering,
Anti-Bribery & Corruption, and Fraud.

The Company has no appetite for breaches in laws and
regulations related to Financial Crime, recognising that
whilst incidents are unwanted, they cannot be entirely
avoided.

Market Risk - Market risk is the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of financial instruments
will fluctuale due to changes in market variables
such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and
equity prices.

The risk is managed through close identification,
supervision and monitoring of risks arising from movements
in market rates such as interest rates, foreign exchange
rates etc, which may result in a loss of earnings and capital.

Foreign Currency Risk - Foreign currency risk is
the risk that the value of a financial exposure will
fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rates.

Foreign currency risk for the Company arise majorly on
account of foreign currency transactions entered with the
group companies. The Company doesn't foresee any
material impact of such exposures with the group

companies as on the balance sheet date.

First line: comprising of the businesses and functions engaged in or supporting revenue generating activities that own

and manage the risks.

Second line: comprising of the control functions independent of the First Line that provide oversight and challenge of
risk management to provide confidence to the CRO, the Executive Company and the Board.

Third line: comprising of the group controllership function to provide independent assurance on the effectiveness of
controls that support First Line's risk management of business activities, and the processes maintained by the Second

Line.

Summaries of the maturity profile of the undiscounted contractual cashflow of the Company's Financial

Liabilities:

Financial Liabilities as at 31 March 2022

Financial Liabilities as at 31 March 2021

{INR Lacs) {INR Lacs)
Less More Less More
Particulars than 12 | than 12 Total Particulars than 12 | than 12 Total
months | months months | months
Borrowings 57,795 28,952 86,747 Borrowings 30,795 11,810 42,605
Lease Liabilities 105 310 415 L ease Liabilities 29 108 137
Debt securities 251,000 | 19,500 | 270,500 Debt securities 140,000 | 34,500 | 174,500
Inler Corporate Deposits 5,335 - 5,335 Inter Corporate Deposits 3,000 - 3,000
| Other financial liabilities 1.075 & 1,075 |_Other financial liabilities 1,751 1,761
Total financial Total financial
liabilities 315,310 | 48,762 ) 364,072 liabilities

The above table includes bucketing of outstanding principal values contracted as at the balance sheet d
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Maturity profile of carrying value of Assets and Liabilities:

Liabilities as at 31 March 2022 Liabilities as at 31 March 2021

(INR Lacs) (INR Lacs)
Less More Less More
Particulars than 12 than 12 Total Particulars than 12 | than 12 Total
months months months | months
Financial Liabilities Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 57,785 29,190 86,975 Borrowings 30,976 11,810 42,786
Lease Liabilities 94 283 377 Lease Liabilities 21 88 109
Debt securities 248,108 19,500 | 267,608 Debt securities 140,808 | 34,500 | 175,308
Inter Corporate Deposits 5419 - 5,419 Inter Corporate Deposils 3,097 - 3,097
Other financial liabilities 1,075 - 1,075 Other financial liabilities 1,751 - 1,751
Total financial liabilities | 312,481 48,973 361,454 Total financial liabilities | 176,653 46,398 | 223,051
Non-Financial Liabilities Non-Financial Liabilities
Current Tax Liabilities 2,009 - 2,009 Current Tax Liabilities 6,214 - 6,214
Provisions 174 140 314 Provisions 119 154 273
E)ighbe“r“::zn-ﬂnancual 042 A 242 Stahbei;t:ign-ﬁnancial 159 ) 159
Fotal non-financial 2,425 10| 2,565 ioia hon-financial 6,492 154 | 6,646
Total Liabilities 314,906 49,113 | 364,109 Total Liabilities 183,145 | 46,552 | 229,697
Assets as at 31 March 2022 Assets as at 31 March 2021
{INR Lacs) INR Lacs)
Less More Less More
Particulars than 12 than 12 Total Particulars than 12 | than 12 Total
months | months months | months
Financial Assets Financial Assets
S:jit::ggl:asr' 20,025 -| 20,025 g;ji:‘, and cash 7,763 -| 7783
Trade Receivables 8 1] 9 Trade Receivables 3 - 3
Loans 289,256 | 149,556 | 438,812 Loans 186,940 | 101,200 | 298,140
Investments - - - Investments - 5252 5,252
Other Financial assels 88 138 226 Other Financial assets 32 139 171
Total financial assets 309,377 149,695 459,072 Total financial assets 204,877 | 106,452 311,329
Non-Financial Assets Non-Financial Assets
Current Tax Assels - 9,349 9,349 Current Tax Assets - 13,510 13,510
Deferred Tax Assats (Net) - 794 794 Deferred Tax Assets {Net) - 973 973
E;?.:Fi':n%nflam and ) 623 623 E;%?::ﬁnflam and ) 346 346
Capital work-in-progress 26 - 26 Capital work-in-progress - - -
Lnetsglgoil;:ﬁ :r:sels under ) 261 261 :jn;:;gig:ﬁ eanstsets under . 623 623
Other Intangible Assets - 151 151 Other Intangible Assets - 192 192
gst;\:trsnon-fmancial 69 266 335 aostZS{snon-hnanclal 265 265
ot Non-Financal o5| 11,444 11539 | | potal Non-Financial 156 | 15,753 | 15,900
Total Assets 309,472 | 161,139 | 470,611 Total Assets 205,033 | 122,205 | 327,238
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30. Changes in Liabilities arising from financing activities

(INR Lacs)

Cashflows (excl.
Particulars Amou:t :?206‘21 Accrued interest Others * Amount as on 31 Mg;;:

P impact)
Debt securities 175,308 96,000 {3,700} 267,608
Borrowings 42,786 44,143 46 86,975
Deposits 3,097 2,335 (13) 5419
Total 221,191 142,478 (3,667) 360,002
(INR Lacs)

Cashflows (excl.
Particulars Amouxt as on L Accrued interest Others * Amount as on 31 March
pril 2020 g 2021

impact)
Debt securities 118,634 55,000 1,674 175,308
Borrowings 30,946 11,843 {3) 42,786
Deposits 4,926 {1,900) 71 3,097
Total 154,506 64,943 1,742 221,191

* Others include Amortisalion of discount on CP and Net Accrued Interest.

31. Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in
the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit
price), regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation technique. In order to
show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation
techniques

Fair value Hierarchy

Level 1: Fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Fair value measurements are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted
prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using models where all
significant inputs are observable.

Level 3: Fair value measurements are those where at least one input which could have a significant effect on the
instrument’s valuation is not based on observable market data.

There has been no transfer between level 1, level 2 and level 3 for any of the years reported in these financial
statements. The Company has no financial assets or liabilities, measured at fair value, held at FVTPL or FVOCI as
at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

Valuation methodologies of financial instruments not measured at fair value:

The Company has determined that the carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, bank balances, trade
receivables, loans, trade payables, debt securities; borrowings, other financial assets, other financial liabilities and
off-balance sheet item are a reasonable approximation of their fair value and hence their carrying values are deemed
{o be fair values.

The nature of products across these broad product categories are either unsecured or secured by coliateral. Although
collateral is an important risk mitigant of credit risk, the Company's practice Is to lend on the basis of assessment of

Y Ay

%
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Product Group Nature of Securities

Loan against Securities Pledge of equily shares and mutual funds etc.

Loan against Property Mortgage of residential and commercial properties

Commercial Lending Hypothecation of Plant and Machinery, book debis and mortgage of
Term Loan} residential and commercial properiies

The Company periodically monitors the market value of collateral and evaluates its exposure and loan to value
metrics for high risk customers. For its loan against securities business, the Company recoups shortfall in value of
securities through part recall of loans or additional securities from the customer, or sale of underlying securities.

32. Interest Rate Sensitivity:

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair values
of financial instruments. The sensitivity of the statement of profit and loss is the effect of the assumed changes in
interest rates on the profit or loss for a year, based on the floating rate financial assets and financial liabilities held at
31 March 2022. The Company is exposed to interest rate risk arising from its, borrowings, debt securities, and loan
portfolio.

P&L Impact % Increase/Decrease in rate increase/Decrease in profit

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Borrowings® that are re-priced 1.0% 1.0% 867 426
Loans that are re-priced 1.0% 1.0% 4,399 3,009

*Only floating rate borrowing instruments are included for interest rate sensitivity analysis

33. Earnings per share (‘EPS’)
The computation of EPS is set out below:

Description 2021-22 2020-21
Net profit (gross of transfer to statulory reserve) attributable to equity 9.077 6.396
shareholders {INR Lacs) ) )

Weighted average number of equity shares (in Lacs) outstanding during

the year for calculation of earnings per share 4544 G
Basic and Diluted Earnings per share of face value of INR 10 2.00 1.41
The basic and diluted EPS is same as there are no potential dilutive equity shares.
34. Expenditure in foreign currency
Unhedged foreign currency exposure is given below:
{INR Lacs)
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Particulars
usD INR usD INR
Payable 2.5 186 2.5 180
Expenditure 0.2 17 0.5 35
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35. Income taxes

Income Taxes relating to continuing operations -

35.1 Income Tax recognized in profit or loss

{INR Lacs)
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Current Tax
In respect of the current year 2,923 2,360
In respect of prior years - (2)
Deferred Tax
In respect of the current year 169 (145)
Total Income tax expense recognised in the current year relating to continuing 3112 2213
operations J »

35.2 Reconciliation of Tax expense with previous years is as follows:

{INR Lacs)
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Profit before tax 12,189 8,609
Income tax expense calculated at 25.168% 3,067 2,167
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 42 40
Tax provision for earlier years 3 6
Income tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss 3,112 2,213
The tax rate used for the reconciliations above is the comporate tax rate of 25.168% for the year 2021-22 and 2020-21 payable by
corporate entities in India on taxable profits under tax law in Indian jurisdiction.

36 Deferred Tax

The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the Income tax expense:

(INR Lacs)
Deferred Tax Deferred Tax Income oci
Particulars Assets Liabilities Statement
31 March 2022 31 March 2022 2021-22 2021-22
Provisions 934 (90} (240) 10
Depreciation 54 - 8 -
Remeasurament gain / {loss) on defined } ) . )
benefit plan
Other temporary differences 145 (249) 43 -
Total 1,133 (339) (189) 10
(INR Lacs)
Deferred Tax Deferred Tax Income ocl
Assetls Liabilities Statement
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2021 2020-21 2020-21
Provisions 1,164 {89) 205 -
Depreciation 46 - {4) -
Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined R ) ; (9)
benelit plan
Other temporary differences 102 (56) -
Total 1,312 145
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37 Disclosure on IND AS 116 Leases:

The Company during the year ended 31 March 2020 has adopted Ind AS 116 — “Leases” with effect from 1 April
2019 and applied the medified retrospective approach. Accordingly, the lease liability at the present value of
remaining lease payments at the date of initial application i.e. 1 April 2019 has been recognised and “Right to use
assets” has been recognised at an amount equal to the “Lease liability” as at that date. In the Statement of Profit
and Loss for the current period, the nature of expenses in respect of leases has changed from lease rent in
previous periods to depreciation cost for “Right to use lease assets” and interest accrued on “Lease liability”. The
Company has not restated the comparative information in this respect.

There is judgement involved in determination of whether the contract is service contract or lease contract, which
in turn determines the accounting of the contract. The Company has exercised this judgement based on analysis
of terms of the contracts against the provisions / guidelines of the Indian accounting standard (Ind AS) 116.

The Company exercises judgement and estimates the lease term based on ils assessment whether it is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend the lease or exercise an option to purchase an underlying asset
or not to exercise an option to terminate the lease. In making these assessments, the Company considers all
relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for it 1o exercise the option to extend the
lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company makes this judgement based on the
facts and circumstances and business conditions.

Lease details for FY 2021-22

{INR Lacs
Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended 31 March 2022:
Particulars 31 March 2022
Balance as at 1 April 2021 101
Add: Additions/ Adjustments during the year 303
Less: Disposals during the year .
Less: Depreciation during the year {45)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 359
Amounts recognised in profit and loss:
Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets 45
Interest expense on lease liabilities 13
The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at 31 March 2022
Current Lease Liabilities 94
Non-Current Lease Liabilities 283
Total 377
The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended 31 March 2022:
Balance as at 1 April 2021 109
Add: Additions during the year 299
Add: Finance cost accrued during the period 13
Less: Disposals during the year &
Less: Payment of lease liabilities {44)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 377
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 31 March 2022 on an
undiscounted basis: )
Less than ong year 105
One to Five years 284
More than Five years 26
Total 415
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Lease Details for FY 2020-21

{INR Lacs

Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended 31 March 2021:

Particulars 31 March 2021
Balance as at 1 April 2020 165
Add: Addilions/ Adjustments during the year 45
Less: Disposals during the year (89)
Less: Depreciation during the year (20)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 101
Amounts recognised in profit and loss:

Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets 20
Interest expense on lease liabililies 8
The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at 31 March 2021

Current Lease Liabilities 21
Non-Current Lease Liabilities 88
Total 109
The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended 31 March 2021:

Balance as at 1 April 2020 176
Add: Additions during the year 45
Add: Finance cost accrued during the period 8
Less: Disposals during the year (96}
Less: Payment of lease liabilities (24}
Balance as at 31 March 2021 109

undiscounted basis:

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 31 March 2021 on an

Less than one year 29
One to Five years 86
Mare than Five years 22
Total 137

38 Employee benefits
38.1 Gratuity (Unfunded)

a) Defined Contribution Plan:

Company’s contribution to Provident Fund is INR 92 Lacs (PY INR 74 Lacs)

b) Defined Benefit Plan:

The Company provides for its gratuity liability {unfunded) which is a defined benefit scheme based on actuarial
valuation of the gratuity liability at the balance sheet date performed by an independent actuary.

{INR Lacs

Amount recognized in Balance Sheet

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Present value of unfunded defined benefit abligation 198 182
Net defined benefit liability / (asset) recognized in balance sheet 198 182
Current 58 28
Non-current 140 154

Current Year Expense Charged to Profit & Loss Account

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Current service cost

Interest on net defined benefit liability / {(asset)
Total expense charged to profit and loss account

21 18
11 11
32 29
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Amount Recorded as Other Comprehensive Income

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Opening amount recognized in OCI outside profit and loss account 4 35
Remeasurements during the period due to
Changes in financial assumplions 11 14
Changes in demographic assumptions 4 -
Experience adjustments 24 {45)
Closing amount recognized in OCI outside profit and loss account 43 4

Reconciliation of Net Defined Benetfit Liability / (Asset)

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Opening net defined benefit liability / {asset) 182 178
Expense charged to profit & loss account 32 29
Amount recognized outside profit & loss account 39 (31)
Benefits paid (57) (3)
Impact of liability assumed or (settled)" 2 9
Closing net defined benefit liability / (asset) 198 182

* On account of business combination or inter group transfer

Reconciliation of Detined Benefit Obligation

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Opening of defined benelit abligation 182 178
Current service cost 21 18
Interest on defined benelit obligation 11 11
Remeasurements due to:

Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in financial assumplions 11 14

Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in demographic assumptions 4 -

Actuarial loss / (gain) arising on account of experience changes 24 {45)
Benefits paid (57) (3)
Liabilities assumed / (settled)” 2 g
Closing of defined benefit obligation 198 182

* On account of business combination or inter group transfer

Reconciliation of Plan Assets

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Emplayer contributions

57

3

Banefits paid

(57}

(3)

* On account of business combination or inter group transfer

Accumulated Benefit Obligation (ABO)

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Defined benefit obligation without effect of projected salary growth 150 134
Plus effect of salary growth 48 48
Defined benefit obligation with projected salary growth 198 182

Results of Sensitivity Analysis

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Discourtd rate

Impact of increase in 25 bps on DBO {1.2)% (1.6)%

Impact of decrease in 25 bps on DBO 1.2% 1.7%
Salary escalation rate

Impact of increase in 25 bps on DBO 0.7% 0.9%

Impact of decrease in 25 bps on DBO {0.7)% (0.9Y%
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Summary of Actuarial Assumptions Adopted

Leaving Service
Rates of leaving service at specimen ages are as shown below:

Age (Years) Rates (p.a.}
21-30 20%

31-34 30%

35-44 25%

45-50 20%

51-59 0%

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Retirement Age
The employees of the company are assumed to retire at the age of 60 years

Discount rate (p.a.)

6.3%

6.5%

Salary escalation rate (p.a.)

8.5%

7.0%

Miscellaneous items (Average Duration & Expected Contribution)

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Average duration (years)

4.8

6.5

Expected company contribution {(INR Lacs)

58

28

Maturity Profile 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Expected benefits for year 1 58 28
Expected benefits for year 2 35 36
Expected benefils for year 3 27 27
Expected benefits for year 4 24 15
Expected benefits for year 5 14 13
Expected benefits for year 6 9 11
Expected benefits for year 7 7 9
Expected benefits for year 8 10 8
Expected benefits for year 9 4 10
Expected benelfits for year 10 and above 95 147

Vested & Non Vested Liability

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

DBO in respect of non vested employees 16 32
DBO in respect of vested employees 182 150
Total defined benefit obligation 198 182
38.2 Compensated absences
{INR Lacs
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Haoliday pay provision 22 9

38.3 Code on Social Security, 2000 ("Code")

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the
Company towards Provident fund and Gratuity. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for
the Code on Social Security, 2020 and has invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under active consideration
by the Ministry. The company will evaluate the rules, assess the impact, if any, and account for the same once the

rules are notified and become effective.
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39 Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Eﬁ_terprises Development Act, 2006 (‘MSMED’)

Based on the information and records including confirmations sought from suppliers on registration with specified
authority under MSMED, no amounts pertaining to principal and interest were due or remained due as at and for the
year ended 31 March 2022 (Previous year: Nil} and, hence, disclosures relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end
together with interest paid/payable as required under the said MSMED Act have not been given. Auditors have relied

on this.

40 Related Parties’ Disclosure

Related Parties’ Disclosure

Name of Related Party

Nature of relationship

Standard Chartered PLC

Ultimate Parent Company

Standard Chartered Bank — UK (SCB UK) Holding Company
Below includes only those related parties with whom transactions have occurred during

current year / previous year:

Standard Chartered Bank - India Branches (SC8 India) gfm",gz.f; Holding
Standard Chanered Bank — Singapore Branch (SCB Singapore) (B:Lamngg:; el
Standard Charered Bank — UK (SCB UK) Holding Company

Standard Chartered Global Business Services Private Limited (SCGBS)

Fellow subsidiary

Standard Chartered Securities {India) Limited (SCSI)

Fellow subsidiary

Standard Chartered Finance Private Limited {(SCFL)

Fellow subsidiary

Standard Chartered (India) Modeling and Analytics Centre Private Limited (SCMAC)

Associate Enterprise

Ms. Zarin Bomi Daruwala

Chairperson and
Non - Executive Director

Mr. Prashant Kumar

Managing Director & Chief
Executive Officer - Key
Managerial Personnel

Mr. Siddhartha Sengupta

Non - Executive
independent Director

Mr. Neil Percy Francisco

Non - Executive
Independent Director

Mr. Pradeep Chandra lyer

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Kumarapuram Venkateswaran Subramanian

Non-Executive Director

Ms. Priya Ranjit

Chief Financial &
Operating Officer -
Key Managerial Personnel

Ms. Richa Shah

Company Secretary -
Key Managerial Personnel

Related Party Transactions

{INR Lacs}

Particulars 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
Transactions with SCB

Receiving of Services (Refer Note 41) 231 205
Leasing rentals 101 102
Commitment fees 150 150
Interest on shor term loan 17 | 16
Others costs 2 9
Secondment fee income 47 -
Closing bank balance 5.561 7,271
Graluity fund balances receivable 138 136
Short term loan taken 10,000 10,000
Short term loan paid Fartera ., 10,000 10,000
Balances payable at the end of the year HOLACCRNTANTS J 727 NG\ 234 77
Balances receivable at the end of the year W2\ JG 7& (2 .\ JE 55 -




Standard Chartered Capital Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

Transactions with SCSI

Leasing rentals 19 19
Interest on term loan 255 -
Loan given during the year 11,000 -
Outstanding term loan at the end of the year 11,000

Balances payable at the end of the year 11 5
Balances receivable at the end of the year 1 1

Transactions with SCMAC

Interest Expense 145 105
ICD taken during the year 3,500 3,000
ICD matured during the year 3,000 -
ICD outstanding at the end of the year 3,500 3,000

Transactions with SCFL

Interest Expense 20 110
ICD taken during the year 3,710 2,400
ICD matured during the year 1,875 2,400
ICD outstanding at the end of the year 1,835 -
Transactions with SCGBS

Business support costs (Refer Note 42) 112 94
Balances payable at the end of the year 11 7

Transactions with SCB Singapore DBU

Other Service Charges 17 15
Balances receivable at the end of the year 12 12¢
Balances payable at the end of the year 33 28

Transactions with SCB UK
Exchange loss on share options liability 1 5
Share options intercompany liability at the end of the year 153 152

Transactions with Directors & Others
Salaries and other employee benefils to Directors (*} and Key Managerial Personnel (*) 315 313

Sitting Fees Paid to Independent Non-Executive Directors 36 26

{*) Includes Remuneration paid to Directors and Key Managerial Personnet, of which few employees were employed for part of the year. The
remuneralion of KMP does not include the provisions made for gratuity as they are delermined on actuarial basis for the company.
* Balances for SCB Singapore as on 31 March 2021 (base year) has baen corrected.

41 Support service charges

SCB India incurs expenditure on support functions like Property, Human Resources, Taxation, Legal, Information
Technology, etc., which is for the common benefit of it and other Standard Chartered Group companies in India.
Such costs are recovered from the Company and other Standard Chartered Group companies based on identifiable
criteria. This expenditure is disclosed as Support Service Charges by the Company and it is amounting to INR 231
Lacs for the year ended 31 March 2022 and INR 205 Lacs for the year ended 31 March 2021.
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42 Business support cost

SCGBS provides a wide range of services like banking operations, finance and accounting services, IT service, etc
to other Standard Chartered Group companies. SCGBS issues monthly invoices whereby the cost is based on the
agreed cost per full time employee and cost per transaction in case of accounting operations. Such expenditure is
disclosed as business support cost amounting to INR 112 Lacs for the year ended 31 March 2022 and INR 94 Lacs
for the year ended 31 March 2021.

43 Transfer pricing

The Company has established a system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the transfer
pricing legislation under Sections 92-92F of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Company's international transactions with associated enterprises are at arm's length as per the independent
accountant's report for the year ended 31 March 2021. Management believes that the Company's international
transactions with associated enterprises post 31 March 2021 continue to be at arm's length and that the transfer
pricing legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements paricularly on the amount of the tax expense
for the year and the amount of the provision for taxation at the year end.

44 Details of Debt Securities and Borrowings as at:

{INR Lacs)

Residual Maturity of Debt 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Securities Amount Rate of Interest/ Yield |  Amount — l"te";;:: c’;
Secured NCD (A) 34,500 7.65%-8.65% p.a. 34,500 7.65%-8.65% p.a.
Fixed: 34,500 7.65%-8.65% p.a. 34,500 1.65%-8.65% p.a.
More than 5 years - - - -
3-5 Years - - - -
1-3 Years 19,500 7.65% p.a. 34,500 7.65%-8.65% p.a.
Less than 1 year 15,000 8.65% p.a. - -
Unsecured Commercial Paper

() 236,000 4.60% - 5.75% p.a. 140,000 4.08% - 5.00% p.a.
Fixed: 236,000 4.60% - 5.75% p.a 140,000 4.08% — 5.00% p.a.
Less than 1 year 236,000 4.60% - 5.75% p.a 140,000 4.08% - 5.00°% p.a.
Total (A+B) 270,500 4.60% - 8.65% p.a. 174,500 | 4.08% - 5.00% p.a.
Residual Maturity of Bank 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Borrowings Amount Rate of Interest / Yield Amount Rate of Intervei::c:"
Floating: 86,747 5.15% - 7.25% 42,605 | 4.75% - 7.25% p.a.
More than 5 years - 621 7.25% p.a.
3-5Years 3,238 7.25% p.a. 5,714 7.25% p.a.
1-3 Years 25,714 6.15% - 7.25% p.a. 5,714 7.25%p.a.
Less than 1 year 57,795 5.15% - 7.25% p.a. 30,556 4.75% - 7.25% p.a.
Total 86,747 42,605 | 4.75%-7.25% p.a.
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The Non-Convertible Debentures are secured by way of first ranking pari-passu charge over the book debts and
receivables of the Company with a minimum-security cover being at least 100% (One Hundred percent) of the
outstanding Redemption Amounts and Coupon due and payable thereon at any point of time or such higher cover as
may be stipulated under each Tranche Offer Document / Disclosure Document relevant to any tranche / issuance, in
terms of the Deed of Hypothecation.

Non ~ Convertible Debentures (NCDs) Coupon/ Yield | 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021

Rated Listed Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures Series

SCILL/2020-21/501 Date Of Maturity 29/05/2023 (INE403G07079) L 19,500 19,500
Rated Listed Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures Series 8 .65 15.000 15.000
SCILL/2019-20/S01 Date Of Maturity 25/07/2022 (INE403G07061) 65% ' *

The Term Loans to the extent of INR 32,047 Lacs are secured by way of general floating pari-passu charge over the
current and future book debts and receivables, outstanding monies receivable, claims and bills etc. The Balance Term
Loans amounting to INR 54,700 Lacs are unsecured. There is no default as on the Balance Sheet date in repayment of
borrowings and interest.

In addition, there is an Inter-corporate Deposit of INR 3,500 lacs as on 31 March 2022 with Standard Chartered (India)
Modeling and Analytics Centre Private Limited & Inter-corporate Deposit of INR 1,835 lacs with Standard Chartered
Finance Limited. The corresponding figure as on 31 March 2021 is INR 3,000 lacs with Standard Chartered (India)
Modeling and Analytics Centre Private Limited.

45 COVID

The outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic in 2020 and the resultant lockdowns during 2020 and 2021 have caused
disruption to businesses and slowdown in economic activities. The economic activities have started to revive and
pick up, which is also translating into improvement in credit growth and collections from the customers has also
improved during the financial year. Currently, while the number of new Covid-19 cases have reduced significantly
and the Government of India has withdrawn most of the Covid-19 related restrictions, the future trajectory of the
pandemic may have an impact on the results of the Company.

46 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

The Company has assessed its obligations arising in the normal course of business, including pending litigations,
proceedings pending with tax authorities and other contracts. The Company does not expect the outcome of these
proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its financial results.

{INR Lacs}
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Contracts remaining to be executed on capital account 109 283
Loans sanctioned not yet disbursed 7.565 2,350
Direct Taxation 5,376 5,376

The timing of outflows of economic benefits cannot be ascertained as the demands are disputed and the Company
has preferred an appeal against the said demands

46.1 Pending Litigations

The Company's pending litigation comprise of claims against the Company by the customers and the proceedings
pending with other authorities. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceeding and has
adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed the contingent liabilities where applicable, in
the financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially
adverse effect on its financial results.

46.2 Long-term contracts
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RBI disclosures:

47 Schedule to the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022

(INR Lacs) |
Particulars
s epne s Amount Amount
Liabilities side outstanding overdue
(1) | Loans and advances availed by the non-banking
financial company inclusive of interest accrued . 360,002 -
thereon but not paid ;
(a) Debentures : Secured 36,644 .
: Unsecured - -
(Other than falling within the meaning of i .
public deposits)
(b) Deferred Credits -
(c) Term Loans 86,975 -
(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing S :
(e) Commercial Paper 230,964 -
{f Public Deposits - -
{9) Other Loans (Inter Company Deposit) 5,419 -
(2} | Break-up of (1)(f) above (Outstanding public
deposits inclusive of interest accrued thereon but - -
not paid) : i
{a) In the form of Unsecured debentures - -
i {b) in the form of partly secured debentures
i.e. debentures where there is a shortfall in - -
| the value of security
{c) Other public deposits - -
Assets side Amount outstanding
(3) | Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills
receivables [other than those included in 439,899
(4) below]":
(a} Secured* 377,683
(b) Unsecured* 62,216
{4) | Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and
other assets counting towards asset financing
activities
{i) Lease assets including lease rentals under -
sundry debtors:
(a) Financial lease -
(b) Operating lease - |
(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under
sundry debtors:
(a) Assets on hire .
()] Repossessed Assets -
(i) Other loans counling towards asset i
financing activities
(a) Loans where assels have been "
repossessed
{b) Loans other than {a) above -
Break-up of Investments
Current Investments / ?/'\‘3 2
1. | Quoted
(i) | Shares -
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{a)Equity

(b)Preference

(ii)

Debentures and Bonds

(iii)

Units of mutual funds

(iv)

Government Securities

(v)

Others (please specify)

2. | Unquoted

@i

Shares

(a)Equity

(b)Preterence

()

Debentures and Bonds

{iii) Units of mutual funds -
{iv) Government Securities -
{v) Others (please specify) -
Long Term investments
1. | Quoted

0] Share -

(a)Equity .

(b)Preference -

(ii)

Debentures and Bonds

{iii)

Units of mutual funds

(iv} Government Securities -
(v) Others (please specify) -

2. | Unquoted
(i) Shares .
{a)Equity -
{b}Preference -

(ii)

Debentures and Bonds

(iii)

Units of mutual funds

(iv)

Government Securities

v)

Others (please specify)

(6)

Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3) and (4) above:

Amount net of provisions

Category
Secured Unsecured Total

Related Parties

(a) Subsidiaries - - -
1. (b) gg::ganies in the same < 11,000 11,000

{c) Other related parties - o &
2. Other than refated parties - - -
Total - . 11,000 11,000

"

Investor group-wise classification of all investme
securities (both quoted and unquoted):

nts (current and long term) in shares and

Market Value / Book Value

Category Break up or 53 O¢ (Net of
fair value or NAV/}” v %g \Provisions)

1. Related Parties #17 CHtRTepen \O0) -
(@ | Subsidiaries -

AN

I
\

y

P

0 \\‘3—/"\}
S A
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(b) Companies in the same ) }
graup
©) Other related parties - -
2. Other than related parties - e
Total B -
(8) Other information
Particulars Amount
th Gross Non-Performing Assets 1,382
(a) Related parties -
(b) Other than related parties 1,382
(i) Net Non-Performing Assets 691
(a) Related parties -
(b) Other than related parties 691
(iii} Assetls acquired in satisfaction of debt -

# Loans and advances above is gross of Accrued Interest, Unamortised Fees and Expected Credit Loss {('ECL’) balances

48 Capital to Risk Adjusted Ratio (‘CRAR’)

ltems 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{i) CRAR (%) 23.57% 31.27%
{ii) CRAR - Tier | capital (%) 23.44% 31.06%
{iii) CRAR - Tier I} Capital (%) 0.13% 0.21%
(iv) Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-ll capital - -
v) Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments & -

49 Investments

Investments

Particulars

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

(a)

Value of Investments

(i)

Gross Value of Investments-

a. Inlindia - 5,280
b. Outside India = g
(i) | Provisions for Depreciation -
a. Inindia - (28)
b. Outside India s -
(i} | Net Value of Investments—
a. Inlindia . 5,252
b. OQutside India . .
(b) Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments
(i) | Opening Balance o8 49
{i) | Add: Provisions made during the year
iy | Less : Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during the year (28) {21) |
(iv) | Closing Balance - 28

50 Details of Derivatives:

The Company has not traded in exchange traded interest rate derivative, forward rate agreements & interest rate
swaps during the current and previous year.




Standard Chartered Capital Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

51 Maturity Pattern of certain items of Assets & Liabilities as at 31 March 2022

15 Over 3
Overt | Over2 Over6 | Over1 | Over3

1to7 CLAINC L month | months sl Month Year years Over
14 to & upto 5 Total

Days upto2 | upto3 &upto | upto3 | & upto 5

CLV L E L month | months 6 1 year Years | 5 years years
days month [

Deposits - & - - - - - - - - -
Advances 85,630 | 2,497 | 25201 | 31,833 | 66,320 | 21,437 | 56,638 | 91,487 | 41,976 | 16,093 | 438,812
Investments & - - - - . - - - - -
Borrowings 465 | 10,276 | 26,913 | 39,278 | 36,534 | 66,263 | 131,583 | 48,214 476 - | 360,002
FC Assets - - - - - - 12 - - - 12
FC Liabilities - - - - - - 186 - - - 186

*EIR effect on loans is given n over 5 years bucket

Note 1: Loan portfolio comprising of Loans Repayable on demand are considered in *1 to 7 Days’ maturity buckst
Note 2: Portfolio of Loan Against Securities assets which is not in the nature of Loans Repayable on Demand are considered basis Put / Call option

Maturity pattern of certain items of Assets & Liabilities as at 31 March 2021

Bto| d a1: Over1 | QOver2 Over3 | Over6| Over1| Over3 Over
1to7? 14 ‘t'o month | months | Month & {| Month Year years 5 Total

days davs | 30/31 upto2 | upto3 upto6 | &upto| upto3 | &upto ears

v days month | months month | 1year| Years | 5years y
Deposits - - - - - - - - - - -
Advances 36,194 | 13,047 | 18,470 | 27,005 | 60,631 26,299 | 15294 | 74998 | 14,667 | 11,535 | 298,140
Investments - - - - - - - 5,252 - - 5,252
Borrowings 238 -]1226291{ 12,919 | 68,168 61,761 8,928 | 40,214 5714 620 | 221,191
FC Assets - - - - - 7 - - - - 7
FC Liabilities - - - - - - 152 - - - 152
52 Exposure to Real Estate Sector

{INR Lacs)

Exposure to Real Estate Sector

Category

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

(@) | Direct exposure

0] Residential Mortgages - 7,281 3,970
Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be
occupied by the borrower or that is rented; (Individual housing loans up to
Rs.15 lakh may be shown separately)

(i} | Commercial Real Estate -
Lending secured by morigages on commercial real estates (office buildings,
retail space, multipurpose commercial premises, multi-family residential
buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or warehouse 161,245 85,463
space, hotels, land acquisition, development and construction, etc.).
Exposure would also include non-fund based limits

(iii) | Invesiments in Mortigage Backed Securities and other securitized
exposures —
a. Residential - &
b. Commercial Real Estate N .
(b) Indirect Exposure

Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank ) i}
and Housing Finance Companies.
Total Exposure to Real Estate 168,526 89,433
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53 Exposure to Capital Market

{INR Lacs)

Exposure to capital market

Particulars

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

(a)

direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and
units of equity-oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively
invested in corporate debt

{b)

advances against shares / bonds / debeniures or other securities or on clean
basis to individuals for investment in shares (including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible
bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity-oriented mutual funds;

()

advances for any other pumposes where shares or convertible bonds or
convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as
_primary security;

208,417

162,595

(d)

advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security
of shares or converible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity
oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security other than shares /
convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds
do not fully cover the advances;

(e)

secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on
behalf of stockbrokers and market makers;

()

loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures
or other securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter's contribution to the
equity of new companies in anticipation of raising resources;

{a)

bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues,

(h)

all exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered)

Total Exposure to Capital Market

208,417

162,595

54 Details of Single Borrower Limit (SBL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded

The Company has not exceeded the single borrower limits/group borrower limits as set as by Reserve Bank of
India.

55 Unsecured Advances given against Intangible Securities

Particulars

31 March 2021 |

Unsecured advances given against Intangible securities

31 March 2022

56 Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBI and other Regulators

No penalties have been imposed by RBl and Other Regulators during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31
March 2021.

57 Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings for the year 31 March 2022

(i) During the year under review, CRISIL reaffirmed its rating of "CRISIL A1+'on the Company's short- term debt
programme and 'CRISIL AAA/Stable’ on the Company's long-term debt instrument including bank facilities.

Rating is unchanged since previous year.

(i) During the year under review, ICRA also reaffirmed rating of 'ICRA A1+'on the Company's shori-term debt
programme and ICRA AAA/Stable’ on the Company's long-term debt instrument. Rating is unchanged since

previous year.

58 Net Profit or Loss for the period, prior period items and changes in accounting policies

There are no such material items which reguire disclosures in the notes to Accounts in terms of the relevant
accounting standard, Revenue and expense are recognised in accordance with revenue recognition policy and

prescribed Ind AS,
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59 Revenue Recognition

There were no circumstances in which revenue recognition has been postponed pending the resolution of

significant uncertainties.

60 Provision and Contingencies

(INR Lacs)

Year Ended

Provisions and Contingencies' in Profit and Loss Account are as

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

below

a) | Provision made towards Income tax (current) 2,923 2,358
b} | Impairment on Loans and Investments (including commitments) (1,087) 1,355
{c) | Provision for Gratuity/Provident Fund 130 106

61 Draw Down from Reserves

The Company has made no drawdown from existing reserves during the year ended March 2022 and March 2021.

62 Concentration of Deposits’

{INR Lacs)
Concentration of Deposits 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(a) | Total exposures from twenty largest depositors® 5419 3,097
Percentage of exposures from twenty largest depositors to total & o
®) | exposure from depositors 100% 100%
*Pertains to Inter-corporate Deposils placed with Standard Chartered Capital Limited
63 Concentration of Advances
{INR Lacs)
Concentration of Advances 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{a) | Total advances to twenty largest borrowers 221,436 192,641
| Percentage of advances to twenty largest borrowers o
() to total advances - 645s
64 Concentration of Exposures
{INR Lacs)
Concentration of Exposures 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(a) Total exposures to twenty largest borrowers/customers 225,447 195,462
b) Percentage of exposures to twenty largest borrowers/customers to 590 64
iotal exposure on borrowers/customers s .
65 Concentration of NPAs
(INR Lacs
Concentration of NPAs 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Exposure to NPA account 1,382 1,490

66 Sector wise NPA

Sector-wise NPA

% of NPAs to Total Advances in
that sector as on 31 March 2022

% of NPAs to Total Advances in that
sector 31 March 2021

{a) Agriculture & allied activities

(b) | MSME

(c) | Corporate borrowers 0.57% 0.97%
(d) Services 5 .
(e} | Unsecured personal loans - // ‘5500/ -
H | Autoloans - %, A e
| (9) | Other personal loans - ACCOr a0 Jen Vi I%";*I
I =)
* L’ 59
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67 Movement of NPA

{INR Lacs)
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(a} Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 0.16% 0.21%
Movement of NPAs (Gross)
(i) | Opening balance 1,490 .
(b) (i) | Additions during the year - 1,490
{ii) | Reductions during the year {(108) -
(iv) | Closing balance 1,382 1,490
(c) Movemeni of Net NPAs
{i)__| Opening balance 643 -
(i) | Additions during the year 48 643
(i) | Reductions during the year =
(iv) | Closing balance 691 643
() Mavement of provisions for NPAs {excluding pravisions on
standard assels)
_{i} | Opening balance 847 .
{i) | Provisions made during the year - 847
(i) _ Whrite-oft / wrile-back of excess provisions (156) -
(iv) _ Closing balance 691 847

68 Overseas Assets (for those with Joint Ventures and Subsidiaries abroad)

There are no overseas assets owned by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

69 Off-balance sheet SPVs sponsored

There are no off-balance sheet SPVs sponsored for domestic and overseas during the year ended 31 March 2022

and 31 March 2021

70 Disclosure on Customer Complaints

Customer Complaints

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

{a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year

{b) No. of complaints received during the year

39

36

(¢} No. of complaints redressed during the year

38

36

{d) No. ol complaints pending at the end of the year

1

The data has been compiled by the management and same has been relied upon by the auditors.

71 Restructured transactions

No restructuring was carried out for the year ended 31 March 2022. However, an account that was restructured in
previous financial year basis Resolution Framework for COVID-19 related stress announced by RBI vide circular
DOR.No.BP.BC/3/21.04.048/2020-21 dated 6 August 2020, has been completely repaid in the current financial year.

{INR Lacs)

Type (A)

e

()

(D)

of borrower No. of accounts

Opening Balance

Repaid During the year

Closing Balance

Personal Loans -

Corporate persons 1 11,461 (11,461) -
MSMEs - . . -
Others - . . -
Total 1 11,461 (11,461) -
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72 Disclosure pursuant to Master Direction- Reserve Bank of India (Transfer of Loan Exposures) Directions,
2021 in terms of RBI Circular RBI/DOR/2021-22/86 DOR.STR.REC.51/21.04.048/2021-22 dated September 24,

2021:
(INR Lacs)
Particulars For the year ended 31 March 2022
Details of loans not in default that are transferred or acquired NIL
Details of stressed loans transferred or acquired NIL

73 Disclosure on frauds pursuant to RBl Master direction

There are no frauds detected and reported during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021
74 Details of Financing of parent company products

There is no financing of parent company products during the year ended March 2022 and March 2021.
75 Securitization and Reconstruction

There are no securitization and assignment transactions entered into by the company during the year ended 31
March 2022 and 31 March 2021

76 Details of Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators
The company as on date has not obtained any registration from other financial sector regulators.
77 Public disclosure on liquidity risk

(i} Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings)

As at 31 March 2022

Number of Significant Amount . o S
Sr. No. Counterparties® (INR Lacs)* % of Total deposits % of Total Liabilities
1 12 357,583 NA 98%

As at 31 March 2021

Number of Significant Amount . o
Sr. No. Counterparties (INR Lacs)* % of Total deposits % of Total Liabilities
1 11 215,880 NA 98%

“Significant counterparty is defined as a single counterparty or group of connecled or affiliated counterparties accounting in aggragate for more than
1% of the NBFC-NDSI's total liabilities.

** Total liabilities equals to sum of carrying values of all liabilities minus total equity.
* Includes Interest accrued and payabls as on the balance sheet date

(i} Top 20 Large deposits

{INR Lacs)
Top 20 large deposits 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(a) | Total exposures from twenty largest depositors* 5,419 3,097
Percentage of exposures from twenty largest depositors to total exposure |
®) | from depositors (%) 100% Uitz

*Refers to Intercorporate deposits accepted by the company from the Group Companies.
* Includes Interest acerued and payable as on the balance sheel dale
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(iii) Top 10 borrowings

Top 10 borrowings (% of total borrowings})

Particulars 31 March 2022 % of total
Top 10 borrowings (INR Lacs) 325,748 90%
Particulars 31 March 2021 % of total
Tap 10 borrowings {INR Lacs) 212,782 96%
(iv) Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product
As at 31 March 2022
Amount* . S

Sr. No. | Name of the instrument/product (INR Lacs) % of Total Borrowings | Significant
1 Commercial Paper 230,964 64% Yes
2 Bank Borrowings = Short Term/ Working Capital Loan 54,850 15% Yes
3 Secured Non-Convertible Borrowings 36,643 10% Yes
4 Bank Borrowings - Long Term Loan 32,125 9% Yes
5 Inter-Corporate Deposits 5419 2% Yes
Total External Liabilities 360,002 100%

*Includess Interest accrued and payable as on the balance sheet date

As at 31 March 2021

. Amount* S

Sr. No. | Name of the instrument/product (INR Lacs) % of Total Borrowings | Significant
1 Commercial Paper 138,665 63% Yes
2 Bank Borrowings - Long Term Loan 15,086 7% Yes
3 Secured Non-Convertible Borrowings 36,643 16% Yes
4 Bank Borrowings - Short Term/ Working Capital Loan 27,700 13% Yes
5 Inter-Corporate Deposits 3,097 1% Yes
Total External Liabilities 221,191 100%

*Includes Interest accrued and payable as on the balance sheet date

{v) Stock Ratios

Ratios 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Commercial Paper as a % ol total public funds™ 65% 63%
Commercial Paper as a % of total liabilities™ 65% 60%
Commercial Paper as a % of total assets” 50% 42%
Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than 1 year) as a % of total public NA NA
funds

Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than 1 year) as a % of total NA NA
Non-converible debentures {original maturity of less than 1 year) as a % of total assets NA NA

Other short-term liabilities™™" as a % of total public funds”

QOther short-term liabilities™ " as a % of total liabilities™

Other short-term liabilities™" as a % of total assets™

*Total Public Funds includes all CPs, Bank Borrowings, NCDs and ICDs
* Total Assets = Sum of Asset Carrying Value in the Balance Sheet

** Total liabilities = Sum of Liabilities carrying value in the Balance Sheet = Own Funds
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78 Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management

Liquidity Risk is the risk that a Company may not be able to meet its short term financial obligations due to an asset—
liability mismatch or interest rate fluctuations. The Board of Directors have delegated the responsibiiity for ongoing
balance sheet liquidity risk management 1o the Asset Liability Committee. The Committee reviews the Net Interest
Margins, Maturity Profile and mix of the company's assets and liabilities. It articulates the interest rate view and
decides on future business strategy with respect to interest rates. The Liquidity Coverage Ratio {LCR) is a global
minimum standard to measure the Company's liquidity position. LCR seeks to ensure that the Company has an
adequate stock of unencumbered High-Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA) that can be converted into cash easily and
immediately to meet its liquidity needs under a 30-day calendar liquidity stress scenario. The Company has adopted
liquidity risk framework as required under BBl regulation.

79 Disclosures on Comparisan of Provisions as per RBI Circular (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109 DOR /22.10.106/
2019-20 dated March 13, 2020

As at 31 March 2022

)

{INR Lacs
Loss Difference
Asset Gross | Allowances Net Provisions | between Ind
Asset Classification as per classification carrying | (Provisions) Carrvin required as AS 109
RBI Norms as per Ind AS | amountas | as required Amrgung per IRACP provisions
109 per Ind AS under Ind norms | and IRACP
AS 109 norms
1 2 3 4| (5 =(3-(4) 6| _(7)}=(4)(6)
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 407,108 531 406,577 1,628 (1,097)
Stage 2 32,856 1,258 31,598 131 1,126
Subtotal 439,964 1,789 438,176 1,759 29
Non-Performing Assets
{NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 - - - - -
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 1,382 691 691 276 415
110 3 years Stage 3 : . S & :
More than 3 years Stage 3 E . - g =
Subtotal for doubtful 1,382 691 691 276 415
Loss Stage 3 : S - s c
Subtotal for NPA
el S chi Stage 1 7,565 55 7,510 - 55
guarantees, loan
commitments, etc. which are in Stage 2 - - - = z
the scope of Ind AS 109 but
not covered under current
Income Recognition, Asset . . . -
Classification and Provisioning Stage 3
(IRACP) norms
Subtotal 7,565 55 7,510 - 55
Stage 1 414,673 586 414,087 1,628 {1,042)
Total Stage 2 32,856 1,258 31,598 131 1,126
Stage 3 1,382 691 6N 276 415
Total 448,911 2,036 499




Standard Chartered Capital Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

(INR Lacs
Loss Difference
Asset Gross | Allowances Net Provisions | between Ind
Asset Classification as per classification carrying | (Provisions) Carrvin required as AS 109
RBI Norms as perInd AS | amountas | as required Amrgungt per IRACP | provisions
109 per Ind AS under Ind norms | and IRACP
AS 109 norms
1 2 3 4| (5)=(3)(4) 61 (7)=(4)6)
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 248,560 646 247,914 994 {348)
Stage 2 51,707 2,124 49,583 1,241 883
Subtotal 300,267 2,770 297,497 2,235 535
Non-Performing Assets
(NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 1,490 847 643 149 698
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 - - - - -
11o 3 years Stage 3 & & - = &
Morg than 3 years Slage 3 = & - = g
Subtotal for doubtful - - - - -
Loss Stage 3 - - - - -
Subtotal for NPA
Other items such as Stage 1 2,350 . 2,350 _ .
guarantees, loan
commitments, etc. which are in Stage 2 - - - - s
the scope of Ind AS 109 but
not covered under current
income Recognition, Asset . . . . -
Classification and Provisioning Stage 3
{IRACP) norms
Subtotal 2,350 - 2,350 - -
Stage 1 250,910 646 250,264 994 (348}
Total Stage 2 51,707 2,124 49,583 1,241 883
° Stage 3 1,490 847 643 149 698
Total 304,107 3,617 300,490 2,384 1,233

80 Credit Default Swaps:

There are no credit defaults by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.
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Companies Act Disclosures:

81 Capital-Work-in-Progress (CWIP)

(a) For Capital-work-in progress, following ageing schedule shall be given:

CWIP Ageing Schedule
(INR Lacs
Amount in CWIP for a period ended 31 March 2022 Total
CWIP Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Projects in progress
Branch Fit out cost 26 - - - 26
Projects temporarily suspended - e - - S
Total Projects in progress 26 - - - 26
(INR Lacs
Amount in CWIP for a period ended 31 March 2021 Total

Cwip

Less than 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Projects in progress

Branch Fit out cost

Projects temporarily suspended
Total Projects in progress

(b) For capital-work-in progress, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its
original plan, following CWIP completion schedule shall be given

There are no tangible assets under Development schedule for completion of overdue/ exceeded cost as compared to
original plan for the period of March 2022 and March 2021,

82 In-Tangibles Asset Under Development
(a) In Tangible Assets under Development Ageing Schedule

{INR Lacs)
Amount in CWIP for a period of March 2022
ib t der Devel t tal
intangible Aszotajunder Developmen Lessthan 1 year | 1-2 years | 2-3 years More than 3 years Tota
Projects in progress 150 111 - - 261
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total Projects in progress 150 11 - - 261
{INR Lacs)
Amount in CWIP for a period of March 2021
tangible Asset der Devel t Total
Intangible Assets under Developmen Lessthan 1year | 1-2years | 2-3 years More than 3 years o
Projects in progress 228 177 218 - 623
Projects temporarily suspended - - - -
Total Projects in progress 228 177 218 - 623

(b} In Tangible Assets under development Schedule - Completion of overdue / Exceeded Cost as compared

to Original Plan -

There are no Intangible assets under development schedule for completion of overdue/ exceeded cost as

compared to original plan during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021,




Standard Chartered Capital Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

83 Borrowings on basis of security of Current Assets:

In respect of borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets, the quarterly
returns or statements of current assets filed by the company with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with
the books of accounts during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

84 Struck-Off Companies

During the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, the Company did not have any transactions with the
companies struck-off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 19586.

85 Key Ratios

The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business and is meeting the
capital adequacy requirements of the local banking supervisor, Reserve Bank of India (RBI) of India. The adequacy
of the Company's capital is monitored using, among other measures, the regulations issued by RBI,

Items 31 March 2022 J1 March 2021
CRAR - Tier | capital (%) 23.44% 31.06%
CRAR - Tier i Capital (%) 0.13% 0.21%
Liquidity Coverage Ratio (%) NA NA
Debt equity ratio (No. of times}) 3.38 2.27
Total debts to total assels (%) 76.50% 67.59%
Net profit margin (%) 29.52% 25.07%
Gross Stage 3 (%) 0.31% 0.49%
Net Stage 3 (%) 0.16% 0.21%
Notes -

1. Capital Risk Adequacy ralio is derived based on audited financial information as at 31 March 2022 and in accordance with applicable NBFC Master

Directions issued by the Reserve Bank of india.

2. Debt to equily ratio is derived as (Debl securities + Borrowings other than debt securities+ Inter-corporate deposits)/(Equity).
3. The Company is registered undar the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as Non-Banking Financial Company, hence these ratios are genarally not applicable
as per proviso lo Regulation 52(4) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

NG

86 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Expenditure

(a) Details of CSR expenditure of the Company are as below:

Networth is derived as Equity reduced by deferred tax assets, intangible assets and intangible assets under development.

Total debt to total assets is derived as (Debt securities + Borrowings other than debt securities+ Inter-corporate deposits)/(Total assets).
Net profit margin is derived as (Net profit for the period / Total income for the period)
Gross Stage 3 % is derived as (Gross Stage 3 loans) / (Gross loans})

Net Stage 3 % is derived as {Gross Stage 3 loans - Impairmant allowance on Stage 3 loans)/(Gross loans - Impairmant allowance on Stage 3 loans)

{INR Lacs)
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 166 159
Amount of expenditure incurred 166 159
Shortfall at the end of the year - -
Total of previous years shortfall - -
Reason for shortfall NA NA

(b) Nature of Corporate Social Responsibility activities
{INR Lacs)
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Description Incash | Yetto be paidin cash | Total | Incash | Yetto be paid in cash | Total

i) | Construction/acquisition of any asset - - - - - -
i) { On purposes other than (i) above 166" -

"Contribution towards setting up of oxygen cylinders in hospitals.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

87 Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(‘intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend to or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

No funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise that the company shall, whether, directly
or indirectly, lend to or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf funding
party(“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provided any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

88 The disclosure on the following matters required under Schedule lll as amended not being relevant or
applicable in case of company, same are not covered such as:

a)

b)

c)

d)

f

g}

h}

The company does not hold any immovable property whose Title Deeds are not held in the name of the
company.

The company does not have any investment property, hence the fair valuation of investment property is not
applicable.

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding Benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

The company has not traded or invested in any crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year.
The company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender.

The company do not have any layers of company and hence compliance is required under clause (87) of section
2 of the Act read with companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

The company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement.

The company has not entered into any transaction which are not recorded in the books of accounts.

OV ACCO TalTS f
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Standard Chartered Capital Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

89 Subsequent Events
There are no subsequent events post Balance Sheet date, which may result into the adjustment to the financial
statements or requires any specific disclosure.

90 The figures for previous year have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary.

91 Amounts less than One Lacs, on account of rounding off, are disclosed as Nil

92 Figures for the year ended on 31 March 2021 were audited by another firm of Chartered Accountants.

For KKC & Associates LLP .
Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
{Formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP) Standard Chartered Capital Limited
ICAIl Firm Registration No: (Formerly known as Standard Chartered Investments and Loans
105146W/W100621 {India) Limited)
Vinit Jain Zarin Daruwala Prashant Kumar
Partner Director MD & CEO
Membership No: 145911 DIN: 00034655 DIN: 08584379
May 27, 2022 Priya Ranjit RichaShah
Mumbai COO0 & CFO Company Secretary
ACA: 117771 ACS: 32437
May 27, 2022

Mumbai
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STANDARD CHARTERED CAPITAL LIMITED
(FORMERLY STANDARD CHARTERED INVESTMENTS AND LOANS (INDIA) LIMITED)

CIN: U65990MH2003PLC142829

19" Annual General Meeting
Wednesday, September 28, 2022, at 11:30 a.m. at
Sanaga Meeting Room, Floor No 6, Crescenzo Building, G Block, C 38/39,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai 400 051

Proxy form
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 — Form MGT-11]

Name of the member

Registered address

Email

Folio No. / Client ID

DP ID

I, being the member(s) of shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint

(NP2 1

AAAIES S, ittt
SIgNAtUrE: ..
Or Failing him / her

N A . i e

AAArES S, it
SIGNALUIE: .o
as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my /our behalf at the 19"

Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Wednesday, September 28, 2022, at
11.30 a.m. at Sanaga Meeting Room, Floor No. 6, Crescenzo Building, G Block, C 38/39,
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Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai 400 051 and at any adjournment thereof in
respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution No: 1to 3

Resolution
number

Resolution

Vote (Optional see note 2)

(Please
shares)

mention no of

For

| Against | Abstain

Ordinary Business

Item No. 1:

To receive, consider, approve and
adopt:

a. the Audited Standalone Financial
Statements of the Company for
the financial year ended March
31, 2022 together with the
reports of the Board of Directors
and Auditors thereon.

Item No. 2:

To appoint a Director in place of Mr.
Kumarapuram Venkateswaran
Subramanian (DIN 07842700), who
retires by rotation in terms of Section
152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment.

Item No. 3:

To approve re-appointment of Statutory
Auditors

Signed this ...........

Signature of the member

Notes:

Signature of proxy holder(s)

Affix revenue
stamp of not less
than INR 1/-

1. This form, to be effective, should be duly stamped, completed, signed, and deposited at
the registered office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the Annual General

Meeting.

It is optional to indicate your preference. If you leave the ‘for’, ‘against’, or ‘abstain’

column blank against any or all the resolutions, your proxy will be entitled to vote in the
manner as he/she may deem appropriate.
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STANDARD CHARTERED CAPITAL LIMITED
(FORMERLY STANDARD CHARTERED INVESTMENTS AND LOANS (INDIA) LIMITED)
CIN: U65990MH2003PLC142829

19" Annual General Meeting
Wednesday, September 28, 2022, at 11:30 a.m. at
Sanaga Meeting Room, Floor No 6, Crescenzo Building, G Block, C 38/39,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai 400 051

Attendance Slip

Registered Folio no. / DP ID no. / Client ID no.:

Number of Shares held:

| certify that | am a member / proxy / authorized representative for the member of Standard
Chartered Capital Limited.

| hereby record my presence at the 19" Annual General Meeting of Standard Chartered
Capital Limited at Sanaga Meeting Room, Floor No 6, Crescenzo Building, G Block, C
38/39, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai 400 051 on Wednesday, September 28,
2022, at 11:30 a.m.

Name of the member / proxy Signature of the member / proxy

Note: Please fill up this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting
venue.
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Chhatrapati Shivaji International Airport Area to Drive 10.7 km, 32 min
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Chhtrapati Shivaji International Airport to SCB, Crescenzo, Lhasa Room, BKC, Mumbai
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=l  via Western Express Hwy 32 min
Fastest route, despite the usual traffic 10.7 km
A\ This route has restricted usage or includes private roads.
i  via Sahar Rd and Western Express Hwy 36 min
The usual traffic 12.1 km
=l  via Western Express Hwy and Santacruz — Chembur Link Rd 37 min
The usual traffic 11.7 km
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Go g|E Maps Chhatrapati Shivaji International Airport Area to Drive 10.7 km, 32 min
Crescenzo

Chhatrapati Shivaji International Airport to SCB, Crescenzo, Lhasa Room, BKC, Mumbai.

Chhatrapati Shivaji International Airport Area
Vile Parle, Mumbai, Maharashtra

t 1 Head north-east towards Sahar Rd

@ Pass by Perishable Cargo Terminal (on the right)
1 min (230 m)

Continue on Sahar Rd. Drive from Western Express Hwy to Shivaji nagar Vakola
17 min (6.5 km)
t 2. AtAmruta Logistics Private Limited, continue onto Sahar Rd
@ Pass by Domnic Miranda Chawl (on the left)

2.0km
€ 3. Turn left towards Western Express Hwy

350m
A 4. Usetheright 2 lanes to turn right to merge onto Western Express Hwy

800 m
r* 5. Keeprightto stay on Western Express Hwy

2.3km
N 6. Usethe left 2 lanes to take the exit towards Hans Bhugra Marg/Santacruz — Chembur Link Rd

1.1 km
€ 7. Turn left onto Hans Bhugra Marg/Santacruz — Chembur Link Rd

12m

Take Sharada Devi Rd to your destination in Bandra Kurla Complex
11 min (4.0 km)
r* 8. Turnright at the 1st cross street toward Sharada Devi Rd

450 m

4 9. Turn left onto Sharada Devi Rd

700 m
€ 10. Turn left at Prof JL Shirsekar Marg

700 m
t 11. Continue onto Bharat Nagar Rd

450 m
€ 12. Turn left after Contemporary Hospital (on the right)

450 m
r* 13. Turnright towards Qadri Rd

350 m
t 14, Continue onto Qadri Rd

140 m

https://iwww.google.co.in/maps/dir/Chhatrapati+Shivaji+ International +Airport+Area,+ Mumbai,+ Maharashtra/Crescenzo,+ G+Block+BKC,+Bandra+Kurla+Co... 1/2
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rr 15. Turnright
650 m

P 16. Turnright
@ Destination will be on the left
170m

Crescenzo
VCNow 400051, G Block BKC, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai, Maharashtra

These directions are for planning purposes only. You may find that construction projects,
traffic, weather, or other events may cause conditions to differ from the map results, and you
should plan your route accordingly. You must obey all signs or notices regarding your route.
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